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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE BANKING GROUP

The Bulgarian Development Bank Group (the “BDB Group”) includes the parent company - Bulgarian
Development Bank AD - and the two subsidiaries, in which the parent company holds 100 per cent of the
capital: National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF) and Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (MFi JOBS).

Bulgarian Development Bank AD

Bulgarian Development Bank AD (BDB, the "Bank”) was established on 11 March 1999 as a joint-stock
company under the name of Encouragement Bank AD.

On 23 April 2008 the Bulgarian Parliament accepted Bulgarian Development Bank Act (ZBBR, Bul.).
This law regulates the scope of the Bank’s activities, including those of its subsidiaries envisaged for
incorporation.

BDB is a key instrument and a channel for conducting government economic policies, including in
specific areas, regions, industries and social groups. The Bank actively collaborates with all government state
structures in order to ensure maximum impact of the public funds targeted on support of the economic
development. Priority focus is set on pre-export, export and bridge financing. Traditionally, the Bank will
continue to provide investment financing for SMEs with extended initial maturity and relaxed collateral
requirements. As of 31 December 2016 the paid-in share capital amounted to BGN 601,774 thousand (31
December 2015: BGN 601,774 thousand), consisting of 6,017,735 ordinary registered voting shares with
nominal value of BGN 100 each. The Bank has complied with the requirements of BNB for minimum share
capital for banking activity, as well as with the capital requirements of BDBA. The ownership of the capital is
as follows: 99.9999 per cent is owned by the Republic of Bulgaria represented by the Ministry of Finance;
0.0001 per cent is owned by DSK Bank.

The Bulgarian Development Bank Act has determined that a package of not less than 51 per cent of
the shares in the capital of the Bank shall be state-owned and that the shares of the state, amounting to not
less than 51 per cent of the registered share capital, are not transferable. In addition, a specific limit is
established on the composition of the other shareholders, registered outside the Bulgarian state - through the
Ministry of Finance. These may include: the Council of Europe Development Bank, the European Investment
Bank, the European Investment Fund and other development banks of the Member States of the European
Union. The Bank's shares cannot be pledged and the rights attached thereto may not be subject to transfer.

Regarding the acquisition of its own shares, pursuant to Article 187e and Article 247 of the Commercial
Act, BDB declares that such an acquisition has not taken place and that no acquisition, possession or transfer
of shares and bonds of the Bank has been performed by the board members during the reported year and
that according to Article 6, paragraph 4 of the Bulgarian Development Bank Act the shares in the capital of
the Bank, apart from the Bulgarian state, may be acquired and held by the Council of Europe Development
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Bank, the European Investment Bank and the European Investment Fund as well as by development banks
of Member States of the European Union. In these cases, Article 31 of the Law on Credit Institutions is not
applied.

According to Article 6, paragraph 4 of the Bulgarian Development Bank Act, the members of the
management and supervisory bodies, the procurators and the senior management cannot own shares and
cannot be provided with options on BDB securities as well as that during the subsequent accounting periods
no agreements may be concluded as a result of which in any future period changes may occur in the
possession of the relative volume of shares held by the current shareholders.

Management of BDB is carried out in accordance with Article 5 of the Bulgarian Development Bank Act
based on which the Bank has a two-tier system of governance and the rights of the State in the general
assemblies of the shareholders shall be exercised by the Minister of Finance. Outside the powers of the
Minister of Finance, changes in the Bulgarian Development Bank Act - as changes of the articles of
association, and the right to issue or to share redemption - is possible only after the passing of a new law or
amending the current legislation by the National Assembly. According to this article, and in the capacity of a
representative of the majority shareholder in BDB, the decision to reduce the capital through the redemption
of shares may be made only by the Minister of Finance.

The members of the management bodies of BDB are appointed in accordance with the generally
applicable rules laid out in the requirements of the National law (Commercial Act) and the specific provisions
of the national regulatory authority (the Bulgarian National Bank).

To fulfil its objectives BDB has formed a financial group with two of its subsidiaries - National
Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF) and Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD (MFI Jobs).

On 05 May 2015 amendments and supplementations to the Statute of BDB were registered with the
Commercial Register at the Registry Agency.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Bank'’s lending activity is directed towards:

Pre-export and export financing of SME; financing SME operations and projects either through
intermediary banks or directly; refinancing banks granting loans to SME; financing SME investments abroad.

The Bank extends also other types of loans according to a procedure set by the Management Board,
whereas the exposure to one customer or a group of related customers, other than credit institutions, central
governments and central banks within the meaning of Regulation 575/2013/EU, cannot exceed 10 (ten)
percent of the eligible capital (the equity) of the Bank after taking into account the effect of credit risk reduction.
In case of exposure in violation of the above limit and as a result of a business combination and/or another
transaction, the Management Board shall notify the Supervisory Board and shall make a proposal regarding
the method, term and need of their regulation, asking for the approval of the Supervisory Board.
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The Bank does not provide loans to the following activities/borrowers:

Activities not compliant with the National law, including for environment protection;

Companies with unknown ultimate controlling owner;

Political parties and their related parties;

Non-profit companies and organisations;

Media;

Activities relating to sports and sport initiatives;

Other activities prohibited by law.

With the aim to support the economic development and with the objective of granting financial support
for every type of business, the Bank may finance/refinance companies with liabilities at the time of filing a
credit application to BDB and after obtaining the approval of the Supervisory Board.

The Management Board shall pass a unanimous decision to form an exposure to one customer or a
group of related customers if its amount exceeds 5 per cent of the Bank’s equity, in compliance with the
requirements of the Law on Credit Institutions and the internal rules of the Bank.

Bulgarian Development Bank provides services as an investment intermediary according to the
provisions of the Public Offering of Securities Act (POSA). As an investment intermediary, the bank must
meet certain requirements to protect the interests of its customers according to the Financial Instruments
Directive Act (FIMA) and Decree 38 issued by the Financial Supervision Commission (FSC). The Bank should
also comply with the requirements of Directive 2014/65/EC on the financial instruments markets (MiFID I1)
and Regulation 600/2014 of the EU relating to the Financial Instruments Markets (MiFIR). The Bank has
established, and applies, an organisation associated with the conclusion and execution of contracts with

L L A

customers, with requesting and obtaining information from the customers, with record keeping and
preservation of the customer's assets in accordance with the aforementioned national and European
regulations. The Bank has established a system of internal rules and internal control procedures to ensure
full compliance with the regulations referred to above.

The headquarters of the "Bulgarian Development Bank" AD are located in the city of Sofia 1000,
Sredets district, 1 Dyakon Ignatii Street. At 31 December 2016 the Bank had a staff of 153 employees.

At 31 December 2016 Bulgarian Development Bank had no branches.
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National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF)

National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF) is a company established on 12 August 2008 on the grounds

of the Bulgarian Development Bank Act and registered with the Commercial Registry on 22 August 2008.
According to the Law on Credit Institutions (LCI), National Guarantee Fund EAD is a financial institution,
registered in 2009 by BNB in the register under Article 3, paragraph 2 of the Law on Credit Institutions (LCI).
In accordance with its Articles of Association, the scope of activity of the Fund includes:

- Issuing guarantees to supplement collateral for loans to small and medium enterprises;

- Offering other products for small and medium enterprises such as: guarantee for participation in
tender; guarantee for good performance; guarantee for advance payment; guarantee for payment
of loan to exporter, etc.;

- Issuing guarantees to supplement collateral for loans to small and medium enterprises involved in
research and development activities, as well as for deployment of the results thereof in industry;

- Other activities that are not particularly prohibited by the Law.

The headquarters of National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF) are located in the city of Sofia, 1 Dyakon

Ignatii Street.
At 31 December 2016 National Guarantee Fund EAD had no branches.

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (MFI Jobs)

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (MFI) is registered with the Commercial Register on 14
January 2011. The main scope of activity includes: micro financing, including granting of micro-loans,
acquisition from third parties and leasing out of industrial equipment, cars and other vehicles, as well as other
goods (financial leasing), purchase, sale and import of such goods, consultancy services, agency and
brokerage for local and foreign individuals and legal entities, operating in the country, as well as any other
activities not prohibited by Law.

The headquarters of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (MFI Jobs) are located in the city of Sofia,
1 Dyakon Ignatii Street.

At 31 December 2016 Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD had no branches.

At 31 December 2016 the BDB Group had a staff of 185 employees.

In 2016 the BDB Group had no outstanding obligations related to any existing or newly issued
securities.

At 31 December 2016 there were no pending legal, administrative or arbitration proceedings relating
to liabilities or receivables of the BDB Group in the amount of 10 percent or more of its equity.
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MAIN FOCUS, ACTIVITIES AND PROJECTS OF THE BDB GROUP FOR 2016

At the beginning of the year, the General Meeting of Shareholders took a decision not to distribute
dividends to shareholders and to set the funds aside as reserves of the Bank. The shareholders have
reinforced their practice to invest actively in strengthening the potential of the Bank.

During the reporting period the bank drafted and approved a new program called “Leasing Line"
focused on partners which are non-banking financial institutions - lessors. To participate in the program a
number of financial institutions, registered with the BNB and performing financial leasing, were invited. With
an established starter program budget of EUR 25 million, 10 financial institutions applied for participation with
a declared common interest amounting to EUR 34.75 million. As of 31 December 2016 contracts were signed
with four leasing companies at a total of EUR 12.5 million and the utilized funds amounted to EUR 2.8 million.

At the beginning of 2016 Bulgarian Development Bank (BDB) signed a financial agreement for EUR
20 million with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC). The funds are intended for general business
activities, direct financing of the business or for creating on-lending programs through commercial banks to
support investment projects and provide working capital, including the promotion of the trade relations
between the two countries. The contract is signed for a term of two years. The aim of the agreement is to
formalize a commitment to long-term partnership between the two banks and to encourage future cooperation
in the field of cross-border funding, bilateral loans, investments and trade. On 8 August 2016, BDB utilized
the entire amount of the loan in one tranche — EUR 20 million.

In 2016 BDB signed two agreements to finance the implementation of the National Programme for
Energy Efficiency of Multi-Family Residential Buildings (NPEEMZHS) with CEB and KfW totalling EUR 250
million.

In February of 2016 BDB signed an agreement with the Council of Europe Development Bank (CEB)
for the amount of EUR 150 million. The funds will be used to finance energy efficiency measures and the
necessary structural measures within the NPEEMZHS. A collateral agreement with the Ministry of Finance
was signed and ratified by the National Assembly. In December of 2016 BDB utilized the first tranche of EUR
45 million, under the contract with the CEB. The interest rate is floating and it is based on the three-month
Euribor. The term set is seven years with a grace period of two years.

In August 2016 Bulgarian Development Bank signed a financing agreement with KFW for EUR 100
million. The financial means will be used specifically for funding energy efficiency measures and the
necessary structural measures implemented by small and medium sized enterprises in Bulgaria within the
NPEEMZHS framework. A collateral agreement was also signed between KfW and the Ministry of Finance,
which was ratified by the National Assembly in December. The contract between KiW and BDB extends to
seven years at the latest with a two years grace period. The term of repayment, set for this loan, is September
15, 2022 with a floating interest rate formed by 6M Euribor plus margin.
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A part of the State guarantee for the year 2016 (EUR 511 million.), which is not used in the 2016
agreements — a balance in the amount of EUR 261 million - was transferred to the state’s 2017 budget. In this
regard, in 2017 BDB will continue negotiations with a third creditor (the European Investment Bank, the World
Bank) to raise the remaining EUR 261 million for financing the NPEEMZHS. The conclusion of this agreement
is expected to occur during the second half of 2017

In early January the National Assembly of Bulgaria voted to increase the program’s funds by another
BGN 1 billion. This increases the total amount of grants to the associations of owners under the Program to
a total of BGN 2 billion.

On 18 November 2016 BDB signed a new contract with the European Investment Bank for SME
financing in the amount of EUR 150 million. The funds are provided with EU support through EFSI collateral
(European Fund for Strategic Investment), as a part of the European Investment Plan - Juncker Plan. The
first tranche, disbursed in December, amounted to EUR 75 million, at a floating interest rate based on the six-
month Euribor. The repayment term is 15 years with a grace period of five years and part of the funds will be
used for crediting innovative projects. Another part of the loan is intended to support regions with high
unemployment rates, as well as a part of the youth employment initiative or for start-up company projects.
The greater part (more than 50 per cent) of the loan will be allocated through partner banks or via other
financial intermediaries.

On 4 November 2016 BDB signed a new agreement for issuing a counter-guarantee with the
European Investment Fund (EIF) under the COSME program in support of the small and medium sized
business in the country. The aim is to facilitate the access to long-term, low-interest financing of the
companies in the country and relax the requirements for setting up the collateral on the loans. The COSME
program is supported by the EFSI (European Fund for Strategic Investment), also known as the Juncker Plan.
BDB will be able to cover up to 60 per cent of the risk on the loans to the SMEs granted by commercial partner
banks. This will reduce the requirements for granting collateral from the business side and will allow for more
risk-taking by the financial institutions. With the resources, guaranteed under the COSME program, BBR's
partner banks of will be able to grant investment and working capital loans, bank guarantees and revolving
loans. The maximum credit amounts will reach EUR 150,000 with a repayment period between 1 and 10
years.

As a result of the 2016 review of the quality of banking assets in conformity with the provisions of §9
of TFP of the ZVPKIIP and Article 80 of LCl, Bulgarian Development Bank has demonstrated a high level of
resilience to external shocks. Within the framework of the conducted stress test, in the conditions of adverse
scenarios and after adjustments in the course of the review of the quality of the assets, by the end of the test
horizon the total capital adequacy of the bank was estimated at 53.26 per cent - a figure, which significantly
exceeds the performance of a number of financial institutions with a similar profile.
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In the month of October 2016 the Bank was subjected to a supervisory inspection by the Bulgarian
National Bank with a period of coverage ending on 30 June 2016 and with the performance of a review of the
operational and market risks, the credit concentrations and with a verification of the manner of implementation
of the given recommendations regarding the operation on these risks. By the date of preparation of these
financial statements the Bank has not yet received a report on the findings from the inspection completed.

Throughout the entire year of 2016, the Bank had intensively refined and developed its internal
regulations, including the Policy and the rules for determining the impairment for uncollectability of risk
exposures.

Within the context of the project developed for preparing the Bank for the introduction of IFRS9
(starting on 01 January 2018), an organization was set up to prepare and implement the necessary changes
in the bank’s internal regulations and the establishment of the necessary technical arrangements for
compliance with the requirements of the new standard. In December 2016 training was conducted, by
qualified experts, for over 30 key employees from different departments in the Bank. This process will continue
in the next year as well, and will be finalized by updating all in-house regulations, making investments in
specialist software and upgrading the existing systems in compliance with the requirements of the Standard.

OVERVIEW OF THE EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT - MACROECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT AND THE BANKING
SYSTEM

The macroeconomic environment

The main features in the development of the Bulgarian economy in 2016 include the relatively high
rate of economic growth, the continuing process of improving the situation on the labour market, the double
surplus (in the current fiscal balance and in the balance of payments), the decreased external indebtedness
of the economy as a whole, and the overcoming of the deflation observed during the last three years.

In 2016, the Bulgarian economy had been able sustain the momentum observed during the previous
year. According to the estimates based on the official data the gross domestic product (GDP), generated
during the first three quarters and the flash estimates of the GDP for the fourth quarter the real growth indicator
for 2016 is expected to fall within the range of 3.3 per cent to 3.5 per cent (at the average 2015 prices). The
drivers of growth appear to be both the domestic demand (entirely based on final consumption) and the
external demand, which has registered high growth rates in the export of goods and services. Of the elements
of domestic demand investments continued to be the only segment with a negative contribution to the growth
of the Bulgarian economy. Gross fixed capital formation registered a drop in constant price rates throughout
2016 (with the exception of the first quarter).
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Of the economic sectors the most dynamic has proven to be the services sector, which has been the
key contributor to the growth of the Bulgarian economy throughout the year. The industry, with the exception
of the second quarter of the year, has also recorded a relatively high growth both with the gross added value
(GVA), produced by the sector, but also through the rise in sales and is one of the sectors which has been
the major contributor to the national economy during the year. The agricultural sector continued to
demonstrate erratic dynamics and after the registered decline during the first half of 2016 it went on to realize
a growth during the last two quarters of the year, thus becoming a major contributor to the overall economic
growth and taking a position nearly in par with the other branches of industry. The only sector which continued
to develop negatively in 2016 was the construction sector: it recorded drops in its GVA in constant prices on
an annual basis and still experiences difficulties in its development. In spite of this, some visible activation in
lending of firms and households, at the end of the year, gives grounds to presume that the construction
business has probably hit rock bottom in 2016 and that as early as next year there will be a reversal in the
dynamics within the sector.

The maintaining of a relatively high economic growth for the second consecutive year has contributed
to the further improvement of the state of the labour market. During the fourth quarter of 2016, unemployment
rates fell to 6.7 percent. The economic activity of the population is kept within the range of 68 per cent - 69
per cent (the population between 15 and 64 years of age) and the employment rates have been over 63 per
cent, which is comparable to the period of the greatest revival of the labour market in 2007-2008. Increasingly,
one of the main obstacles to the future expansion of the activities of the Bulgarian companies appears to be
the unavailability of adequately qualified labour power. This, in turn, exerts pressure on the wages in the
country. The national average monthly salary for the fourth quarter of 2016 amounted to BGN 990, and during
the year it had registered a nominal annual growth rate within the range of 7.5 to 8.0 per cent, a significant
acceleration compared to 2010 - 2014. Along with the declining unemployment in the country, during the
second half of 2016 employment remained relatively constant despite the increased demand for labour on
the part of the entrepreneurs. This serves as an additional indicator that the workforce is close to its maximum
capacity utilization and the problem of labour supply will become a still more pressing issue in the coming
years.

The current balance of payments for 2016 was positive and by the end of November the realized
surplus amounted to EUR 2.034 million (4.3 per cent of GDP). The current account surplus is about three
times higher than that of the previous year and this improvement is mainly due, firstly, to the improvement of
the trade balance in goods and services and secondly, to the improvement of the balance of the primary
income. The real growth in the imports of goods and services (according to the System of National Accounts
of NSI) for the year 2016 has exceeded 5 per cent, while that for exports is lower by about 2 per cent.

10
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The process of reducing the external debt has continued and by November 2016 it was 72.7 per cent
of GDP while by the end of 2015 that digit was 75.3 per cent. This decrease is entirely due to the dynamics
in the private external debt, which has dropped from 62.0 per cent of GDP at the end of 2015 to 58.5 per cent
in November of 2016. At the same time, the external State and State guaranteed debt has increased (mainly
due to the issuing of Eurobonds during the first quarter of 2016) and by November 2016 it represented 14.2
per cent of GDP (compared to 13.3 per cent of GDP at the end of 2015).

The direct foreign investments (FDI) in Bulgaria remain low. According to BNB preliminary data
covering the period ending in November 2016, their amount, for the last twelve months, was EUR 865.7 million
(1.8 per cent of GDP).

During 2016 Bulgaria had registered a positive, albeit minimal inflation calculated on the basis of the
national consumer price index (CPI). The value of CPI (December versus December) was 0.1 per cent and
was positive for the first time since 2012. The groups contributing most to the positive inflation (by the end of
the period) are foodstuffs and public catering. The deflation of non-food product prices fell during the year
with fuels gradually exhausting their deflation potential. Only gaseous fuels have remain a serious factor for
the negative inflation within the whole group (due to the mechanism adopted for setting their prices), but in
the coming months they will also discontinue this price reduction due to the dynamics in the prices of liquid
fuels. The other commodities, which contribute most to the negative price index of non-food goods, are
clothing and footwear, furniture and related products, telephone and fax equipment, equipment for the
reception and reproduction of sound as well as image and information processing machines.

The group with the most significant contribution to the deflationary dynamics in the CPI during 2016
is the group of services. Along with thermal energy production (influenced by the dynamics in the prices of
liquid and gaseous fuels), the other services showing the greatest annual price drops are air passenger
transport, communications services (associated with the reduction of prices of roaming in the middle of the
year), package tourist and travel services, short-term accommodation services (probably influenced by the
increased price competition from the country’s neighbouring tourist destinations).

The banking sector

In 2016, the banking system remained highly liquid, capitalized and continued to increase its
profitability compared to previous years. There had been some consolidation within the sector: during the
year the Bulgarian branch of Alpha Bank Greece was acquired by CB Post Bank AD and the end of the year
saw the announcement of the contract for the takeover of the UBB Bank AD by the KBC Group, which should
be finalized by the end of the second quarter of 2017 with the merger of CB UBB and CB CiBank.

The assets of the banking system have increased by 5.2 per cent and by the end of 2016 they reached
a value of BGN 92.1 billion. The most significant increase was observed in the financial assets of banks (by
BGN 2.4 billion, or 21.2 per cent). In spite of the introduced negative interest rates on excess reserves, the

11
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commercial banks continue to hold large amounts in accounts registered in the central banks, which by the
end of December 2016 amounted to BGN 18.2 billion (19.7 per cent of the total assets of the banking system)
and which show a decrease of only BGN 98 million relative to the previous year. In 2016 the volume of loans
and receivables showed an increase by BGN 1.8 billion (3.4 per cent) to reach BGN 56.1 billion by the end of
the year. During the first half of 2016 loans to companies and households dropped in value compared to the
end of 2015 which is mainly due to the caution demonstrated by the banks when granting new loans to the
non-financial sector. In the second half of the year, however, and after the announcement of the results from
the asset quality review, the commercial banks gradually increased their exposures to companies and
households. As a result, loans to companies had shown a minimum annual decline of 0.3 per cent (according
to data from the Banking Supervision service of the BNB), while loans to households had increased by 1.4
per cent in 2016 (one of the related factors is the implementation of the national energy efficiency program).

At the end of 2016 the share of loans with a probability of default for over 90 days within the total
portfolio of loans to the non-banking sector fell to 12.83 per cent (compared to 15.35 per cent at the end of
2015).

The profit collected by the banking system (unaudited) after taxes is BGN 1.262 billion and is by 40
per cent greater when compared to the profit from the previous year. This is the highest profit level registered
by the banking system for the past eight years. Its increase compared to 2015 is, in most part, due to the
lower costs: the administrative expenses were down by BGN 259 million compared to 2016 and expenses on
impairment have decreased by BGN 286 million. The net interest income, as well as fee and commission
income, has also contributed to the increase of the system’s profitability: the net interest income has increased
by BGN 34 million compared to 2016, while the fee and commission income has increased by BGN 31 million.

Atthe end of December 2016 the capital of the banking system amounted to BGN 12.1 billion showing
an increase by BGN 610 million (5.3 per cent) during the last twelve months.

The trend towards lowering interest rates on loans and deposits, observed in the past two years,
remained persistent in 2016. The main factors behind these dynamics are the low values of the main
referential interest levels in the European zone and the US; the retention of deflation in Bulgaria and the low
inflation levels in the EU 28 as a whole; the high liquidity of the banking system, as well as the negative
interest rates on the "excess reserves" of the commercial banks held in accounts with the Bulgarian National
Bank. The average interest rates on loans to companies fell faster than those on corporate deposits, which
had led to a reduction in the interest rate spread over the second half of 2016. Its value dropped from about
4.4 per cent in early 2016 to around 4.0 per cent at the year's end.

During the fourth quarter of 2016 the average interest rate on BGN loans to companies and new
businesses registered a drop in the original maturity to below 4 per cent which was observed and which
dropped for the first time as the fierce competition among commercial banks to attract the punctual customers
continued to push the interest rates on credits down. At the same time, the average interest rates on loans to
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companies and new businesses fell to a level of around 4.5 per cent.

A considerable part of the commercial banks set their interest rates on short-term deposits of the
companies within the range of 0.01 to 0.1 per cent, which is a clear indicator that in general, the banks are
trying to minimize the inflow of new deposits from companies and individuals. Low interest rates on borrowings
significantly reduce the incentive for firms and households to keep their savings in bank deposits and redirect
them to other areas for investing their cash resources. The average interest rates on BGN deposits of
companies and new businesses decreased to the 0.15 percent level during the last quarter of 2016, while the
euro-denominated company deposits remained within the range from 0.20 per cent to 0.25 per cent.

ACTIVITY OVERVIEW

The group of Bulgarian Development Bank AD continues to work actively on the achievement of the
objectives set, while maintaining high levels of liquidity and capitalization. In 2016 the process of modernizing
and upgrading the activities of BDB continued in parallel to the Bank’s continued increase in activity volumes.

As of 31 December 2016, the financial result of the Bulgarian Development Bank Group - after taxation
- is a profit amounting to BGN 44,911 thousand, compared to that of the previous reporting year which was
BGN 38,676 thousand, thus representing an increase of 16.12 per cent.

The net interest income for 2016 is by 7.71 per cent higher compared to 2015, with a value amounting
to BGN 59,110 thousand (at 31 December 2015 this sum was BGN 54,879 thousand). The major reasons for
this decrease is the drop in interest expenses by 55.10 per cent, which is due to the maturity of the bond
issue, a reduction in the volume of unused funds under the RDP program, the renegotiation of the interest
rate on the deposits of large customers and the optimization of the sources of financing the Bank at lower
cost of the resources following the trends of the market.

The net fee and commission income, realized at 31 December 2016, amounted to BGN 4,085
thousand, compared to the BGN 3,248 thousand for 2015, representing an increase of 25.77 per cent due to
the increase in the amount of loans granted during 2016.

At 31 December 2016, the general and administrative expenses (excluding labour costs) made by the
Group amounted to BGN 7,357 thousand, compared to the costs incurred in 2015, which were BGN 8,901
thousand. The effect of the reduction of the general and administrative expenses during the reporting year is
due, to a great extent, to the significant reduction of the sum of the contribution to the Deposit Insurance Fund,
paid in 2016.

Labour costs for 2016 amounted to BGN 9,762 thousand and have shown a minimal drop when
compared to the previous year (at 31 December 2015 — BGN 9,782 thousand).
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The operational expenses coefficient (incl. personnel costs) related to the operational income
decreased from 32.18 per cent at the end of 2015 to 27.76 per cent by the end of 2016, as a result of both
the generated higher income levels and the drop in administrative costs.

In 2016, the net impairment charges and provisions for loans, receivables and contingent liabilities
represent an income amounting to BGN 3,832 thousand (reintegration), compared to the income from the
reversal of impairments and provisions amounting to BGN 2,441 thousand for the previous year. Information
in greater detail about the impairments and provisions is presented in Notes 12, 18B and 33 to the
consolidated annual financial statements.

At 31 December 2016, the Group's assets amounted to BGN 1,893,723 thousand, thus representing
an increase of 18.66 per cent over the previous year, which amounted to BGN 1,596,684 thousand at the end
of 2015.

The group focuses on continued support for the development and training of its employees, creating
conditions for the professional development of financial specialists within the framework of the only financial
group in Bulgaria, which does not prioritize the creation of profit, but is focused more on achieving social
goals. The BDB Group is not active in the field of research and development, other than personnel training.
The main priorities of the companies within the Group are presented further below.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD

BDB's lending activity is expressed both in the direct provision of loan funds and in financing through
programs (products) for crediting the commercial banks, which use the funds received to grant credits to
SMEs and farmers, or the so-called “on-lending”.

As of 31 December 2016 the gross amount of the Bank's portfolio of direct loans (excluding the volumes
for the energy efficiency program) had increased by BGN 84,297 thousand, compared to the end of 2015,
thus reaching BGN 863 888 thousand - a growth of 10.81 per cent.

In 2016 the Bank continued to develop its activities by supporting the Bulgarian businesses in a difficult
economic environment. The Bank's loan portfolio (excluding the loans to banks) grew by 10.81 percent to
BGN 863,888 thousand (2015: BGN 779,591 thousand), and BDB has continued to maintain a diversified
section structure of its loan portfolio. Somewhat greater dynamics are observed in the relative shares of the
industrial sector (a decrease of 6.3 per cent), real estate operations (down 3 per cent), transport (up 1.8 per
cent) and other sectors of the economy (an increase of 8.1 per cent) (Note 18B to the AFS).

At 31 December 2016 the amount of funds provided for the indirect crediting of businesses through
commercial banks (on-lending) amounted to BGN 170,102 thousand, showing a 5 per cent drop compared to
2015 volumes, which is due to the maturity of some of the loans.

At the end of December 2016, under the National Energy Efficiency Program (the Program) launched
in 2015, which is aimed at the renovation of residential multifamily buildings, 4,022 requests were received
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for targeted funding for 2016 and 1,690 contracts were signed for the provision of such funds. The total cost
of the first phase of the program is BGN 1 billion. BDB participates in the negotiation of financial resources
for the implementation of the program for which it receives a State guarantee. The Bank enters into targeted
funding, maintains a public register of requests and contracts according to the Program. As of 31 December
2016 the total amount of funding, agreed according to the contracts, was BGN 850,601 thousand (compared
with the end of 2015 — BGN 11,923 thousand), of which the amount of BGN 395,169 thousand had been
utilized (at 31 December 2015 this sum was BGN 9,810 thousand).

BDB continues to implement its targeted export financing program, including through joint initiatives
with Bulgarian Export Insurance Agency (BAEZ). Thereby, the Bank promotes the competitiveness of the
Bulgarian exporters.

The Bank's management maintains a consistent, conservative risk assessment policy, in line with the
economic environment and the specific characteristics of the loan portfolio of BDB. At the end of 2016
impairment coverage of exposures in the loan portfolio amounted to 16.34 per cent (2015: 18.72 per cent).

The ratio of gross loans to customers in arrears over 90 days to the total corporate loan portfolio (direct
crediting, excluding claims from national and municipal budgets, staff and non-banking financial institutions)
improved and at 31 December 2016 their share was 13.36 per cent compared to 19.34 per cent at the end of
2015. The change was due to the decrease in the volume of overdue loans and the increase in the volume of
the portfolio.

At the end of 2016, the portfolio of securities, available for sale, has increased nominally by BGN 44,188
thousand (20.07 per cent) compared to the end of 2015. In 2016 the Bank increased its investments in debt
securities in order to improve the liquidity management. The volume of BDB owned portfolio securities is at
the value of BGN 264,268 thousand (2015 - BGN 220,180 thousand), the majority of which is composed of
government securities.

The item “cash on hand” and balances in current account with the Central Bank fell by 77 per cent
compared to the end of the year and the balance amounts to BGN 78,521 thousand (at 31 December 2015 -
BGN 343,853 thousand). This is due to the growth in lending activity and the targeting of available resources
in profitable instruments (GS), as well as the interbank market. At the end of 2016, the Bank reported an
increase in receivables from banks by about BGN 24,151 thousand against the end of 2015, or an increase
of 9.67 per cent.

As of 31 December 2016 the largest share of the liabilities of the Bank continue to be the deposits from
customers other than credit institutions - 61 per cent (77 per cent at the end of 2015), and their value amounted
to BGN 709,549 thousand (at 31 December 2015 this was BGN 695,080 thousand). Most of them (BGN 467
million, or about 66 per cent) are formed by funds provided for two projects of national importance.

The collected ratio of borrowings from international institutions increased significantly and by the end
of 2016 they amounted to BGN 379,998 thousand, compared to the BGN 178,723 thousand registered at
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the end of 2015; their share in the liabilities of the Bank was 32.84 per cent. The significant growth in volume
is mainly due to two new disbursements from international credit institutions at the end of the calendar year:
EUR 45 million for the CEB Program for energy efficiency and EUR 75 million, from the EIB.

BDB continues to maintain a good level of liquidity. As of 31 December 2016, the ratio of liquid assets
of the bank decreased to 31.5 per cent (65.3 per cent at the end of 2015) due to the increased intensity of
utilization by the national program for energy efficiency and redirecting part of the funds held by the BNB in
interbank deposits.

The maintained bank capital adequacy ratio exceeds the regulatory requirements and has repeatedly
been confirmed by stress tests conducted in 2016 and by the asset quality review. At 31 December 2016 the
capital base (the bank’s equity) amounted to BGN 622,578 thousand and the total capital adequacy of the
bank, according to preliminary data, amounted to 49.13 per cent compared to 53.24 per cent at the end of
2015.

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD

In 2016, MFI JOBS EAD signed 103 credit and leasing contracts and granted financing to end
customers amounting to BGN 6,892 thousand. Also, non-profit organisations transferred by assignment
contracts 17 leasing agreements for the total amount of BGN 180 thousand.

At 31 December 2016, the active loan and leasing portfolio of the company amounted to BGN 12,218
thousand presented as amortised debt prior to amortization and consisting of 337 lending and leasing
transactions. The company also has receivables from 13 non-profit organizations worth BGN 484 thousand
prior to impairment.

By decision of April of 2016, the Board of Directors of the company approved a change in the rules and
procedures, adopted at MFI JOBS EAD and related to the inclusion of leasing agricultural land in the product
range of the company with an initial funding allocation of BGN 300 thousand. In October 2016, the institution
went on to increase the maximum amount of financing, provided in the form of financial leasing, for movable
property from EUR 25 thousand to BGN 100 thousand.

On 12 September 2016, MFI JOBS EAD contracted a collateral line in favour of the Bulgarian micro-,
small- and medium-sized enterprises, provided by National Guarantee Fund EAD in conformity with the
financial agreements for the implementation of guarantee-related activities in support of the Rural
Development Program for the period 2007 — 2013, which was signed between the Ministry of Agriculture and
Foods and National Guarantee Fund EAD. The agreed collateral line will facilitate the access to funds on the
part of the Bulgarian micro-, small- and medium-sized enterprises by reducing the costs of servicing the loans
to beneficiaries included in the guaranteed portfolio /annual interest rate, penalty interest in arrears and more/,
by decreasing the cost of the offered collateral and by financing beneficiaries whose projects do not get the
support of the commercial banks due to high credit risks or the lack of sufficient collateral.
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The company also uses external financing in the form of a credit line from BDB AD as a target resource
for subsequent financing (on-lending) through crediting or via handing over assets under the conditions of
financial lease to end beneficiaries, micro-, small- and medium-sized enterprises within the meaning of the
Law on SMEs, at parameters predetermined by the Bank for the sub-transactions at a contracted amount of
BGN 5,000 thousand and a residual utilization sum amounting to BGN 3,300 thousand, plus a credit contract
under the program of Bulgarian Development Bank AD for indirect micro financing with support from the
European Investment Fund and the European Microfinance Facility "Progress” of the European Union with a
contracted amount of EUR 1,875 thousand.

The total sum of the assets MFI JOBS EAD amounted to BGN 12,920 thousand at 31 December 2016.

By the end of 2016, the liabilities of the company amount to BGN 3,771 thousand and these consist of
BGN 3,670 thousand utilized under the credit agreement with BDB AD for indirect micro financing with support
from the European Investment Fund and the European Microfinance Facility "Progress" of the European
Union, as well as BGN 101 thousand on other liabilities.

The equity of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD amounts to BGN 9,149 thousand formed by share
capital amounting to BGN 7,643 thousand, reserves amounting to BGN 1,352 thousand, and operating profit
amounting to BGN 154 thousand.

The financial result reported for the year 2016 is a profit before taxation amounting to BGN 171
thousand.

National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF)

The National Guarantee Fund has, as its main goal, the provision of guarantees in favour of SMEs,
thus facilitating the companies’ access to financing.

Issued at the Fund's own risk, the guarantees from the Fund may cover up to 50 percent of the debt.
With the change in the Bulgarian Development Bank Act, promulgated in State Gazette, issue 102 dated 21
December 2012, the guarantees issued by NGF EAD, concerning guarantee schemes according to the Rural
Development Program for the period 2007 - 2013 and the Operational programme for development of fisheries
sector for the period 2007 - 2013, can cover up to 80 percent of the debt.

The first guarantee scheme of NGF was launched in 2009, and loans could be included until February
2013. The first guarantee scheme includes agreements signed with 11 commercial banks. Under this scheme,
the NGF issues guarantees on loans to SMEs amounting to BGN 500 thousand for investment, working capital
and bank guarantees. The maximum duration of the guarantees is up to 10 years. The NGF approves the
inclusion of loans in the guaranteed portfolio on an individual basis. Within the period of inclusion of credits in
the guarantee portfolio the NGF has approved guarantees in the amount of BGN 168,000 thousand for credits
amounting to BGN 391,000 thousand. The total number of supported enterprises, under this scheme, is 2,325.
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Under the 2014-2015 guarantee scheme, agreements were concluded for portfolio guarantees with 13
commercial banks totalling BGN 192,000 thousand. The guarantee portfolio includes only new loans to SMEs
at a maximum value of the security, granted by NGF EAD, up to 50 per cent of the sum of the loan and to not
more than BGN 500 thousand in all. During the inclusion period for loans between March 2014 and September
2015, granted under the program, the guarantees issued amounted to BGN 87,000 thousand for credits in
the amount of BGN 200,000 thousand. The SMEs supported reached 770, half of which are micro-enterprises,
40 per cent are small- and 10 per cent are medium-sized enterprises.

As of 31 December 2016, the approved amount of securities, included in the portfolio of partner banks,
amounted to BGN 64,323 thousand and the amount of the guaranteed debt was BGN 55,662 thousand.

At the beginning of the month of October 2015, and until early January 2016, guarantee agreements
were signed between NGF EAD and 10 commercial banks under the guarantee scheme 2015 - 2017, totalling
to BGN 326,000 thousand. Under this scheme the NGF guarantees up to 50 per cent of the loaned amount,
but not more than BGN 1 million. The deadline for inclusion of loans in the guarantee portfolio ends on 31
March 2017. As of the start of the guarantee scheme, and until 31 December 2016, 1,500 SMEs have received
support and the total sum of the issued guarantees amounts to BGN 201,205 thousand.

At 31 December 2016 the approved amount of securities, included in the portfolio of the partner banks,
amounted to BGN 201,205 thousand and the amount of guaranteed debt was BGN 180,118 thousand.

The guarantee program in support of the beneficiaries under the Operational programme for
development of fisheries sector for the period 2007 - 2013 (OPDFS) is a financial engineering tool and is a
process of issuing guarantees to supplement the collateral on loans, extended by the banks to credit receivers
for the implementation of projects, approved for assistance, as per the following measures included in the
Operational Program:

Measure 1.3: Investments  on  board the fishing vessels and  selectivity
Measure 2.1: Productive investments in aquaculture
Measure 2.5: Inland fishing
Measure 2.6: Investments in processing and marketing of products and fisheries and aquaculture
Measure 3.3:  Investments in the reconstruction and modernization of fishing ports, unloading sites

and boat shelters.

Included also is priority axle Ne 4: Sustainable development of fishing areas set in the projects for a
part of the beneficiaries of priority axles first, second and third and all beneficiaries in axle 4 of the OPDFS.

Within the period of the inclusion of credit in the guarantee portfolio, NGF EAD has approved
guarantees amounting to BGN 21 million for loans amounting to BGN 31 million. The total number of
supported enterprises, according to the scheme, is 25.

The guaranteed debt at book value as at 31 December 2016 amounted to BGN 7,775 thousand.

The guarantee scheme, set up in support of the beneficiaries of the Rural Development Program 2007-
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2013, is an instrument of financial engineering approved with the Eighth amendment of the PRD and is a
process of issuing guarantees for supplementing the collateral on credits extended by the credit receiver's
banks, for the realization of projects approved under Measure 121 “Farm modernization®. Measure 122
"Improving the economic value of forests”, and Measure 123 “Adding value to agricultural and forestry
products” from the PRD of the Republic of Bulgaria RDP (2007 - 2013).

Within the period of inclusion of loans in the guarantee portfolio, as of the beginning of 2013 and until
30 November 2015, the NGF has approved guarantees amounting to BGN 185,606 thousand on loans
amounting to BGN 238,111 thousand. This scheme has supported 544 beneficiaries under the program for
projects in the total amount of BGN 375,000 thousand.

The guaranteed debt at book value as at 31 December 2016 amounted to BGN 36,891 thousand.

The guarantee scheme, set up in support of the beneficiaries of the Rural Development Program 2007-
2013, 2014-2020 and the companies from the Crop and Livestock - Guarantee scheme - MAF 2016-2018 is
a joint scheme with the MAF and it is being implemented with funds from released means under the guarantee
scheme RDP 2007-2013 (item 5 above) amounting to BGN 50 million. During the second quarter, NGF and
MAF have negotiated the parameters of the new guarantee scheme and invitations were sent to the
commercial banks for participation. Under the guarantee scheme, agreements were signed with 17
commercial banks and MFI Jobs as a part of the BDB Group providing financing of up to BGN 300 thousand.

From the start of the scheme, until 31 December 2016, the NGF has issued guarantees amounting to
BGN 12,227 thousand on loans in the total amount of BGN 24,486 thousand.

The guaranteed debt at book value as at 31 December 2016 amounted to BGN 6,185 thousand.

In the month of December 2016, the European Investment Fund (EIF) and National Guarantee Fund
EAD (NGF EAD) concluded an agreement which provides for an additional EUR 40 million for the financing
of small- and medium-sized enterprises in Bulgaria under the COSME program set up by the European
Commission. The funds are provided with the support of the European Fund for Strategic Investment (EFSI),
which is at the basis of the Investment Plan for Europe (the Juncker Plan). EIF provides a guarantee line in
the amount of EUR 20 million, with which the NGF will support a financing plan for EUR 40 million to the
SMEs in Bulgaria, which experience difficulties in providing funds for the security requirements.

The transfer of the project "Guarantee Fund for Micro Crediting" from the Ministry of Labour and Social
Policy to Bulgarian Development Bank AD was executed on the grounds of §2 of the Bulgarian Development
Bank Act and Decision Ne 309 dated 3 May 2007 of the Council of Ministers of the Republic of Bulgaria. After
the adoption of the project by BDB AD Group, the administration of the guaranteed loans was assigned to the
NGF.

At 31 December 2016 the portfolio, guaranteed by BDB AD Group, included 228 micro credits with a
commitment of the bank in the amount of BGN 2,321 thousand.
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The total revenue of the company in 2016 amounted to BGN 1,078 thousand, of which interest income
amounted to BGN 948 thousand, or 88 per cent of the total revenue. The financial result, after taxation, from
the activities of National Guarantee Fund EAD for the year 2016 is presented as profit in the amount of BGN
2,768 thousand.

Based on the results from the test to assess the risk of the guarantee portfolio by the end of 2016,
management of NGF has decided that the provision coverage of the portfolio should be reduced from 4.92
per cent for 2015 to 1.79 per cent for 2016, relative to the commitment undertaken by NGF EAD. Based on
the risk assessment of the guarantee portfolio, the allocated provisions ensure an adequate coverage of the
anticipated future losses.

The income of the Fund during 2016 amounts to BGN 3,452 thousand (a 16.00 per cent increase
compared to 2015), which is derived from two main sources:

- Interest income on the invested capital of the fund in deposits and government securities amounting
to BGN 1,609 thousand;
- Income from commissions fees on issued guarantees amounting to BGN 1,830 thousand.
The main expenses of the Fund, made in connection with its activities during 2016 were, are in the
administrative sphere and they amount to BGN 1,084 thousand.

- During the reporting period the reversed provisions and impairments amounted to BGN 723 thousand.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In the course of its ordinary activity the BDB Group companies may be exposed to various financial
risks that, if occur, may result in losses and deterioration of the Group’s financial stability. Financial risks are
identified, measured and monitored using different control mechanisms for their management and for
avoidance of any unjustified concentration of a particular risk. The risk management process is essential for
the Group’s profitability and existence. The most significant risks are the following: credit risk, market risk and
operational risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the main risk for the Group and therefore, its management is fundamental for its activity.
Credit risk management is performed in accordance with the Bulgarian Development Bank Act and the
effective laws and regulations of the Republic of Bulgaria regulating credit activity, as well as the international
regulations and best banking practices.

In assessing and managing the credit (including the counterparty risk) risk of its exposures, the BDB
Group applies models for internal rating generation. Loan portfolio quality monitoring, control and assessment
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units are established and function within the BDB Group. Loan portfolio current monitoring, reporting and
management procedures and mechanisms are implemented, which require periodical, and if necessary,
extraordinary, reports on the financial and credit status of each borrower and liable persons. If new
circumstances are established, which could result in changes in the borrowers’ risk profile, including in higher
risks of default of the credit exposure, adequate and conforming to the debtor’s risk profile measures are
taken. In managing its credit risk, the BDB Group applies an intra-bank system of limits by economic sectors,
instruments, and other credit restrictions and limits on concentration, and the results from their monitoring are
reported to the competent authorities. The system of limits is reviewed and updated periodically.

Market risks

In managing the foreign currency risk the BDB Group follows the principle of maintaining minimum
open currency positions within the specified limits. Foreign currency positions are not formed with speculative
purposes, but are due to foreign currency transactions arising in the ordinary course of activity of the Group.
The Group does not carry out significant transactions and does not hold significant open positions in
currencies other than EUR and BGN. Until the exchange rate of the Bulgarian Lev is pegged to the Euro, the
Euro is not considered as a currency bearing FX risk for the cash flows and the financial position of the Group.

As part of the interest rate risk management, regular reports on financial assets and liabilities are
prepared, divided in time buckets depending on their sensitivity to changes in interest rates. In case of
misbalances in periods, an assessment of expected changes in interest rate curve is applied and potential
risk for the interest income and capital of the Group is measured.

The risks from transactions on the money and capital markets are controlled by a system of limits,
reflecting the risk profile of the investments and certain parameters of the portfolio: such as counterparty,
financial instrument, maturity, etc. The system of limits is reviewed periodically, and the implementation of
these limits is subject to daily monitoring. The portfolio of securities, formed by the BDB Group in the group
for the purposes of investing free cash, is characterized by a short duration, low interest rate risk and relatively
liquid securities, issued by reliable institutions, i.e. they bear a low price risk. As there is no trading portfolio
in accordance to the regulatory provisions, there is no regulatory requirement to the BDB Group for capital
allocation to cover the market risk.

The BDB Group's liquidity is managed by closely monitored ratios indicating the liquidity position by
periods. Liquidity risk is measured by applying additional scenarios for cash flows from operations. Measured
and monitored are also the liquidity buffers of the BDB Group and the additional sources of funding in cases
of market-wide or idiosyncratic shocks. The compliance with the ratios indicating the liquidity position is
monitored and reported regularly to the competent authorities.
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Operational risk

Operational risk management is implemented through close observation and recording of all
operational events, which occur in the activity of various units and processes of the Group. Events of higher
frequency as well as higher severity serve as bases for the operational risk analyses in different scenarios.
The operational risk is measurable and controllable as in the process of work an operational event registry is
kept, which is used as a basis for analysing and improving the work processes and minimising the conditions
that would potentially result in operational events and loss for the Group. The required capital to cover the
operational risk is calculated by applying the “Basic indicator approach” in compliance with the applicable
regulatory framework.

Control environment

The BDB Group follows management philosophy and operating style, subject to the principles of
conservatism in the performance of contracts according to the strategic objectives of the Bank set in the
Bulgarian Development Bank Act. In connection with the special role of the BDB Group as an instrument of
state policy, the Group has adopted a specialized approach to the control of the environment, where within
the structure of the Bank a number of departments with specific control functions are set up - Risk
Management Department, Liquidity Management Department, Planning, Analysis and Regulations
Department, Legal Depariment, Classified Information Department, Compliance Department. Along with the
periodic update of the internal regulatory framework, this approach allows management to take timely
measures to control the risks, along with the traditional components of the controlled environment, ensured
by the direct involvement of the bank's management in the preparation and verification of the financial
statements and the activities of Accounting and Internal Audit Departments, acting in full compliance with the
principles of the system of three pillar controls, introduced by the European regulations.

Management assigns powers and responsibilities for the operational activities in conformity with the
developed internal regulatory framework, which is consistent with the national and European legislation. In
order to ensure the relations, regarding the accountability and reporting process and the hierarchy of powers,
a number of specialized committees have been set up to the Management Board and the Supervisory Board
of BDB, as stated in the Declaration of Corporate Governance which is an integral part of the present financial
report.

The Bank has developed an internal regulatory framework, which includes policies and
communications, directed at ensuring that the personnel is familiar with the targets of the company, that it
knows how the individual actions of each one of them are intrinsically linked and how they contribute to the
achievements of these goals as well as who will bear the responsibility for the activities and what will the
methods of reporting the final results from these activities be.
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The Bank has built an information system, including related business processes, ensuring the quality
and control of the financial reporting and communication process.
The Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee to the Supervisory Board of the Bank conduct
the current monitoring of the system of controls.

BANKING REGULATIONS ACCORDING TO THE BULGARIAN LEGISLATION

In accordance with the requirements of the laws and regulations governing the banking activity in the
country, BDB should comply with the limits related to certain ratios in its consolidated financial statements.
As at 31 December 2016, BDB has complied with all regulatory requirements of the BNB and the Bulgarian
legislation.

The capital adequacy ratio on a consolidated basis as of 31 December 2016 was 48.45 per cent (31
December 2015 - 56.22 per cent). The coverage of assets with capital buffers substantially exceeds the
required minimum regulatory level.

CREDIT RATING AND INTERNATIONAL ACTIVITIES

In the beginning of 2016 the international rating agency "Fitch Ratings" performed its regular annual
review and reaffirmed all ratings of Bulgarian Development Bank AD. The long-term investment rating of the
bank remains “BBB". The rating’s perspective is stable, which maintains the position of BDB among the banks
with the highest credit rating in the country. The short-term rating, and the support rating, are confirmed
respectively at levels F3 and F2. The “Fitch Ratings" of BDB were reaffirmed at the beginning of 2017.

BDB continues to develop successful partnership with leading European and international financial
institutions by participating in international specialised associations. These relations enable the Bank to be
preferred business partner, to benefit from the best banking practices, know-how, information for financial
products, and to participate in their development and implementation.

BDB has direct access to up-to-date general and specific information about the newest changes in the
legislative base at EU level and its implementation in the area of the development banks, and has an
opportunity to participate in the process of negotiating these changes. Membership in international specialized
associations allows the Bank to participate in seminars and summits with the European Commission
representatives and its divisions.

BDB has been an active member of the European Association of Public Banks (EAPB) since 2005.
The membership in EAPB contributes for the exchange of experience and best practices between BDB and
the European public banks.
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BDB has been a full member at the Network of European Financial Institutions (NEFI), an organisation
in which 17 institutions from different European countries participate, since 2007. The mission of the NEFl is
to improve the exchange of information and ideas in order to facilitate the access to SME financing.

In 2016 BDB continued its participation in the European Association of Long-Term Investors (ELTI).
BDB is a co-founder of this organisation.

BDB is a shareholder of the European Investment Fund (EIF), holding 3 shares of its equity, and
participates regularly in the discussions of the Group of the financial institutions — shareholders, where the
guidelines for development of the activities and policy of the EIF are discussed. BDB participates also in the
on-line voting on various topics, such as the enrolment of new shareholders and other organisational issues.

GROUP GOVERNANCE

Bulgarian Development Bank AD has a two-tier management structure consisting of Supervisory Board
and Management Board. There were no changes in the management body’s structure in 2016.

In 2016 the following individuals were members of the Supervisory Board (SB) of BDB: Atanas
Slavchev Katzartchev — Chairman of SB, Kiril Milanov Ananiev — Vice Chairman and member of SB, Dimitar
Kirilov Dimitrov — member of SB.

In 2016 the following individuals were members of the Management Board (MB) of BDB: Angel Kirilov
Gekov - Chairman of MB and Executive Director; Biliyan Lyubomirov Balev - Vice Chairman of MB and
Executive Director; lliya Vasilev Kirchev — member of MB and Executive Director. The Bank is represented
jointly by any two of the three Executive Directors.

The persons managing the Bank in 2016 were paid a total of BGN 1,169,000. No contracts, which fall
beyond the ordinary course of business or significantly deviate from market conditions, within the meaning of
Article 240b of the Commercial Act, were concluded between members of the SB, MB or related persons on
one side, and the Bank on the other side.

The participation of members of the SB and MB in commercial entities as general partners with
unlimited liability, or possession of more than 25 percent of the capital of a legal entity, as well as participation
in the management of other companies or associations as procurators, managers or Board members, within
the meaning of Article 247, paragraph 2, item 4 of the Commercial Act, is as follows:

The members of the SB of BDB have the following participations in the management of other
companies:

o Atanas Slavchev Katzartchev does not participate in the capital and the management of other
companies.
»  Kiril Milanov Ananiev does not participate in the capital and the management of other companies.
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e Dimitar Kirilov Dimitrov is a partner at PGD OOD (UIC 175247211) and holds 50% of the company
shares. The company does not carry out any activities. Mr Dimitrov participates in the management of
“Eurohold Bulgaria” AD, UIC 175187337, as member of the MB.
The members of the MB of BDB have the following participations in the capital and management of
other companies:
o Angel Kirilov Gekov participates in the management of National Guarantee Fund EAD, UIC 200321435
as Chairman of the Board of Directors.
Mr Gekov participates in the management of “PCA” OOD, UIC 201477526 and holds 25% of the
company's capital. Mr Gekov holds 19% of the capital of BULGARPLOD CHERRY OOD, UIC 200204916.
e Biliyan Lyubomirov Balev participates in the management of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD,
UIC 201390740 as Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Mr Balev is a partner in Fininvest OOD and holds 99% of the capital of the company. The company
is a foreign legal entity, established and existing under the laws of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland. Mr Balev is a member of the administrative board of the European Association of Public
Banks (EAPB) domiciled in Brussels, Belgium. He is also the sole proprietor of the capital and general
manager of the company Fin Yachting, registered according to the laws of Malta.

e lliya Vasilev Kirchev participates in the management of Microfinance Institution JOBS EAD, UIC
201390740 as Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors.
Mr. Kirchev is a member of the management bodies of the following non-profit organisations:
1. Foundation “Academy 2007”, town of Kardzhali, UIC 108688838;
2. Cultural Center “Dr. Hristo Adjarov"- Plovdiv, UIC 175962774.
BDB is a sole shareholder of the capital of its subsidiaries NGF EAD and MFI Jobs EAD.

National Guarantee Fund EAD
NGF EAD has a one-tier management system - Board of Directors (BD), which in 2016 was
composed of three members.

Board of Directors
« Angel Gekov - Chairman of the Board of Directors
« Samuil Shiderov - Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors

Samuil Shiderov is the Executive Director of the National Guarantee Fund. He holds a bachelor's
degree in "Banking" and a master's degree in "Finance" from the University of Economics in Varna. He began
his career at the end of 2001 at the SG Expressbank in Sofia. From 2003 to 2011 he worked in the Risk
Management Department of Raiffeisenbank Bulgaria, where he took office successively as a credit manager,
problematic loans specialist, head of sector and deputy head of department. From October 2011 to December
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2012 he was head of a department at DSK Bank. Shiderov has been the Executive Director of the National
Guarantee Fund since the beginning of 2013. On 18 June 2015 Samuel Shiderov was elected to the Board
of Directors of the European Association of Guarantee Institutions (AESM).

« Alexander Georgiev is a member of the Board of Directors.

Alexander Georgiev is a member of the Board of Directors of the National Guarantee Fund from
March 2015. He has a master's degree in "Economics and Industrial Management" from the Academy of
Economics "Dimitar Apostolov Tzenov" — town of Svishtov. Georgiev has extensive experience at expert and
managerial positions in the insurance and financial services sphere.

The Fund is represented jointly by any two of the members of the Board of Directors.

The members of the Board of Directors of NGF EAD do not hold shares of the Fund and do not have
special rights to acquire such shares.

No contracts within the meaning of Article 240b of the Commercial Act (outside the scope of the usual
activities or significantly deviating from markets conditions) are concluded between the members of the BD
of NGF EAD or related persons on one side and the company on the other side.

The participation within the meaning of Article 247, paragraph 2, item 4 of the Commercial Act, of
members of the BD of NGF EAD in commercial companies as general partners, holding of more than 25
percent of the capital of another company, as well as their participation in the management of other companies
or associations as procurators, managers or Board members, is as follows:

« Angel Kirilov Gekov is Executive Director and Chairman of the Management Board of Bulgarian
Development Bank AD. Mr Gekov participates in the management of “PCA” OOD, UIC 201477526
and holds 25% of the company's capital. Mr Gekov holds 19% of the capital of BULGARPLOD
CHERRY OOD, UIC 200204916.

« Alexander Georgiev is a sole owner of KA SERVICE EQOD, UIC 114672190, Brandi BG EOOD,
UIC 202605174, SP ,Alexander Georgiev — AG*, UIC 824083350.

« Samuil Pavlov Shiderov does not have participations in other companies within the meaning of
Article 247, paragraph 2, item 4 of the Commercial Act. Mr Shiderov is a member of the Board of
Directors of European Association of Guarantee Institutions — AECM - an international non-profit
organisation domiciled in Brussels, Belgium.
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Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD
MFI Jobs EAD also has a one-tier management system - Board of Directors (BD), which consists of
three members.

Board of Directors

« Blliyan Balev - Chairman of the Board of Directors

« Elijah Kirchev - Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors

« Kostadin Munev - Member of the Board of Directors and CEO

Kostadin Munev holds a master's degree in “Finance” from the University of National and World
Economy in Sofia in 1996. In 2011 he was elected procurator of Micro Financing Institution JOBS PLC and
Head of Lending and Leasing Department of the company and from April 2013 he is elected a Board member.
In April 2014 he was elected Executive Director of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD. Munev has worked
as chief accountant for Bulgarian enterprises and non-profit associations. He has extensive experience in
micro-financing obtained in his capacity of manager of financial leasing in the JOBS project for the UN
Development program during the period 2003 - 2010. Munev has participated in numerous international
conferences on topics related to micro-financing and is the co-author of the publications "Guide to micro
crediting in Europe", "From Exclusion to inclusion through micro financing', "Market research of micro
crediting for the purposes of the European Investment Fund - International research in Western and Eastern
Europe: a Report on Bulgaria". Munev is fluent in English and Russian.

The Company is represented jointly by any two of the members of the Board of Directors.

No contracts, which fall beyond the ordinary course of business or significantly deviate from market
conditions, within the meaning of Article 240b of the Commercial Act, were concluded between members of
the BD of MFI Jobs EAD or related persons on one side, and the Company on the other side.

The participation within the meaning of Article 247, paragraph 2, item 4 of the Commercial Act, of
members of the BD of MFI Jobs EAD in commercial companies as general partners, holding of more than 25
percent of the capital of another company, as well as their participation in the management of other companies
or associations as procurators, managers or Board members, is as follows:

e Biliyan Lyubomirov Balev is Executive Director and Vice Chairman of Bulgarian Development Bank AD.

e Mr Balev is a partner in Fininvest OOD and holds 99% of the capital of the company. The
company is a foreign legal entity, established and existing under the laws of the United Kingdom of Great
Britain and Northern Ireland. Mr Balev is a member of the administrative board of the European Association
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of Public Banks (EAPB) domiciled in Brussels, Belgium. He is also the sole proprietor of the capital and
general manager of the company Fin Yachting, registered as per the laws of Malta. Mr. Balev is a member of
the administrative board of the European association of public banks (EAPB) based in Brussels, Belgium.

o lliya Vasilev Kirchev is Executive Director and member of the MB in the Bank. Mr. Kirchev is also
a member of the management bodies of the following non-profit organisations: Foundation “Academy 2007”,
town of Kardzhali, UIC 108688838; Cultural Center “Dr. Hristo Adjarov 2010” - Plovdiv, UIC 175962774

Kostadin Bozhikov Munev does not have participations in other companies within the meaning of Article 247, paragraph
2, item 4 of the Commercial Act.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND COMPANIES UNDER THE CONTROL OF THE STATE

The owner of BDB is the Bulgarian State, hence the BDB Group companies are related parties to the
government authorities of the Republic of Bulgaria and the companies over which it exercises control. The
transactions with related parties and companies under common control with the State are disclosed in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements of BDB for 2016.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND BUSINESS GOALS. FINANCIAL GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The BDB Group is a key instrument and a channel for conducting government economic policies,
including in specific areas, regions, industries and social groups. The Bank actively collaborates with all
government state structures in order to ensure maximum impact of the public funds targeted on support of
the economic development.

The BDB Group operates in full transparency and applies the best banking and management
practices. A core objective of the Group is to identify and analyse the sectors of the economy experiencing
difficulties in obtaining financing, and to undertake the necessary measures to facilitate their access to
financing.

Facilitating SMEs access to bank financing is not the only priority of the Bank. The Group supports
government efforts for acceleration of economic growth in the country by means of providing expertise and
performing activities in all area of economic policies, facilitating the absorption of the EU structural funds,
enhancing the export potential of the country, etc.

In the light of the foregoing, the main principle underlying the Group’s activity is to supplement the
market and not to allow displacement of the traditional commercial banks from the market. The objective of
the Group's activity is only to compensate any existing market shortages in financing certain segments and
thus, to adjust their risk profile and to encourage the commercial banks to develop their exposures to these
segments.
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The BDB Group’s strategic goals are:

o To facilitate the economic growth by increasing its exposure in support of regions and sectors
of the economy with suppressed growth;

e To stimulate the economic activity of the investors for the modernization of the material and
technological basis and for boosting the competitiveness of the economy;

e To facilitate the economic growth of the regions through financing, priority syndicated by
nature, of sizable and infrastructural, by their nature, investments;

o To support the development of competitive production initiatives and sectors of the economy
of proven export potential;

e To facilitate, jointly with the other institutions, the access to financing of innovative and newly
established companies;

o To facilitate and support the direction of capital flows to the Bulgarian economy.

The commercial policy of the Group foresees to preserve the two approaches, adopted so far, for the
support of SME sector: direct lending and indirect programs. Additionally, the Bank will strictly adhere to its
core principles:

e Supplementing the market and staying away from the competition with the commercial banks;
e Following a liberal pricing policy with adequate coverage of the risks.

Regarding the direct lending, the BDB Group will further develop product lines, focused on problem
areas of SME'’s activities, which need special support. In this respect, priorities will be pre-export, export and
bridge financing. Traditionally, the Bank will continue to provide funding to SMEs with extended initial maturity
and relaxed collateral requirements.

Considering the specifics of both its product lines and the limited branch network, the Group will
realise its priorities using all available legal forms, including through the establishment of the Equity
Investment Fund envisaged in Bulgarian Development Bank Act.

A key priority in the commercial efforts will be the development of indirect SME financing programs.
These programs will be significantly diversified with regard to the thematic focus and maturity. Product lines
with greater flexibility in terms of maturity, interest rates, etc. will be developed, which will make them easily
adaptable to the changing market conditions and thus to the requirements of the partner banks. The major
accent will be placed on combining the provisions of resources with risk sharing adequate to the objectives
of the group.

The Group considers that given the current highly liquid environment in the banking sector,
underwriting of the incremental risk (the additional risk that restrains bank financing), together with partner
banks, would be the key to the success of indirect lending programs.

The BDB Group will collaborate with the management bodies of the EU operational programs in
Bulgaria, by identifying existing financial gaps of specific measures and will propose solutions to resolve them,
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including specific forms of financing. The BDB Group intends to maintain close consultations with authorities
in order to become an integrated part of the overall model of managing public resources for the support of the
real economy. The Bank considers its participation as an essential step in the improvement of the
effectiveness of measures in support of the Bulgarian economy.

Key strategic objectives and policies of the Group within horizon of Strategy 2015-2018 will be as
follows:

. Reallocation of the assets in such a manner that indirect SMEs financing obtains a major
contribution. Target ratio of indirect to direct financing should be 60:40;

) Realization of a sustainable process in the creation and development of targeted product lines
under the two main approaches for SME financing;

o Conservative assessment of risks and maintenance of high level of impairment coverage of
problem loans.

The Group intends to significantly diversify its funding sources. Expectations are for an increase in
bond instruments in the formation of liability where balancing, in terms of the international and the domestic
market, will be made currently and depending on the specific market conditions.

The Group will continue to support Bulgarian State initiatives promoting the economic and social
development in the country. More specifically, in 2017 the Bank will continue to support the implementation
of the National program for rehabilitation of multifamily buildings.

In 2016, MFI JOBS EAD signed 103 credit and leasing contracts and granted financing to end
customers amounting to BGN 6,892 thousand. Also, non-profit organisations transferred by assignment
contracts 17 leasing agreements for the total amount of BGN 180 thousand.

At 31 December 2016, the active loan and leasing portfolio of the company amounted to BGN 12,218
thousand presented as amortised debt prior to amortization and consisting of 337 lending and leasing
transactions. The company also has receivables from 13 non-profit organizations worth BGN 484 thousand
prior to impairment.

By decision of April of 2016, the Board of Directors of the company approved a change in the rules
and procedures, adopted at MFI JOBS EAD and related to the inclusion of leasing agricultural land in the
product range of the company with an initial funding allocation of BGN 300 thousand. In October 2016, the
institution went on to increase the maximum amount of financing, provided in the form of financial leasing, for
movable property from EUR 25 thousand to BGN 100 thousand.

On 12 September 2016, MFI JOBS EAD contracted a collateral line in favour of the Bulgarian micro-
, small- and medium-sized enterprises, provided by National Guarantee Fund EAD in conformity with the
financial agreements for the implementation of guarantee-related activities in support of the Rural
Development Program for the period 2007 - 2013, which was signed between the Ministry of Agriculture and
Foods and National Guarantee Fund EAD. The agreed collateral line will facilitate the access to funds on the
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part of the Bulgarian micro-, small- and medium-sized enterprises by reducing the costs of servicing the loans
to beneficiaries included in the guaranteed portfolio /annual interest rate, penalty interest in arrears and more/,
by decreasing the cost of the offered collateral and by financing beneficiaries whose projects do not get the
support of the commercial banks due to high credit risks or the lack of sufficient collateral.

The company also uses external financing in the form of a credit line from BDB AD as a target
resource for subsequent financing (on-lending) through crediting or via handing over assets under the
conditions of financial lease to end beneficiaries, micro-, small- and medium-sized enterprises within the
meaning of the Law on SMEs, at parameters predetermined by the Bank for the sub-transactions at a
contracted amount of BGN 5,000 thousand and a residual utilization sum amounting to BGN 3,300 thousand,
plus a credit contract under the program of Bulgarian Development Bank AD for indirect micro financing with
support from the European Investment Fund and the European Microfinance Facility "Progress” of the
European Union with a contracted amount of EUR 1,875 thousand.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control process includes the following components:

(a) the control environment - a description of the control environment may be found in section. VL. “Risk
Management" section 4. "Control Environment" and in item XIX "Statement of Corporate Governance" section
3 - "Control Environment" of this report.

(b) the process of assessing the risk of an enterprise is a description of the control assessment of the
risks made by the Bank which can be found in section XIX. Corporate governance statement section “Risk
Management";

(c) information system, including the related business processes relevant to financial reporting and
communication - a description of the information system of the Bank can be found in the section on “Risk
Management";

(d) control activities - description of the control activities of the bank can be found in the sections "Risk
Management’, section XIX “Corporate governance statement” section "Risk Management Structure" and
section "Management Board Committees”.

(e) ongoing monitoring of the controls - a description of the monitoring and control activity of the bank
can be found in section XIX "Corporate governance statement” and sections "Risk Management Structure”
and section "Management Board Committees".
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EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE BALANCE SHEET

The financier Assoc. Prof. Krasimir Angarski was elected as a member of the Supervisory Board of the
Bulgarian Development Bank (BDB) at an extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders. He replaced
Kirit Ananiev, who was appointed Finance Minister in the caretaker government. The replacement was done
in compliance with the legal provisions, as in his capacity as Minister of the Ministry of Finance, which is the
principal of BDB, Kiril Ananiev is not allowed to be a member of the Supervisory Board of BDB.

Assoc. Prof. Krasimir Angarski was born in 1953 in Sofia. He graduated from the University of
Economics "Karl Marx". Since 1980 he had worked in the Ministry of Finance, reaching the position of tax
administration director for the Sofia district and of Sofia. In 1994-1995 Assoc. Prof. Angarski was the CEQ of
the Bank Consolidation Company and participated in the management of various state enterprises.

From 24 March to 21 May 1997 he was a minister without portfolio in the cabinet of Stefan Sofiyanski
and was actively involved in the preparation for the introduction of the currency board. Then he became
secretary for economic affairs of President Petar Stoyanov.

In 2001-2004, Assoc. Prof. Krasimir Angarski was the CEO of DSK Bank and in early 2005 he took the
lead of DZI Bank. In early 2007 he became an adviser at Postbank. He teaches at the University of National
and World Economy and is the leader of the group developing the currency board laws.

MANAGEMENT'S REPRESENTATIONS

Management declares that the attached annual consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the property and financial position of the Group at the end of 2016 and of the calculation of the financial result for the
year in accordance with the effective law. Suitable accounting policies have been used and applied consistently. The
necessary judgments are made in accordance with the principle of prudence in the preparation of the annual
consolidated financial accounting statement at the year-end. Management applies consistently the applicable
accounting standards and the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Management of the Bank endeavours to maintain an adequate accounting system that complies with the
applicable accounting standards. The annual consolidated financial statements disclose the standing of the Group with
a reasonable degree of accuracy.

All measures are taken to protect the assets of the Group, to prevent fraud and violations of laws in the
country and regulations of BNB on the banking activity.

This report was appfoved ory14March 2017 by the Manage
EXECUTIVE DI

nt Board of BDB and signed by:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Principles of corporate governance

As a financial institution established according to a special law, while applying all the regulatory norms
of the National Bank and European legislation and the implementation of its mission to be a sustainable
instrument of state policy for promoting the development of small and medium sized businesses in Bulgaria,
the BDB Group has targeted its activities to becoming the benchmark for good corporate governance and
corporate responsibility; to consistently and strictly comply with the National Corporate Governance Code of
2007, the Code of Ethics of BDB by 2013, the Code of Ethics of the Internal Audit Group of BDB 2015, the
laws and regulatory requirements in Bulgaria, the norms of European law and good corporate and banking
practices.

Bulgarian Development Bank provides services as an investment intermediary according to the
provisions of the Public Offering of Securities Act (POSA). As an investment intermediary, the bank must
meet certain requirements to protect the interests of its customers according to the Financial Instruments
Directive Act (FIMA) and Decree 38 issued by the Financial Supervision Commission (FSC). The Bank should
also comply with the requirements of Directive 2014/65/EC on the financial instruments markets (MiFID Ii)
and Regulation 600/2014 of the EU relating to the Financial Instruments Markets (MiFIR). The Bank has
established and applies an organization associated with the conclusion and execution of contracts with
customers, with information requests from the customers, with record keeping and preservation of the
customer's assets in accordance with the aforementioned national and European regulations. The Bank has
established a system of internal rules and internal control procedures to ensure full compliance with the
regulations referred to above.

The Bulgarian Development Bank Group (the Group) includes Bulgarian Development Bank AD and
its two subsidiaries - National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF) and Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD (MFI),
in which BDB is the sole proprietor.

In addition to the group of BDB subsidiaries NGF and IFls Jobs, BDB has no significant direct or
indirect shareholdings (including indirect shareholdings through pyramid structures and cross-shareholdings)
within the meaning of Article 85 of Directive 2001/34/EC.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD

Bulgarian Development Bank AD (BDB, the "Bank”) was established on 11 March 1999 as a joint-stock
company according to the name of Encouragement Bank AD.

On 23 April 2008 the Bulgarian parliament accepted Bulgarian Development Bank Act (ZBBR, Bul.).
This law regulates the scope of the Bank's activities, including those of its subsidiaries envisaged for
incorporation.
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The headquarters of the "Bulgarian Development Bank" AD are located in the city of Sofia 1000,
Sredets district, 1 Dyakon Ignatii Street.

At 31 December 2016 Bulgarian Development Bank had no branches.

BDB is a key instrument and a channel for conducting government economic policies, including in
specific areas, regions, industries and social groups. The Bank actively collaborates with all government state
structures in order to ensure maximum impact of the public funds targeted on support of the economic
development. Priority focus is set on pre-export, export and bridge financing. Traditionally, the Bank will
continue to provide investment financing for SMEs with extended initial maturity and relaxed collateral
requirements.

The Bank has complied with the requirements of BNB for minimum share capital for banking activity,
as well as with the capital requirements of BDBA. The ownership of the capital is as follows: 99.9999 per cent
is owned by the Republic of Bulgaria, represented by the Ministry of Finance and 0.0001 per cent is owned
by the DSK Bank. The conducted stress test and the analyses of the quality of the assets, owned by the
banks in 2016, confirmed the exceptionally high capital adequacy of the Group and its resilience to shocks
greatly exceeding the set regulatory requirements.

The equity of the parent company (the Bank) consists of 6,017,735 ordinary registered voting shares
with a nominal value of BGN 100 each. BDB's shares are not traded on the stock market.

The Bulgarian Development Bank Act has determined that a package of not less than 51 per cent of
the shares in the capital of the Bank shall be state-owned and that the shares of the state, amounting to not
less than 51 per cent of the registered share capital, are not transferable. In addition, a specific limit is
established on the composition of the other shareholders, registered outside the Bulgarian state - through the
Ministry of Finance. These may include: the Council of Europe Development Bank, the European Investment
Bank, the European Investment Fund and other development banks of the Member States of the European
Union. The Bank's shares cannot be pledged and the rights attached thereto may not be subject to transfer.

Regarding the acquisition of its own shares, pursuant to Article 187e and Articie 247 of the Commercial
Act, BDB declares that such an acquisition has not taken place and that no acquisition, possession or transfer
of shares and bonds of the Bank has been performed by the board members during the reported year and
that according to Article 6, paragraph 4 of the Bulgarian Development Bank Act the shares in the capital of
the Bank, apart from the Bulgarian state, may be acquired and held by the Council of Europe Development
Bank, the European Investment Bank and the European Investment Fund as well as by development banks
of Member States of the European Union. In these cases, Article 31 of the Law on Credit Institutions is not
applied.

According to Article 6, paragraph 4 of BDB, the members of the management and supervisory bodies,
the procurators and the senior management cannot own shares and cannot be provided with options on BDB
securities as well as that during the subsequent accounting periods no agreements may be concluded as a
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result of which in any future period changes may occur in the possession of the relative volume of shares held
by the current shareholders.

Management of BDB is carried out in accordance with Article 5 of the Bulgarian Development Bank Act
based on which the Bank has a two-tier system of governance and the rights of the State in the general
assemblies of the shareholders shall be exercised by the Minister of Finance. Outside the powers of the
Minister of Finance, changes in the Bulgarian Development Bank Act - as changes of the articles of
association, and the right to issue or to share redemption - is possible only after the passing of a new law or
amending the current legislation by the National Assembly. According to this article, and in the capacity of a
representative of the majority shareholder in BDB, the decision to reduce the capital through the redemption
of shares may be made only by the Minister of Finance.

In 2016 the BDB Group had no outstanding obligations related to any existing or newly issued
securities.

At 31 December 2016 there were no pending legal, administrative or arbitration proceedings relating
to liabilities or receivables of the BDB Group in the amount of 10 percent or more of its equity.

The BDB Group of does not prepare forecast financial  statements.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Bank’s lending activity is directed towards:

Pre-export and export financing of SME;

Financing SME operations and projects either through intermediary banks or directly;

Refinancing banks granting loans to SME;

Financing SME investments abroad.

The Bank extends also other types of loans according to a procedure set by the Management Board,
whereas the exposure to one customer or a group of related customers, other than credit institutions, central
governments and central banks within the meaning of Regulation 575/2013/EU, cannot exceed 10 (ten)
percent of the eligible capital (the equity) of the Bank after taking into account the effect of credit risk reduction.
In case of exposure in violation of the above limit and as a result of a business combination and/or another
transaction, the Management Board shall notify the Supervisory Board and shall make a proposal regarding
the method, term and need of their regulation, asking for the approval of the Supervisory Board.

In support of the economic development, and to provide financial support for any business, the Bank
may finance/refinance companies with liabilities classified in the credit register at the BNB in groups
"Substandard” or “Loss" (or the equivalent of such a classification in case of legal changes) at the time of
applying for a loan from the Development Bank and after confirmation by the Supervisory Board.

The Management Board passed a unanimous decision to form an exposure to one customer or a
group of related customers if its amount exceeds 5 per cent of the Bank’s equity, in compliance with the
requirements of the Law on Credit Institutions and the internal rules of the Bank.

In view of its specific function related to carrying out the state policy on promoting the businesses, BDB
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prioritizes its activity programs and products to promote SMEs, on-lending programs, export financing and
funding awarded mandates. The biggest credit exposure of the Bank provided to a group of connected
persons /institutions outside the banking/ amounted to BGN 62,202 thousand at amortised cost (2015: BGN
50,510 thousand), representing 9.99 per cent of the equity of the Bank (2015: 8.66 per cent). Analysis of the
structure of the loan portfolio arranged by segments is provided in the financial statements.

Considering the specific activity of the Bank by 31 December 2016, the funds, collected by the 20
largest non-bank depositors, represent 97.26 per cent of total liabilities to other customers (31 December
2015: 96.49 per cent).

In view of its specific activity, the BDB Group uses significant external funding from international
financial institutions. Detailed information on the received external credit lines is disclosed in Note 30 to the
Financial Statements.

National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF)

National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF) is a company established on 12 August 2008 on the grounds
of the Bulgarian Development Bank Act and registered with the Commercial Registry on 22 August 2008.
According to the Law on Credit Institutions (LCI), National Guarantee Fund EAD is a financial institution,
registered in 2009 by BNB in the register under Article 3, paragraph 2 of the Law on Credit Institutions (LCI).
In accordance with its Articles of Association, the scope of activity of the Fund includes:

e Issuing guarantees to supplement collateral for loans to small and medium enterprises;

o Offering other products for small and medium enterprises such as: guarantee for participation in
tender; guarantee for good performance; guarantee for advance payment; guarantee for payment
of loan to exporter, etc.;

e [ssuing guarantees to supplement collateral for loans to small and medium enterprises involved
in research and development activities, as well as for deployment of the results thereof in
industry;

o Other activities that are not particularly prohibited by the Law.

The headquarters of National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF) are located in the city of Sofia, 1 Dyakon

Ignatii Street.
At 31 December 2016 National Guarantee Fund EAD had no branches.

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (MFI Jobs)

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (MFI) is registered with the Commercial Register on 14
January 2011. The main scope of activity includes: micro financing, including granting of micro-loans,
acquisition from third parties and leasing out of industrial equipment, cars and other vehicles, as well as other
goods (financial leasing), purchase, sale and import of such goods, consultancy services, agency and
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brokerage for local and foreign individuals and legal entities, operating in the country, as well as any other
activities not prohibited by Law.

The headquarters of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (MFI Jobs) are located in the city of Sofia,
1 Dyakon Ignatii Street.

At 31 December 2016 Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD had no branches.

Risk Management within the BDB Group

In the course of its ordinary activity the BDB Group companies may be exposed to various financial
risks that, if occur, may result in losses and deterioration of the Group’s financial stability. Financial risks are
identified, measured and monitored using different control mechanisms for their management and for
avoidance of any unjustified concentration of a particular risk. The risk management process is essential for
the Group's profitability and existence. The most significant risks are the following: credit risk, market risk and
operational risk.

In the area of risk management, the Group is guided by the principles of conservatism, objectivity and
full compliance with all relevant national, European legislation and regulatory recommendations. In support
of this policy, the Group maintains substantially higher levels of liquidity buffers and capital adequacy than as
required by the regulations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the main risk for BDB and therefore, its management is fundamental for its activity. Credit
risk management is performed in accordance with the BBD Act and the effective laws and regulations of the
Republic of Bulgaria regulating credit activity, as well as the international regulations and best banking
practices.

In assessing and managing the credit (including the counterparty risk) risk of its exposures, the Group
applies models for internal rating generation. Loan portfolio quality monitoring, control and assessment units
are established and function within the Group. Loan portfolio current monitoring, reporting and management
procedures and mechanisms are implemented, which require periodical, and if necessary, extraordinary,
reports on the financial and credit status of each borrower and liable persons. If new circumstances are
established, which could result in changes in the borrowers’ risk profile, including in higher risks of default of
the credit exposure, adequate and conforming to the debtor’s risk profile measures are taken.

In managing its credit risk, the Bank applies an intra-bank system of limits by economic sectors,
instruments, and other credit restrictions and limits on concentration, and the results from their monitoring are
reported to the competent authorities. The system of limits is reviewed and updated periodically.

The management of the credit risk in the off-balance sheet commitments (guarantee) obligations of
NGF has two levels - at the level of individual transactions (guarantee) and on the portfolio level. The credit
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risk on an individual level is managed according to the internal rules and procedures to guarantee the activity,
the proposal for the issuance of the guarantee (assuming guarantee commitment) dully reviewed and
approved by the Risk Manager of the company before issuing confirmation of the guarantee by the
representatives of the NGF. Under the guarantee scheme there is also a second level of approval, or the so-
called Advisory Committee, which is composed of representatives of the MAF and BDB, who approve the
assumption of guarantee commitments for amounts exceeding BGN 500,000. On the portfolio level the credit
risk is managed through limits on the payment (caps) limiting the commitment of the NGF to pay a certain
proportion of the value of the portfolio of guarantees issued under a given program to a given bank. The
subsequent management of the credit risk commitment of the NGF is through monitoring procedures,
according to which the fund may exclude from coverage certain portfolio loans which do not meet the specific
requirements of the concluded guarantee agreements.

The policy which MFI JOBS has adopted to minimize the credit risk is to make a preliminary
assessment of the creditworthiness of customers and to require additional collateral for the lease and loan
contracts and the transferred entitlements: insurance of leased assets, registration of leases with the Central
Register of Special Pledges (CRSR), surety, promissory notes and special pledges of receivables, as also
mortgages of real-estate property and/or pledge of movables when granting the loans.

Market risks to which the BDB Group is exposed

In managing the foreign currency risk the BDB Group follows the principle of maintaining minimum
open currency positions within the specified limits. Foreign currency positions are not formed with speculative
purposes, but are due to foreign currency transactions arising in the ordinary course of activity of the Group.
The Group does not carry out significant transactions and does not hold significant open positions in
currencies other than EUR and BGN. Until the exchange rate of the Bulgarian Lev is pegged to the Euro, the
Euro is not considered as a currency bearing FX risk for the cash flows and the financial position of the Group.

As part of the interest rate risk management, regular reports on financial assets and liabilities are
prepared, divided in time buckets depending on their sensitivity to changes in interest rates. In case of
misbalances in periods, an assessment of expected changes in interest rate curve is applied and potential
risk for the interest income and capital of the Group is measured.

The risks from transactions on the money and capital markets are controlled by a system of limits,
reflecting the risk profile of the investments and certain parameters of the portfolio: such as counterparty,
financial instrument, maturity, etc. The system of limits is reviewed periodically, and the implementation of
these limits is subject to daily monitoring. The portfolio of securities, formed by the BDB Group in the group
for the purposes of investing free cash, is characterized by a short duration, low interest rate risk and relatively
liquid securities, issued by reliable institutions, i.e. they bear a low price risk. As there is no trading portfolio
in accordance to the regulatory provisions, there is no regulatory requirement for capital allocation to cover
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the market risk.

The BDB Group’s liquidity is managed by closely monitored ratios indicating the liquidity position by
periods. Liquidity risk is measured by applying additional scenarios for cash flows from operations.

Measured and monitored are also the liquidity buffers of the BDB Group and the additional sources of
funding in cases of market-wide or idiosyncratic shocks. The compliance with the ratios indicating the liquidity
position is monitored and reported regularly to the competent authorities.

Operational risk

Operational risk management is implemented through close observation and recording of all
operational events, which occur in the activity of various units and processes of the Group. Events of higher
frequency as well as higher severity serve as bases for the operational risk analyses in different scenarios.
The operational risk is measurable and controllable as in the process of work an operational event registry is
kept, which is used as a basis for analysing and improving the work processes and minimising the conditions
that would potentially result in operational events and loss for the Group. The required capital to cover the
operational risk is calculated by applying the “Basic indicator approach” in compliance with the applicable
regulatory framework.

Risk management structure
The main units, which are directly responsible for managing the risks, are as follows:

For the parent company (the Bank):
Supervisory Board - performs overall supervision of risk management;
- Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board - implements the best practices for independent audit
control and builds a system of three pillars of control in the financial sector as recommended by the

Basel lll;

Management Board — responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving risk management
strategies, principles and specific methods, techniques and procedures;

Risk Committee — responsible for exercising control over the implementation of the risk management policies by various
types of risk, as well as the adequacy of the Bank's risk profile to the tasks assigned to it.

Committee on Assets and Liability Management (ALCO) - responsible for the strategic management of assets and
liabilities and for market risk management, including liquidity risk management, related to the assets and liabilities.
Provisions Committee — analyses credit transactions from the perspective of credit risk management for the loan portfolio
in general, as well as of the level of credit deals and borrowers;

Executive Directors and members of the Management Board — exercise current operating contro! of the maintenance and
monitoring of the limits set for a particular types of risk and the application of the established procedures.
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The Central Bank exercises supplementary supervision of risk management at the Bank by requiring periodically
regulatory reports and exercising subsequent control on the compliance with the statutory maximum levels of exposure
to certain risks.

For the subsidiary National Guarantee Fund (the Fund)

The main units responsible for the management of risks are:
Supervisory Board - Management Board of BDB AD (the parent company) — performs overall supervision of risk
management;
Board of Directors — responsible for the overall approach towards risk and approves risk management strategies,
principles and specific methods, risk management techniques and procedures;

- Provisions Committee — analyses the guaranteed portfolio in terms of overall credit risk management of the whole
portfolio, as well as of each guarantee deal and each beneficiary of the guarantee itself.

- Risk and Monitoring Department — performs monitoring of the guaranteed portfolios and the collateral provided. At least
annually an inspection over the fulfilment of the economic and social requirements for the SME using a guarantee from
National Guarantee Fund EAD is carried out.

For the subsidiary Microfinance Institution JOBS EAD (MFI):

The main units responsible for the risk management are:

Board of Directors — adopts rules and procedures for risk management. Controls the risk factors of the Company and
makes decisions within its powers. Analyses credit transactions for over BGN 100 thousand in terms of credit risk
management;

Credit committee — monitors and analyses on an ongoing basis the loan and lease portfolio of the Company in terms of
credit risk, including by individual transactions;

- Credit Council — analyses credit and leasing transactions in terms of credit risk management upon their approval and /
or renegotiation;

- Operational Management (Executive director and Member of the BD) - organises the activities for the implementation of

the Rules for Risk Management adopted by the Board of Directors; creates a work organisation that ensures compliance
with the limits and risk levels set; exercises control over the compliance of the risk analysis, measurement and evaluation
procedures used by the officials as per the set internal regulations;
Risk Management Department — develops and implements a risk management system; prepares and submits to the
Board of Directors periodic reports for assessing the operational risks, including the observance of the limits, and reports
on an ongoing basis to the Operational Management of the Company; performs initial and ongoing validation of the risk
assessment methods; examines the inputs needed for the risk assessment in accordance with applicable principles of
reliability and sufficiency.

Banking regulators according to the Bulgarian law

In accordance with the requirements of the laws and regulations governing the banking activities in
the country, BDB should respect the limitations associated with certain ratios in the consolidated accounts.
At 31 December 2016 BDB complied with all regulatory requirements of BNB and the Bulgarian legislation.
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In its activities, the Group should comply with the regulatory requirements for capital adequacy and
should also fulfil the initially set objectives - support for the economic policy of the country and the
development of small and medium sized business. The values of the asset coverage with capital buffers
exceed considerably the legally required levels.

Control environment

The BDB Group follows management philosophy and operating style, subject to the principles of
conservatism in the performance of contracts according to the strategic objectives of the Bank set in the
Bulgarian Development Bank Act. In connection with the special role of the BDB Group as an instrument of
state policy, the Group has adopted a specialized approach to the control of the environment, where within
the structure of the Bank a number of departments with specific control functions are set up - Risk
Management Department, Liquidity Management Department, Planning, Analysis and Regulations
Department, Legal Department, Classified Information Department, Compliance Department. Along with the
periodic update of the internal regulatory framework, this approach allows management to take timely
measures to control the risks, along with the traditional components of the controlled environment, ensured
by the direct involvement of the bank's management in the preparation and verification of the financial
statements and the activities of Accounting and Internal Audit Departments, acting in full compliance with the
principles of the system of three pillar controls, introduced by the European regulations.

Management assigns powers and responsibilities for the operational activities in conformity with the
developed internal regulatory framework, which is consistent with the national and European legislation. In
order to ensure the relations, regarding the accountability and reporting process and the hierarchy of powers,
a number of specialized committees have been set up to the Management Board and the Supervisory Board
of BDB, as stated in the Declaration of Corporate Governance which is an integral part of the present financial
report.

The Bank has developed an internal regulatory framework, which includes policies and
communications, directed at ensuring that the personnel is familiar with the targets of the company, that it
knows how the individual actions of each one of them are intrinsically linked and how they contribute to the
achievements of these goals as well as who will bear the responsibility for the activities and what will the
methods of reporting the final results from these activities be.

The Bank has built an information system, including related business processes, ensuring the quality
and control of the financial reporting and communication process.

The Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee to the Supervisory Board of the Bank conduct
the current monitoring of the system of controls.
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Corporate governance of the BDB Group
Bulgarian Development Bank AD has a two-tier management structure consisting of Supervisory Board
and Management Board. In 2016 there were no changes in the structure of the management.

Supervisory Board:

Atanas Katsarchev - Chairman

Atanas Katsarchev is a tax and financial advisor with years of managerial experience. He was Deputy
Minister of Finance, Chairman and Board member of companies and is currently an adviser to the Minister of
Finance. In the period 2001-2006 he was a member and from 2006-2009 - Chairman of the Supervisory Board
of BDB.

Kiril Ananiev - Deputy Chairman

Kiril Ananiev, Deputy Minister of Finance in the caretaker govemment. Between 1998-2009, he was
Deputy Minister of Finance according in three successive governments, as well as a Secretary for Financial
Policies in the administration of the President of the Republic of Bulgaria and the political advisor in the
Cabinet of Prime Minister. In the period 2006-2009 he was a member of the Supervisory Board of the
Encouragement Bank (today Bulgarian Development Bank). In 2017 he was appointed provisional Minister
of Finance.

Dimitar Dimitrov - Board Member

Dimitar Dimitrov has a proven professional and managerial experience in the banking sector. He was
CEO of UBB, Deputy Minister of Economic Development, BNB Deputy Governor, Executive Director of BCC
and others. From 2001 to 2011 he was a member of the Management Board of BDB.

In following the best control practices and the three pillar system, recommended according to Basel
Ill, a specialized body, made up of an Audit committee, a Risk committee and a Remuneration committee,
has been set up.

S e Risk committee | Remuneration committee
Atanas Katsarchev Chairman Chairman B
Kiril Ananiev Member B Member i
Dimitar Dimitrov Member Member

Audit Committee:

Mrs Valya Yordanova - President of the Committee

Mrs Ruslanna Radomirova - Member of the Committee;
Mr Ognyan Todorov - Member of the Committee.
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Management Board:

Angel Gekov - Chairman of the Management Board and CEO
Angel Gekov has over 20 years of experience in the management of financial institutions. He

graduated from the Law Faculty of the Sofia University “St. Kliment Ohridski" and later specialized CEE
finance and banking in t Tokyo, Japan, and credit analysis in Vienna, Austria. His professional development
began at the Commercial Bank in 1991. In 1997 he headed the Lending Department at Bulbank. From 2001
to 2005 his career continued through the positions of CEO at Roseximbank, the Municipal Bank and the
Encouragement Bank (now Bulgarian Development Bank). Over the last three years before returning to BDB
Gekov was a member of the Management Board and CEO of Commercial Bank D.

Blliyan Balev - Deputy Chairman of the Management Board and CEO

Blliyan Balev has graduated “Finance and Credit" at the UNWE. In the period 1992-1995 he attended
additional courses and obtained qualifications successively in the US, UK and the Czech Republic. Balev
specializes at the American Express Bank in New York, and in 1995 received training in portfolio management
at Central European University, Prague. His career in banking began in 1991 at the Bulgarian Post Bank.
Between 1992-1995, he held positions in the Private Agricultural and Investment Bank, Financial Brokerage
House Sofia and Unionbank. From 1996 to 2001 he was CEO of Capman AD. In 2001, he became general
manager of the company Nobel Advisors and in 2004 - of Forem Consulting Bulgaria. Since the end of 2013
he has been the CEO of BDB.

lliya Kirchev - Member of the Management Board and CEO

lliya Kirchev has master's degree in "Finance" from the University of National and Worid Economy.
His career began in 1995 in Agrobusinessbank in Plovdiv. From 1999 to 2003 he was Governor of the Plovdiv
branch of Allianz Bank Bulgaria. From 2003 to 2005, he held senior positions at the HVB Bank Biochim. From
2005 to 2010 he consecutively headed two of the Plovdiv branches of Eurobank Bulgaria, and in 2011 became
regional manager for corporate customers in the bank. From 2012 to 2013, he was governor of the Plovdiv
branch of the First Investment Bank. He is currently Assistant Professor at the Higher School of Agribusiness
and Regional Development in Plovdiv.

Committees of the Management Board

In the course of implementing the legislation of Bulgaria and that of the EU and in following the best
banking practices the Management Board of BDB has delegated some of its powers to specialized
committees - the Committee on Impairment and Provisions, the Committee on Asset and Liability
Management and the Commission on Complaints and Signals.
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Since December 2016 the Committee on Impairment and Provisions was closed and pending is a
decision by the Board to transfer the rights and obligations of this committee to the Committee on the
management of assets and liabilities. Monthly meetings are held by the Committee on assets and liabilities
(ALCO), which reviews the main indicators relating to the strategic management of the bank’s assets and
liabilities. The main functions of ALCO are to identify, manage and monitor the liquidity risks for the Bank, to
determine the strategy to aftract resources, to determine the pricing policy of loans so as to ensure an
adequate margin above the cost of funds, to decide on the strategic liquidity of the Bank, in order to ensure
regular and timely meeting of the current and future obligations, both under normal conditions and in the
event of a liquidity crisis as well as to determine the structure of the liquidity buffers and the sources of
additional funding. The materials, reviewed at the meetings of the Committee, together with the minutes from
the agenda, are submitted to the Management Board of BDB soon after each session. In addition to the
board’s members, participants in these meetings are also the heads of key departments in the bank:

. Committee on .
. Committee on Commission
il Impairment and C L on Complaints
Committee g ne Liability g S.p |
- _ rovisions Management and Signals
Angel Gekov B Member Member
Blliyan Balev Member B Chairman
lliya Kirchev Chairman Member ~ Member
. Replacement
Head of Risk Department l&ember l\ﬁember e
Head of Legal Department ] L Member
Head of Bank Security o - Member
Head of Planning, Analysis and .
Regulations Divigsion y Chairman Member Member
Head of Internal Audit Group Member
Head of Liquidity Division i Member
Head of Corporate Banking Replacement
Division Member B |
Head of International Financial
o o Member
Institutions Division B ]
Chief Expert Management at the
Division of Planning, Analysis Member
and Planning responsible for
credit control
Deputy Head of Risk Division Member
Senior Expert Risk Management Member

* The Chairman of the Commission is elected by the members for a period of one year.
The Bank is represented jointly by any two of the three Executive Directors.
In 2016 there were no changes in the basic principles of management of the BDB Group.
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Contracts with related parties involved in the management and participation of the members

of the Management and Supervisory Boards in other companies

No contracts, which fall beyond the ordinary course of business or significantly deviate from market
conditions, within the meaning of Article 240b of the Commercial Act, were concluded between members of
the SB, MB or related persons on one side, and the Bank on the other side.

in 2016 between BDB and its affiliates, no deals or offers to enter into transactions, falling outside
the ordinary activity or significantly deviating from the market conditions to which BDB or its subsidiary is a
party, were concluded.

There are no significant contracts signed by the Company which may generate effects, may be
changed or terminated due to a change in the management and control of the company in the course of the
mandatory tender offering and to the extent that there is a legal limit on the acceptable range of shareholders
in BDB in conformity with the Bulgarian Development Bank Act no such contracts are expected to be
concluded.

The BDB Group does not have the practice and has not concluded any agreements between the
companies and their management bodies or employees for the payment of compensations upon resignation
or dismissal without legal grounds or upon termination of the employment contracts for reasons related to
tender offers.

The participation of members of the SB and MB in commercial entities as general pariners with
unlimited liability, or possession of more than 25 percent of the capital of a legal entity, as well as participation
in the management of other companies or associations as procurators, managers or Board members, within
the meaning of Article 247, paragraph 2, item 4 of the Commercial Act, is as follows:

The members of the Supervisory Board of BDB have the following interests in the capital or
management of other companies:

Atanas Slavchev Katsarchev - does not participate in the capital and management of other
companies.

Kiril Milanov Ananiev - does not participate in the capital and management of other companies.

Dimitar Kirilov Dimitrov is a partner in PGD OOD (UIC 175247211) and holds 50 per cent of the
company shares. The company does not carry out any activities. Mr Dimitrov participates in the management
of Eurohold Bulgaria AD, UIC 175187337, as a member of the MB.

The members of the MB of BDB have the following participations in the capital and management of
other companies:

Angel Kirilov Gekov participates in the management of National Guarantee Fund EAD, UIC
200321435 as Chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr Gekov participates in the management of PCA OOD,
UIC 201477526 and holds 25 per cent of the company’s capital. Mr Gekov holds 19 per cent of the capital of
BULGARPLOD CHERRY OOD, UIC 200204916.
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Biliyan Lyubomirov Balev participates in the management of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD,
UIC 201390740 as Chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. Balev is a partner in Fininvest OOD and holds 99
per cent of the capital of the company. The company is a foreign legal entity, established and existing
according to the laws of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland. Mr Balev is the sole
proprietor of the capital and general manager of the company Fin Yachting, registered as per the laws of
Malta. He is a member of the administrative board of the European Association of Public Banks (EAPB)
domiciled in Brussels, Belgium.

lliya Vasilev Kirchev participates in the management of the Microfinance Institution JOBS EAD, UIC
201390740 as Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. Kirchev is a member of the management
bodies of the following non-profit organizations: The Foundation “Academy 2007, town of Kardzhali, UIC
108688838 and the Cultural Center “Dr. Hristo Adjarov 2010” - Plovdiv, UIC 175962774.

Note 13A to the financial statements discloses comprehensive information on the full amount of the
remuneration, rewards and/or benefits paid by the issuer and its subsidiaries to each of the members of the
management and control bodies during the financial year,.

Management of the subsidiaries
BDB is the sole shareholder of the capital of its subsidiaries NGF EAD and MFI JOBS EAD.

National Guarantee Fund EAD

NGF EAD has a one-tier management system - Board of Directors (BD), which in 2016 was
composed of three members.

Board of Directors
Angel Gekov - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Samuil Shiderov - Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors

Samuil Shiderov is the Executive Director of the National Guarantee Fund. He holds a bachelor's
degree in "Banking" and a master's degree in "Finance" from the University of Economics in Varna. He began
his career at the end of 2001 at the SG Expressbank in Sofia. From 2003 to 2011 he worked in the Risk
Management Department of Raiffeisenbank Bulgaria, where he took office successively as a credit manager,
problematic loans specialist, head of sector and deputy head of department. From October 2011 to December
2012 he was head of a department at DSK Bank. Shiderov has been the Executive Director of the National
Guarantee Fund since the beginning of 2013. On 18 June 2015 Samuel Shiderov was elected to the Board
of Directors of the European Association of Guarantee Institutions (AESM).
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Alexander Georgiev is a member of the Board of Directors.

Alexander Georgiev is a member of the Board of Directors of the National Guarantee Fund from
March 2015. He has a master's degree in "Economics and Industrial Management" from the Academy of
Economics "Dimitar Apostolov Tzenov" — town of Svishtov. Georgiev has extensive experience at expert and
management positions in the insurance and financial services sphere.

The Fund is represented jointly by any two members of the Board of Directors.

The members of the Board of Directors of NGF EAD do not own shares in the Fund and have no
special rights to acquire such shares.

No contracts, which fall beyond the ordinary course of business or significantly deviate from market
conditions, within the meaning of Article 240b of the Commercial Act, were concluded between members of
the BD of NGF EAD or related persons on one side, and the company on the other side.

The participation of members of the Board of Directors of NGF EAD in commercial entities as general
partners with unlimited liability, or possession of more than 25 percent of the capital of a legal entity, as well
as participation in the management of other companies or associations as procurators, managers or Board
members, within the meaning of Article 247, paragraph 2, item 4 of the Commercial Act, is as follows:

Angel Kirilov Gekov is Executive Director and Chairman of the Management Board of Bulgarian
Development Bank AD. Mr Gekov participates in the management of “PCA” OOD, UIC 201477526 and holds
25% of the company’s capital. Mr Gekov holds 19% of the capital of BULGARPLOD CHERRY OOD, UIC
200204916.

Alexander Georgiev is a sole owner of KA SERVICE EOOD, UIC 114672190, Brandi BG EOOD, UIC
202605174, SP ,Alexander Georgiev — AG", UIC 824083350.

Samuil Pavlov Shiderov does not have participations in other companies within the meaning of Article
247, paragraph 2, item 4 of the Commercial Act. Mr Shiderov is a member of the Board of Directors of
European Association of Guarantee Institutions - AECM — an international non-profit organisation domiciled
in Brussels, Belgium.

Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD
IFl Jobs PLC also has a one-tier management system - Board of Directors (BD), which consists
of three members.

Board of Directors
Blliyan Balev - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Elijah Kirchev - Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Kostadin Munev - Member of the Board of Directors and CEO

Kostadin Munev holds a master's degree in "Finance" from the University of National and World
Economy in Sofia in 1996. In 2011 he was elected procurator of Micro Financing Institution JOBS PLC and
Head of Lending and Leasing Department of the company and from April 2013 he is elected a Board member.
In April 2014 he was elected Executive Director of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD. Munev has worked
as chief accountant for Bulgarian enterprises and non-profit associations. He has extensive experience in
micro-financing obtained in his capacity of manager of financial leasing in the JOBS project for the UN
Development program during the period 2003 - 2010. Munev has participated in numerous international
conferences on topics related to micro-financing and is the co-author of the publications "Guide to micro
crediting in Europe", "From Exclusion to inclusion through micro financing”, "Market research of micro
crediting for the purposes of the European Investment Fund - International research in Western and Eastern
Europe: a Report on Bulgaria”. Munev is fluent in English and Russian.

The Company is represented jointly by any two of the members of the Board of Directors.

No contracts, which fall beyond the ordinary course of business or significantly deviate from market
conditions, within the meaning of Article 240b of the Commercial Act, were concluded between members of
the BD of MFI Jobs EAD or related persons on one side, and the Company on the other side.

The participation within the meaning of Article 247, paragraph 2, item 4 of the Commercial Act, of
members of the BD of MFI Jobs EAD in commercial companies as general partners, holding of more than 25
percent of the capital of another company, as well as their participation in the management of other companies
or associations as procurators, managers or Board members, is as follows:

Biliyan Lyubomirov Balev is executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the Management Board of
Bulgarian Development Bank AD. Mr. Balev is a partner in Fininvest OOD and holds 99 per cent of the capital
of the company. The company is a foreign legal entity, established and existing according to the laws of the
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland. Mr Balev is the sole proprietor of the capital and general
manager of the company Fin Yachting, registered as per the laws of Malta. He is a member of the
administrative board of the European Association of Public Banks (EAPB) domiciled in Brussels, Belgium.

lliya Vasilev Kirchev is executive Director and a member of the Board of Management Board of
Bulgarian Development Bank AD. Mr. Kirchev is a member of the management bodies of the following non-
profit organizations: The Foundation “Academy 2007", town of Kardzhali, UIC 108688838 and the Cultural
Center “Dr. Hristo Adjarov 2010” - Plovdiv, UIC 175962774.

Kostadin Bozhikov Munev does not participate in other companies or cooperatives pursuant to Article
247 par. 2, item 4 of the Law of commerce.
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Transactions with related parties and companies under the control of the state
The owner of BDB is the Bulgarian State, hence the BDB Group companies are related parties to the
government authorities of the Republic of Bulgaria and the companies over which it exercises control. The
transactions with related parties and companies under common control with the State are disclosed in detalil
in the consolidated and separate financial statements.

Development strategy and business objectives

The BDB Group is a key instrument and a channel for conducting government economic policies,
including in specific areas, regions, industries and social groups. The Bank actively collaborates with all
government state structures in order to ensure maximum impact of the public funds targeted on support of
the economic development.

The BDB Group operates in full transparency and applies the best banking and management
practices. A core objective of the Group is to identify and analyse the sectors of the economy experiencing
difficulties in obtaining financing, and to undertake the necessary measures to facilitate their access to
financing.

Facilitating SMEs access to bank financing is not the only priority of the Bank. The Group supports
government efforts for acceleration of economic growth in the country by means of providing expertise and
performing activities in all area of economic policies, facilitating the absorption of the EU structural funds,
enhancing the export potential of the country, etc.

In the light of the foregoing, the main principle underlying the Group’s activity is to supplement the
market and not to allow displacement of the traditional commercial banks from the market. The objective of
the Group's activity is only to compensate any existing market shortages in financing certain segments and
thus, to adjust their risk profile and to encourage the commercial banks to develop their exposures to these
segments.

The strategic goals of BDB are:

e To facilitate the economic growth by increasing its exposure in support of regions and sectors
of the economy with suppressed growth;

e To stimulate the economic activity of the investors for the modemization of the material and
technological basis and for boosting the competitiveness of the economy;

o To facilitate the economic growth of the regions through financing, priority syndicated by
nature, of sizable and infrastructural, by their nature, investments;

e To support the development of competitive production initiatives and sectors of the economy
of proven export potential;

o To facilitate, jointly with the other institutions, the access to financing of innovative and newly
established companies;
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e To facilitate and support the direction of capital flows to the Bulgarian economy.

Social responsibility and the policy of diversity

Bulgarian Development Bank believes that investing in education and science is an investment in the
future. That is why, we have recognized as our mission to support all who seek knowledge - the intelligent,
talented, ambitious and promising young people of Bulgaria.

The Bulgaria’s Scientific Wonders campaign is a joint initiative of the newspaper "Standard" and the
Bulgarian Academy of Science, which was held for the first time in 2015. In 2016 Bulgarian Development
Bank awarded the student from the New Bulgarian University, Atanas Atanasov, with the special award in the
category "Young explorers" within the Bulgaria's Scientific Wonders campaign.

The Study and Work national campaign aims to help bridge the gap between supply and demand on
the Bulgarian labour market. This gap deepens with each passing year as the business experiences an ever
growing need of professionally qualified staff; a demand will continue to grow in the 10 -15 years due to the
retirement of the older workers and the lack of qualified substitutes. At the same, the secondary school system
produces a large number of cadres with vague possibilities for a professional career.

The campaign is being organized by the "24 hours" newspaper and it foresees the holding of a broad
debate and the drawing of a map of the current vocational schools by region and types of professions and a
map of the cadres which the country will need by the year 2030. The second card will be a large-scale national
study, which will be organized in partnership with the nationally represented employer organizations and
which will produce a clearer vision to trends on the labour market by 2030. The benefits from this initiative will
be both for the business and for the workers themselves (incl. the students and their parents).

Bulgarian Development Bank traditionally supports the teams from the Sofia High School of
Mathematics in their participation in international competitions and the Olympiads in mathematics, computer
science and physics.

In order to meet the very specific functions assigned by the Bulgarian Development Bank Act, the
Bank is pursuing a policy of diversity in terms of its administrative, management and supervisory bodies within
the powers delegated by the State. The Bank strictly adheres to the best practices of non-discrimination in
terms of age, sex or education and professional experience, part of is the continuing successful internship
program of the Bank. In the period between July and September, the ongoing internship program resulted in
the recruitment of 13 trainees who were given the opportunity to gain practical experience in strategic units
of the bank.

The philosophy of BDB includes the understanding that art and culture are able to unite and cultivate
people; that they boost national pride and the sense of belonging. Part of the Bank's efforts is aimed at
supporting cultural and aristic historical projects and a priority is placed on initiatives aimed at the
preservation and promotion of the Bulgarian spiritual and cultural heritage.
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The Bank supported the publication of an album dedicated to the life and work of Vasil Levski, the
authors of which are the Bulgarian Committee and the Vasil Levski Foundation. Together with the Bulgarian
Glory Association the initiative called "Kolyo Ficheto — the bridge builder" served to popularize the man and
his work as the greatest Bulgarian builder, architect and sculptor.

The BDB Group organized an exhibition with the archival photos footage of the building of the
financial institution. The exhibition is located at 1 Dyakon Ignatii Street and it was opened in connection with
the opening of the new headquarters of the bank in the capital city. The headquarters preserve to the last
detail the authentic facade of the building, as it was erected at the end of the 19th century. It is now declared
as a cultural monument of regional importance.

Bulgarian Development Bank has adopted the cause of preserving and promoting the Bulgarian
spiritual and cultural heritage. The Bank supports initiatives in this sphere of the national cultural life, such as
the national folk festival “Ludogorie”, which was held in 2015 in the location called “Pchelina”.

BDB supports the campaign called Wonders of Bulgaria. It is an annual held under the initiative of
newspaper "Standard" and is aims at the popularization of the Bulgarian cultural heritage and the promotion
of home tourism.

A major cause of the BDB Group is supporting the vulnerable groups of people, such as the children
deprived of parental care and the disadvantaged. We understand charity as a mandatory element not only as
a matter of corporate social responsibility, but also as an element of our daily personal lives and our lives as
employees of BDB.

The Group has successfully partnered with the National Fund "St. Nicholas" in the implementation of
a number of charity programs. The Bank supports the Fund in organizing summer rehabilitation camps for
disabled children, for children deprived of parental care, as well as in organizing thematic tours.

The orphanage “St. Nicholas" in the "Holy Trinity" monastery is one of the institutions traditionally
supported by Bulgarian Development Bank. The bank conducts regular internal campaigns to raise funds to
cover the urgent needs of the children and youngsters living in the orphanage and in the protected houses in
the village of Yakimovo.

BDB has accepted the "Bulgarian Christmas" as a part of its corporate social responsibility and has
repeatedly supported this initiative.

Part of the philosophy of BDB is to support the disadvantaged people and to contribute to their
successful integration in society. This is why, Bulgarian Development Bank sponsors the establishment of a
special centre for children with special educational needs in the daily kindergarten "Winnie the Pooh" in the
city of Stara Zagora.

Bulgarian Development Bank supports the application of modern technology in today’s educational
process and the creation of opportunities for an equal start for all children. Following this concept the bank
has decided to help equip a computer lab in a home for children deprived of parental care "Asen Zlatarov" in
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the town of Vratsa, donating six complete computers sets.

In 2015 the "Manual for management and development of human resources in the BBR group" was
approved and brought in line with best practices in the field of human resource management. The year 2016
saw the start of the implementation of the "Social measures and incentives package as a part of the manual's
chapter "Motivation and retention".

The social program of BDB includes: life insurance, official clothing, sporting activities, and a one-off
financial support for weddings, childbirth, and medical care support. "Rules for evaluation and modification of
the remuneration of the employees in the BDB Group after the probation period" and a "Map of the employee's
performance during the probation period".

The Group focuses on granting continued support for the development and training of employees,
creating conditions for the professional development of the financial specialists working for the only financial
group in Bulgaria, which does not prioritize the creation of profit but is focused more on social goals. The BDB
Group is not engaged in the field of scientific research and development outside the training of its personnel.

The present Corporate Governance Statement is an integral part of the Activity report approved by
the Management Board of Bulgarian Development Bank on 14 March 2017.

EXECUTIVE DIREC
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of

Bulgarian Development Bank AD

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bulgarian
Development Bank AD and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union (EU).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements of the Independent Financial Audit Act (IFAA) that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in Bulgaria, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of the IFAA and the IESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's
Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
consolidated management report, including the corporate governance statement prepared
by management in accordance with Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, which
corporate governance statement has been made available to us in advance. U
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, unless and to the extent
explicitly specified in our report.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by
the EU, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Independent Financial Audit act and ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Translation in English of the official Auditor's report issued in Bulgarian.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves true and fair
presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Translation in English of the official Auditor’s report issued in Bulgarian.
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Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

Additional Matters to be Reported under the Accountancy Act and the Public Offering of
Securities Act

In addition to our responsibilities and reporting in accordance with ISAs, described above in
the Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon section, in relation to the consolidated management report, including the corporate
governance statement of the Group, we have also performed the procedures added to those
required under ISAs in accordance with the Guidelines of the professional organisation of
certified public accountants and registered auditors in Bulgaria, i.e. the Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (ICPA), issued on 29 November 2016/approved by its Management
Board on 29 November 2016. These procedures refer to testing the existence, form and
content of this other information to assist us in forming opinions about whether the other
information includes the disclosures and reporting provided for in Chapter Seven of the
Accountancy Act and in the Public Offering of Securities Act (Art. 100m, paragraph 10 of
the POSA in conjunction with Art. 100m, paragraph 8(3) and (4) of the POSA) applicable in
Bulgaria.

Opinion in connection with Art. 37, paragraph 6 of the Accountancy Act
Based on the procedures performed, our opinion is that:

a) The information included in the consolidated management report referring to the
financial year for which the consolidated financial statements have been prepared is
consistent with those consolidated financial statements.

b) Excluding the mentioned below, the consolidated management report has been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act and of
Art. 100(m), paragraph 7 of the Public Offering of Securities Act.

In the consolidated management report of the Group is not included the required
information under p.17 of the Appendix 10 from Ordinance 2 from 17 September 2003
in relation to Art. 100m, paragraph 7, p. 2 from POSA.

c) The corporate governance statement of the Group referring to the financial year for
which the consolidated financial statements have been prepared presents the
information required under Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act and Art. 100 (m),

paragraph 8 of the Public Offering of Securities Act. !

Translation in English of the official Auditor’s report issued in Bulgarian.
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Opinion in connection with Art. 100(m), paragraph 10 in conjunction with Art. 100 m,
paragraph 8(3) and (4) of the Public Offering of Securities Act

Based on the procedures performed and the knowledge and understanding obtained about
Group's activities and the environment in which it operates, in our opinion, the description
of the main characteristics of Group's internal control and risk management systems
relevant to the financial reporting process, which is part of the consolidated management
report (as a component of the corporate governance statement) and the information under
Art. 10 paragraph 1(c), (d), (f), (h) and (i) of Directive 2004/25/EC of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on Takeover Bids, do not contain any material
misrepresentations.

Audit Firm Ernst & Young Audit OOD:

Milka Natcheva¥lvanova Nikolay Garnev
Legal Representative Registered Auditor in charge of the audit

Sofia, Bulgaria

20 March 2017

Translation in English of the official Auditor's report issued in Bulgarian.



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

As of As of
Notes 31 December 31 December
2016 2015
Assets
Cash in hand and balances in current account with the Central Bank 16 78,521 343,853
Receivables from banks 17 274,634 267,536
Financial assets held-for-trading 21 - 305
Loans and advances to customers 18 730,896 641,119
Receivables from the State budget 19 424,470 29,885
Available-for-sale securities 20 322,965 262,968
Net investment in finance lease 23 704 982
Assets, held for sale 26 4,670 8,720
Securities, held to maturity 22 1,384 1,979
Other assets 27 615 916
Assets, acquired from collateral foreclosure 27 11,372 4,714
Investment property 25 7,702 7,744
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 24 33,779 24,659
Deferred tax assets 14 2,011 1,304
Total assets 1,893,723 1,596,684
Liabilities
Deposits from credit institutions 28 43,737 842
Financial liabilities, held for trading 21 - 362
Current tax liabilities 1,836 305
Deposits from customers other than credit institutions 29 577,133 566,144
Provisions B2 7,683 6,327
Other liabilities 33 1,420 1,371
Borrowings from international institutions 30 379,998 178,723
Other borrowings 31 112,864 123,459
Total liabilities 1,124,671 877,533
Equity
Share capital 34 601,774 601,774
Retained earnings 45,842 39,832
Revaluation reserve on available-for-sale securities 35 6,534 1,567
Reserves 85 114,902 75,978
Total equity 769,052 719,151
Total liabilities 1,893,723 1,596,684

approved py P gement Board of Bulganan

€se consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements were

velopment Bank AD on 14 March 2017. ,J

Angel Gékov Biligr{ Bale "" & AlyaKirchev lvan Lichev
Executtive Directo, ecutive Pirector Executive Director

Chief accountant
Einancial statements

an which our auditors’ report was
issued dated:

EY 20 -03- 2017
nal finangial st et ey ohie

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the orig




BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

Notes 2016 2015
Interest income 6 62,576 62,605
Interest expense 6 (3,466) (7,726)
Net interest income 59,110 54,879
Fee and commission income 7 4,166 3,340
Fee and commission expense 7 (81) (92)
Net fee and commission income 4,085 3,248
Net income on foreign exchange deals 8 760 429
Net gain/(loss) on available-for-sale securities 9 20 (40)
Net gain on financial instruments held-for-trading 10 45 309
Other operating income 11A 1,596 1,959
Other operating expenses 11B (1,845) (1,014)
Operating income before impairment 63,771 59,770
Costs of personnel 13A (9,762) (9,782)
General and administrative expenses 13B (7,357) {8,901)
Depreciation / amortisation expenses 24 (583) {553)
Income from reversed impairment and provisions 12 3,832 2,441
Profit before income tax 49,901 42,975
Income tax expense 14 (4,990) (4,299)
Net profit for the year 44 911 38,676
Other comprehensive income
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit plans, net of taxes 23 (8)
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax 15 4,967 1,560
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,990 1,552
Total co nsive income for the year 49,901 40,228

ages 10 to 99 are an integral part gfAhese consolidated financial statements. The
e Management Board of BulgariaptJevelopment Bank AD on 14 March 2017.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, uniess otherwise stated.

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Dividend income

(Income)/expenses from/on reversed loan impairment
Income from reversal of provision on guarantees
impairment loss on available-for-sale securities

Loss on revaluation of investment properly
impairment loss and sale of other receivables

Income from reversed impairment of finance lease
Gain on revaluation of financiat assets held-for-trading
Net gain on revaluation of foreign currency assets and liabilities
Depreciation / amortisation expenses

Carrying amount of written-off assets

Income tax expense

Changes in:

Reserve Guarantee Fund with the Central Bank
Receivables from banks

Loans and receivables

Loans to the State budget

Available-for-sale securities

Held-for-trading financial instruments

Net investment in finance lease

Assets held for sale

Other assets

Deposits from credit institutions

Deposits from customers other than credit institutions
Other liabilities

Dividends received

income taxes (paid)/refunded

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash payments on acquisition of tangible/ intangible assets
Cash proceeds from sale of tangible/ intangible assets
Cash proceeds from matured securities held to maturity

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid

Cash paid on issued debenture loans

Cash paid on other borrowings

Cash received from other borrowings

Cash received from borrowings from international institutions
Cash paid on borrowings from international institutions
Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and ggisprequivalents at the beginning of period

7

Notes 2016 2015
44911 38,676

1A (53) (46)
12 (5,472) (1,629)
12 1,221 (825)
9 - 43
116 240 335
27 419 306
23 : (34)
10 (312) (155)
8 (58) (195)
24 583 553
24 31 59
14 4,990 4,299
46,500 41,387

16 47 3
37,905 86,514

(80,635) 11,765

(394,585) (29,885)

(41,285) 37,785

(305) 760

(112) 522

(2,760) (11,718)

(2,109) 103

41,664 (79,939)

9,280 28,034

486 16
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of the Group of Bulgarian Development Bank AD (the ,Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016 were approved for issue by decision of the Management Board dated 14 March 2017.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD is a joint-stock company (AD) registered with the Commercial Register under UIC 121856059,
with seat in the city of Sofia, Sofia City Region, Bulgaria, and management address: 1 Dyakon Ignatii Street. The financial year
of the Bank ends on 31 December.

Bulgarian Development Bank Group (the “Group”) includes the parent-company - Bulgarian Development Bank AD (BDB
AD/the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries — National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF/ the “Fund”) and Micro Financing Institution JOBS
EAD (MFI).

Bulgarian Development Bank AD (BDB AD/ the"Bank”) was established on 11 March 1999 as a joint-stock company in Bulgaria
under the name "Encouragement Bank” AD.

The Bulgarian Development Bank Act was adopted on 23 April 2008 (SG 43/29.04.2008) to regulate the structure and the
scope of Bank's activities, including those for its subsidiaries, envisaged for incorporation. By virtue of that law the functions
and all rights and obligations were applied to Encouragement Bank AD. Pursuanrt to a requirement of the law, a General
Meeting of the Shareholders was held (26 June 2008) at which the name of the Bank was changed to Bulgarian Development
Bank and its Articles of Incorporation were amended in line with the new legal requirements thereto.

The Bank holds a general banking licence, issued by Bulgarian National Bank (BNB) on 25 February 1999 with latest update
of 16 November 2009 (due to the new Credit Institutions Act), and is allowed to conduct all banking transactions permitted by
the Bulgarian legislation. The Bank is also a licensed investment intermediary.

From the very beginning, the Bank was established with a special purpose - to support the implementation of the economic
policies of the State by financing the business development of small and medium-sized enterprises (SME), including by
supporting their investment and export abilities and initiatives. With the adoption of the Bulgarian Development Bank Act in
2008 this objective was further elaborated in the objectives, principles and scope of the Bank’s activities set by the law.

The Bank's activity includes: pre-export and export financing of SME; financing SME operations and projects either through
intermediary banks or directly; refinancing banks that grant loans to SME; financing SME investments abroad.

The main objectives of the Bank are to promote, encourage and develop the general economic, export and technological
potential of SMEs by facilitating their access to finance; drawing in and management of medium and long-term local and foreign
resources needed for the implementation of economic development in the country; implementation of schemes and instruments
to finance public investment projects that are priorities for the country's economy; fundraising and project management of
international financial and other institutions; fundraising and grant funding in order to reduce regional mishalances in the
country; financing of projects of local companies that create export, innovation, high employment and / or value added; financing
of priority sectors of the economy, in line with the government policy for economic development.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD has a two-tier system of governance, which comprises Supervisory Board (SB) and
Management Board (MB). No changes in the structure of the management bodies were made in 2016. The Supervisory Board
and the Audit Committee represent those charged with governance.

In 2016 the members of the Supervisory Board of BDB (SB) were: Atanas Slavchev Katsarchev — Chairman of SB, Kiril Milanov
Ananiev - Vice Chairman and member of SB, and Dimitar Kirilov Dimitrov — member of SB.

The composition of the Management Board of BDB in 2016 was as follows: Angel Kirilov Gekov, Chairman of MB and Executive
Director; Biliyan Lyubomirov Balev - Vice Chairman and Executive Director, and lliya Vasilev Kirchev - member of MB and
Executive Director.

The Bank is represented jointly by either two of the three Executive Directors.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian ieva, unless otherwise stated.

1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
As of 31 December 2016 the Bank's employees were 153 (31 December 2015: 151).

The Bulgarian Development Bank Act (2008) envisages the establishment of two Bank subsidiaries - the Equity Investment
Fund and the National Guarantee Fund.

The Equity Investment Fund is at project level and had not yet been established as of 31 December 2016.

The National Guarantee Fund (NGF) was established on 12 August 2008 as a sole owner joint-stock company with 100 per
cent ownership of BDB. The registered office of the Fund is at 105 Arsenalski Blvd., Sofia. As of 31 December 2016 the
registered share capital consisted of 800,000 registered nominal shares with par value of BGN 100 each (31 December 2015:
800,000 registered nominal shares with par value of BGN 100 each); the paid-in capital amounted to BGN 80,000,000 as of 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: BGN 80,000,000).

The scope of NGF’s principal activities is defined by the Bulgarian Development Bank Act. It includes:
a) Issue of guarantees to supplement the collaterals for SME loans;
b) Provide other guarantee products, such as:

e guarantees for participation in tenders

e good performance guarantees;

e guarantees for advance payments

e guarantees for payment of loans to exporters, etc.;

c) Issue of guarantees to supplement collateral on loans of SME carrying out research and development activities and for
implementing these products and scientific developments in the industry;

d) Other similar services.

The National Guarantee Fund is managed by a Board of Directors (BD) with a mandate ending 12 August 2021. Members of
the board are: Samuil Shiderov, Angel Gekov and Alexander Georgiev.

At 31 December 2016 NGF had 12 employees (31 December 2015: 14).

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (MFI) was incorporated on 23 December 2010 and registered on 14 January 2011 as a
sole owner joint stock company, 100 per cent owned by BDB. The registered address of the MFI is at 105 Arsenalski Blvd.,
Sofia. As of 31 December 2016 the registered share capital comprised of 76,430 registered shares with par value of BGN 100
each, and the paid-in capital as of 31 December 2016 amounted to BGN 7,643,000 (as of 31 December 2015 the registered
share capital comprised of 76,430 registered shares with par value of BGN 100 each, and the paid-in capital as of 31 December
2015 amounted to BGN 7,643,000.)

The scope of activities of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD includes:

micro-financing including, but not limited to, provision of loans; purchase from third parties and leasing of industrial equipment,
automobiles and other vehicles, as well as other assets (financial leasing); sale and purchase of such items; consultancy; trade
representation and mediation for local and foreign persons operating in the country, as well as any other activities not prohibited
by law.

MFI JOBS EAD is managed by a Board of Directors (BD) with mandate ending 14 January 2019, for a period of 5 years.
Members of the board are: Kostadin Munev, Biliyan Balev and iliya Kirchev.

At 31 December 2016 MFI had 14 employees (31 December 2015: 13).

As of 31 December 2016 Bulgarian Development Bank did not have branches.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the parent company’s (“the Bank’s) Management board on 14 March
2017.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Applicable standards

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as adopted by the European Union.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a consolidated basis. The Bank prepares separate financial
statements in accordance with the Accounting Act. These consolidated financial statements shall be read together with the
separate financial statements.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, as adopted by the European Union (IFRS as adopted by the EU). Reporting framework “IFRS as adopted by the
EU" is essentially the defined national basis of accounting "IAS, as adopted by the EU*, specified in the Bulgarian Accountancy
Act and defined in paragraph 8 of its Additional provisions.

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

e Derivative financial instruments, measured at fair value;

e Instruments held for trading and other instruments, designated at fair value through profit and loss, as long as the fair value
can be measured reliably;

o Available-for-sale instruments, designated at fair value through profit and loss, as long as the fair value can be measured
reliably;

¢ Investment property, assets held for sale and assets acquired from collateral foreclosure carried at fair value, less costs
of sale and net realizable value {which, in the case of assets acquired from collateral foreclosure is their fair value, less
costs of sale), as long as the fair value can be measured reliably.

Going concern

The Group’s management assessed the ability of the Bank to continue its activity as a going concern and is confident about
the availability of sufficient resources to continue its normal operations in the foreseeable future. Moreover, management is not
aware of any significant uncertainty that could cast doubts as to the ability of the Bank to continue as a going concern. In view
of the above, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Order of liquidity and maturity structure

In general, the Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding
recovery of assets or settlement of liabilities within twelve months after the date of the statement of financial position (current)
and more than twelve months after the date of the statement of financial position (non-current) is presented in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Comparability of data

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information with respect to one previous period.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Bulgarian leva (BGN'000), which is the Bank’s functional currency.
Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”,
as all entities over which Bulgarian Development Bank AD has control through ownership of:
e  rights to manage all important activities of the investee;
* exposure or rights to variable return (to obtain benefits or to suffer losses from the activity) from its participation in
the entity;
o possibility to exercise control over the investee in order to influence the amount of the return, have been consolidated
through the full consolidation method.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes in one
or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control over the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until
the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Upon consolidation all receivables and liabilities, income and expenses, arising from transactions between the Bank and its
subsidiaries, are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as the unrealised profit in case there are no
indications of impairment.

The subsidiaries’ financial statements have been prepared for the same reporting period as that of the parent company (the
Bank) by applying consistent accounting policies.

The consolidated entities and the consolidation method applied as of 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Entity Capital ownership Consolidation method
National Guarantee Fund 100% Full consolidation
Microfinance Institution “JOBS” 100% Full consolidation

Accounting estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. These estimates are
made on the basis of information available as of the date of the financial statement and therefore, the actual results may differ
from these estimates. The items presuming a higher level of subjective assessment or complexity, or where the assumptions
and accounting estimates are material for the financial statements, are disclosed in the notes below.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Key estimates and assumptions of high uncertainty
a) Impairment losses on loans and advances

Monthly, the Group reviews its loan portfolio in order to detect the existence and calculates impairment losses. When assessing
whether to include the impairment loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Group’s management
considers whether there are and what are the visible indicators and data, which indicate that there is a measurable reduction
in the expected cash flows from the loan portfolio as a whole, or respectively — a decrease associated with a particular
loan/component from this portfolio. Such indicators and data are those that indicate the existence of an adverse change in the
payment options by the borrowers from a particular group or by a particular borrower, or the presence of national, economic or
other conditions that are associated with a particular risk for a given group/type of loans.

In 2016, aiming at making estimates and assumptions used more precise, the scope of the individual review and relating
impairment testing was broadened, now including all loans, except for those granted to employees and to owners’ associations
under the National Programme for Energy Efficiency of Multi-Family Residential Buildings (NPEEMFRB). When analysing the
risks of impairment losses and uncollectability, the loans are grouped in four risk categories: “standard”, “watch” (over 30 days
past due) and “non-performing” (over 90 days past due). In 2015 the risk classification groups were four; “standard”, “watch”,
“non-performing” and “loss”. The change made is in pursuance with the amended and supplemented EU acts regulating banking
activities and the respective update of in-house regulations of the Bank, and with the aim to ensure a smoother transition to
IFRS 9. (2015: four risk classification groups: “standard”, “watch”, “non-performing” and “loss”). The main indicators for
determining the risk groups are the debtor’s financial condition and project implementation, funded by the loan, problems with
servicing, including interest in arrears and maturing principal, sources of repayment and granted collateral, as a type and
opportunity for realisation. Additionally, for loans, guaranteed by the EIF, the impairment loss is recognised after deduction of
the portion borne by the Fund (Note Ne 4.1).

In determining the future cash flows pattern, the Group’s management uses estimates, judgments and assumptions based on
its historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics, as well as an objective evidence for impairment
of the portfolio from non-crystallized loss in a particular component thereof. Analogous approach is used also for assessments
at individual credit exposure, with respect to individually significant loans, taking into account the quality of collateral as well.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
so as to minimize the discrepancies between loss estimates and actual loss experienced (Notes Ne 12, 18).

In 2016, management conducted a retrospective analysis of actual losses experienced on loans in order to update the
applicable rates for loan impairment on a portfolio basis. As a result of this analysis and the enlarged scope of the individual
impairment testing, the applied rate of impairment on a portfolio basis was set at 0 per cent (2015: 2.04 per cent).
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Key estimates and assumptions of high uncertainty (continued)
b) Measurement of available-for-sale financial instruments non-quoted on the active stock market

The Group classifies its investments as share participation in other non-public companies/entities (below 20 per cent of their
capital) as available-for-sale financial assets that have been acquired for the purpose of establishing and development of
business relations of importance for the Group. Management has judged and accepted that they should be measured at
acquisition price (cost) because sufficiently reliable sources and methods to determine their fair value are not available at
present and due to the specific closed manner of their trading until the time when new circumstances occur that allow the
formation of reasonable assumptions and reliable valuation of their fair value.

Analysis and assessment are performed by the Group at each end of reporting period as to whether indications of impairment
of its investments exist. The significant and continuous decrease in equity, including below the level of the registered share
capital of the company/entity, subject to investment, is regarded as a main indicator. In such cases, impairment is determined
with the assistance of a certified appraiser, but the smallest amount that is reported is that of the difference between the
acquisition price (cost) and the assessment of participation under the equity method, including with additional adjustments of
net assets, if necessary. In the cases of partial sales of similar shares in the reporting period, those from the same issuer, but
remaining in the Group’s statement of financial position, are revalued at the selling price (Notes Ne 9, 20).

¢) Impairment of available—for-sale financial instruments quoted on stock markets

As of 31 December 2016 the Group conducted a detailed comparative analysis of the movements in the stock market prices of
public companies shares held by it on the national stock market.

For investments in companies, whose shares are listed for dealing at the Bulgarian Stock Exchange, management has carried
out research and analyses and deems that they may be subsequently carried at fair value determined directly on the basis of
completed transactions in the stock market in the last month of the financial year (Level 1). In addition, the applied prices are
analysed for trends in the behaviour of stock exchange prices of the respective securities at least for the last three months of
the year and respectively, to the date of issuing of the consolidated financial statements. (Notes 9, 15, 20).

For investments in securities available for sale, held by the Group for more than one year after the date of acquisition, a special
analysis was conducted of monitored graphics of movement/volatility of their stock exchange prices and fair values, determined
by alternative valuation techniques for a period of 18 months to 31 December, in order to determine whether there are conditions
of permanent and material impairment.

d) Provisions for issued bank guarantees

Atthe end of each reporting period the Group reviews its contingent liabilities for the purpose of establishing whether any events
have occurred, that would confirm with a high probability outflow of Group's resources might take place for the settlement of an
obligation. If such events occur, the Group provides its liability up to the amount of its future costs related to the outflows of
economic benefits/payments. These costs/losses are determined on the basis of the present value of the future net cash flows,
representing the difference between the payment obligation and the possible inflows of subsequent recourse to third parties
(Notes Ne 12, 32, 36).

e) Actuarial calculations

In assessing the present value of the long-term liabilities to employees upon retirement, actuarial methods and calculations are
used based on assumptions for mortality rate, staff turnover rate, future salary levels and a discount factor considered by
management as reasonable and relevant to the Group (Note Ne 33).
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key estimates and assumptions of high uncertainty (continued)

f) Valuation of investment property

The fair value of investment property, which management considers reasonable and adequate for the Group, is determined by
certified independent appraisers. The valuations are conducted by using various valuation techniques, such as the recoverable
amount method, the method of income capitalisation, the method of market analogues, where for each method a weight is set
for the purposes of achieving the final fair value of investment property at the end of the reporting period (Note N 25).

g) Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure include assets held for sale (as a result of acquired loan collateral), but not sold
within the envisaged 12-month period and reclassified as Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure. These assets are
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The net realisable value, which management considers reasonable and
adequate for the Group, is determined by certified independent appraisers.

h) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models.
The input to these models is taken from observable financial market indicators, where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. The assumptions include liquidity factors, volatility for longer
derivatives and discount rates, early payments and assumptions for non-performance in connection with securities for which
assets have been provided as collateral.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

New and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. The following amendments to
standards have been adopted by the Company as of 1 January 2016:

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and |AS 38 Intangible assets (Amendments): Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

The amendments clarify the principle in 1AS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through
use of the asset. As a result, the ratio of revenue generated to total revenue expected to be generated cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment or amortise intangible assets. The amendments have no effect on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and |AS 41 Agriculture (Amendments): Bearer Plants

According to the amendments bearer plants are within the scope of IAS 16 and are subject to all of the requirements therein.
This includes the ability to choose between the cost model and revaluation model for subsequent measurement. Agricultural
produce growing on bearer plants (e.g., fruit growing on a tree) remains within the scope of IAS 41. Government grants relating
to bearer plants are accounted for in accordance with JAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance, instead of in accordance with IAS 41. The amendments have no effect on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

IAS 19 Employee benefits (Amended): Employee Contributions

The amendment applies to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The objective of the
amendment is to simplify the accounting for contributions that are independent of the number of years of employee service, for
example, employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. The amendment has no effect
on the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Amendment): Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
The amendment adds new guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a
business in accordance with IFRS. The Group had no transactions in scope of this amendment.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments)

The amendments clarify that the exemption from presenting consolidated financial statements applies to a parent entity that is
a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. Also, the
amendments clarify that only a subsidiary that is not an investment entity itself and provides support services to the investment
entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair value. The amendments to IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures allow the investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value
measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries. The amendments have
no effect on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All' amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

2,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)

The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements further encourage companies to apply professional judgment
in determining what information to disclose and how to structure it in their financial statements. They clarify, rather than
significantly change, existing IAS 1 requirements. The amendments relate to materiality, order of the notes, subtotals and
disaggregation, accounting policies and presentation of items of other comprehensive income (OCI) arising from equity
accounted Investments. The amendments to 1AS 1 affect presentation only and have no impact on the Group's financial position
or performance.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
Summary of amendments and related standards are provided below:

IFRS 2 Share-based Payments — amended definitions of ‘vesting conditions’ and ‘market condition’ and adding the
definitions of ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’;

IFRS 3 Business Combinations — clarification on the accounting for contingent consideration arising from business
combination;

IFRS 8 Operating Segments - additional disclosures of management judgement on aggregating operating segments
and clarification on reconciliation of total segments’ assets to the entity's assets;

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - clarification on interaction with IFRS 9 as regards shori-term receivables and
payables;

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — amended to state that when an item of property, plant and equipment is
revalued, the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying
amount while the accumulated depreciation is calculated as a difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated impairment losses;

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures - clarified that a management entity that provides key management services to a
reporting entity is deemed to be a related party; disclosure of the service fee paid or payable is required;

IAS 38 Intangible Assets — same amendment as IAS 16 above.

The adoption of the above amendments to standards has no effect on the financial statements of the Group.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
Summary of amendments and related standards are provided below:

e |FRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - clarification that changing from one of the
disposal methods to the other (through sale or through distribution to the owners) should not be considered fo be a
new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan;

o IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures ~ provides examples of continuing involvement in a financial asset and
clarifies required disclosures in the condensed interim financial report;

IAS 19 Employee Benefits — clarification on long-term liability discount rate determination;

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - clarification on required interim disclosures: they must either be in the interim
financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference to other interim financial information (e.g., in the management
report) that is available to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same time.

The adoption of the above amendments to standards has no effect on the financial statements of the Group.
Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments:; Classification and Measurement

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted. The final
version of IFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting.

In 2016, the process of preparation for the adoption of IFRS 9 is currently in the pipeline at Bulgarian Development Bank (the
,Bank®); in 2017, the organisation of the preparation, as also the necessary changes in the internal by-laws and required
technical assurance to guarantee compliance with the requirements of the new standard, are to be made. In December 2016
qualified experts and more than 30 key employees of different Bank divisions were trained. This process will continue in the
next year as well, and will be finalized by updating all in-house regulations, making investments in specialist software and
upgrading the existing systems in compliance with the requirements of the Standard. The Bank will carry out consultations on
hiring an external advisor and selecting an information and technical solution for ensuring compliance with the requirements of
IFRS 9. The first step will involve an analysis and assessment of the impact of this Standard on its future financial position or
performance.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application permitted. IFRS 15
establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue eamned from a contract with a customer (with limited exceptions),
regardiess of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The standard’s requirements will also apply to the recognition and
measurement of gains and losses on the sale of some non-financial assets that are not an output of the entity's ordinary
activities (e.g., sales of property, plant and equipment or intangibles). Extensive disclosures will be required, including
disaggregation of total revenue; information about performance obligations; changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgments and estimates. The Group will analyse and assess the impact of the new standard
on its financial position or performance.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Clarifications)

The clarifications apply for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application permitted. The objective
of the clarifications is to clarify the [ASB's intentions when developing the requirements in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracis
with Customers, particularly the accounting of identifying performance obligations amending the wording of the “separately
identifiable” principle, of principal versus agent considerations including the assessment of whether an entity is a principal or
an agent as well as applications of contro! principle and of licensing providing additional guidance for accounting of intellectual
property and royalties. The clarifications also provide additional practical expedients for entities that either apply IFRS 15 fully
retrospectively or that elect to apply the modified retrospective approach. These clarifications have not yet been endorsed by
the EU. The Group will analyse and assess the impact of these clarifications on its financial position or performance.

IFRS 16 Leases

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (‘lessee’) and
the supplier (‘lessor’). The new standard requires lessees to recognize most leases on their balance sheet and to have a single
accounting model for all leases, with certain exemptions. Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged. The standard has not
been yet endorsed by the EU. The Group will analyse and assess the impact of the new standard on its financial position or
performance.

Amendments inIFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures:
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28, in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. A full gain or loss is recognized
when a transaction involves a business or a partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business. The IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of its research
project on the equity method of accounting. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. It is not expected that
these amendments would impact the financial position or performance of the Group.

IAS 12 Income taxes (Amendments): Recognition of Deferred Tax Assels for Unrealised Losses

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early application permitted. The
objective of these amendments is to clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

in order to address diversity in practice in the application of IAS 12 Income Taxes. The specific issues where diversity in practice
existed relate to the existence of a deductible temporary difference upon a decrease in fair value, to recovering an asset for
more than its carrying amount, to probable future taxable profit and to combined versus separate assessment. The amendments
have not yet been endorsed by the EU. It is not expected that these amendments would impact the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued)

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments): Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier application permitted. The
objective of these amendments is to enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities. The amendments will require entities to provide disclosures that enable investors to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments have not
yet been endorsed by the EU. It is not expected that these amendments would impact the financial position or performance of
the Group.

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (Amendments): Classification and Measurement of Share based Payment Transactions
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application permitted. The
amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement
of cash-settled share-based payments, for share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations and for modifications to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity-settied. These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. It is not expected
that these amendments would impact the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments): Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The objective of these amendments is
to address issues arising from the different effective dates of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the upcoming new insurance
contracts standard IFRS 17 Insurance Contract. Entities issuing insurance contracts will still be able to adopt IFRS 9 on 1
January 2018. The amendments introduce two alternative options for entities issuing contracts within the scope of IFRS 4,
notably a temporary exemption and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible entities to defer the
implementation date of IFRS 9. The overlay approach allows an entity applying IFRS 9 from 2018 onwards to remove from
profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that may occur from applying IFRS 9 before IFRS 17 is applied.
These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. It is not expected that these amendments would impact the financial
position or performance of the Group.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application permitted. This
interpretation addresses how to determine the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it} on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The interpretation has not
yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the new interpretation on its financial
position or performance.

IAS 40 Investment Property (Amendments): Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application permitted. The
amendments clarify transfers of property to, or from, investment property when there is a change in the use of such property
which is supported by evidence. These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. It is not expected that these
amendments would impact the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2, BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
In the 2014-2016 annual improvements cycle, the |ASB issued amendments to three standards which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 / 1 January 2018. Summary of amendments and related standards are provided
below:
o IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards - deletion of short-term exemptions for first-
time adopters (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018);
o |FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - clarification of the scope of the Standard (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017), and
¢ |AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - measuring an associate or joint venture at fair value (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

The improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle have not yet been endorsed by EU. The Group is in the process of assessing
the impact of the amendments on its financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans, receivables and deposits on the date they were incurred. All other financial instruments
(including assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date, which
is the date that the Group becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or the
Group transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in such transferred financial asset that qualify for derecognition,
which is created or retained by the Group, is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative financial assets: loans and receivables, financial assets available-for-sale and
financial assets held-to-maturity.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is carried at fair value through profit or loss if it is a derivative held for trading or if it is designated as such
upon initial recognition. Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss when the Group manages them and
makes decisions for purchases and sales on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk or investment
management strategy of the Group. Attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and any related changes, including dividend income, are recognised
in profit or loss. Upon initial acquisition, the Group’s management determines whether a financial assets will be held for trading.
Usually, management designates derivatives as such instruments.

A derivative is a financial instrument:

e Whose value changes in response to changes in interest rates, security prices, commodity prices, foreign exchange
rates, price indices or interest rates, credit ratings or credit indices, or other variables;

»  That requires no initial net investment, or one that is smaller than would be required for a contract with similar
response to changes in market conditions;

e Thatis settled at a future date.

When upon entering a specific derivative transaction the Group defines a position to be hedged and all the requirements of IAS
39 have been met, the corresponding derivative is recognised as such hedging. Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for
hedge accounting are classified as held for trading.

Initially, derivative financial instruments are measured at cost (including transaction costs) and subsequently, they are
measured at fair value. Derivatives are accounted for as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when it is
negative.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs. Subsequently, loans and receivables are
measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest rate, less any impairment losses. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the present carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates the cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but
not considering any future credit losses. The calculation includes all charges and other fees paid to or received by the
contractors that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

The Group assesses, for individual assets or collectively, whether evidence of impairment of loans and receivables exists for
each specific asset, except for receivables from employees and those, which have occurred in relation to NPEEMFRB (Note 3:
Impairment of financial assets). Those of them, for which there are no indications of impairment, are subject to collective
impairment, which has occurred but is not yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and are collectively assessed for impairment (Note 3: Impairment of
financial assets).

After a thorough review of the quality and impairment testing of standard exposures, the Bank established that there were no
indications of collective impairment of the credit portfolio as at 31 December 2016.

The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the financial asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss and reported in an allowance account reducing the amount of loans and receivables. When an event, which has occurred
after an impairment has been recognised, reduces the impairment loss, this reduction is reversed through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents, receivables from banks, loans and advances to customers,
receivables from the State budget, and trade and other receivables.

Sales and repo deals

Securities subject to repurchase (“repo”) agreements are not derecognised from the consolidated statement of financial
position. Securities acquired under reverse repo deals ("reverse repo”) are stated as receivables from banks. The difference
between the selling price and the repo price is reported as interest over the term of the repo agreement using the effective
interest rate method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as other category financial assets. Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, including
direct transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and any fair value changes, other
than impairment losses (Note 3: Impairment of financial assets), and foreign exchange gains or losses on available-for-sale
derivative instruments, are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve as part of equity.
When an investment is derecognised, the accumulated gains or losses in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

The available-for-sale financial assets include debt and equity securities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Held-to-maturity financial assets

When the Group has a positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then these securities are classified as held-
to-maturity financial assets. Held-to-maturity financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus all direct transaction costs.
After the initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

The held-to-maturity financial assets include debt securities.

Assets under trust management

The Group provides trust management services that includes holding of or investing in assets on behalf of customers. Assets
held under trust management, unless certain recognition criteria have been met, are not included in the Group’s financial
statements since they are not assets of the Group.

The parent company (the Bank) performs services in its capacity as an investment intermediary in accordance with the
provisions of the Public Offering of Securities Act (POSA). Being an investment intermediary, the Bank is obliged to comply
with certain requirements in order to protect its customers' interests in accordance with the Markets in Financial Instruments
Act (MFIA) and Ordinance 38, issued by the Financial Supervision Commission (FSC). Moreover, the Bank should also observe
the requirements of Directive 2014/65/EC on the Markets in Financial Instruments (MiFID 11) and Regulation 600/2014 of the
EU on the Markets in Financial Instruments (MiFIR). The Bank has developed and implements organization relating to the
conclusion and performance of contracts with customers, the requirement of information from customers, keeping records and
storage of client’s assets, in compliance with the provisions of the above-mentioned National and European legal acts. The
Bank has implemented a system of in-house internal control rules and procedures aiming at ensuring its full compliance with
the bodies of legislation mentioned above.

Reclassification of financial assets

Applicable as from 1 July 2008, the Group has the right to reclassify, under certain conditions, non-derivative financial assets
outside the category of held-for-trading into the categories of held-for-trading, loans and advances, or held-to-maturity. From
the same date, it is also possible to reclassify, under certain conditions, financial instruments from the category of held-for-
trading into the category of loans and advances. The reclassification is measured at fair value at the date of reclassification that
becomes its new amortised cost.

For financial assets, classified outside the category of held-for-trading, all previous gains and losses recognized in the equity
are amortised through profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment, using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and estimated cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset, using the
effective interest rate. If subsequently the asset is classified as impaired, its value reported in equity is transferred to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In certain rare cases, the Group may reclassify a non-derivative trading instrument from the category of held-for-trading into
the category of loans and advances, if it meets the criteria to be recognized as loans and advances and the Group has the
intention and ability to hold the financial assets in the foreseeable future or until its maturity. If a financial asset has been
reclassified and the Group subsequently increases its expectations as to the cash flows to be obtained from the asset as a
result of the improved ability to obtain such cash flows, the effect of this increase is recognized as a change in the effective
interest rate from the date of recognition of the change.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

The reclassification is done at management's discretion and is determined separately for each instrument. The Group does not
reclassify financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) subsequent to their initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, which are not derivative instruments or which have not been designated on acquisition as liabilities to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost. Initially, they are stated at “cost”, i.e. the fair
value of cash flows received on the origination of the liability, less any transaction costs. Subsequently, any difference between
the net cash flows and the residual value is recognised in profit or loss for the period using the effective interest rate method
over the term of the liability. The financial liabilities reported by the Group as deposits, borrowings and securities issued are
stated at amortised cost.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the present carrying amount of the financial asset or
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument, but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all charges and other fees paid to or
received by the contractors that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised when:

e the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired;

¢ the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have been transferred, or contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the financial asset have been retained, but a contractual obligation has been assumed for their payment in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement, and either:

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, or

(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition of financial instruments (continued)

When the Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial asset nor transferred control of the asset, the transferred
financial asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In this case, the Group recognises
the related obligation. The transferred asset and the concomitant obligation are evaluated to reflect the rights and obligations
which the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

A financial liability is derecognised from the consolidated statement of financial position when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts of the original and new liability is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial instruments

A financial asset, which is not recognised at fair value through profit and loss, is reviewed at each reporting date to assess
whether there is objective evidence of its impairment. A financial asset is impaired when there is objective evidence that a loss
event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of
the asset that can be estimated reliably.

Obijective evidence a financial asset is impaired includes default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a liability to the
Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse
changes in the payment status of a borrower or issuer, economic conditions that lead to failures or the disappearance of an
active market for a security.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group considers evidence for impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost (loans and advances and held-
to-maturity debt securities) at both individual and collective level. Al individually significant assets are assessed for specific
impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together
assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the
amount of loss incurred.

Impairment losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost are calculated as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and advances or held-
to-maturity investment securities. When an event occurring after the impairment was recognised causes the amount of
impairment losses to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial instruments (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassification to profit or loss of the losses
accumulated in the fair value reserve in the equity. The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayments and amortisation, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in profit or loss, and the present fair value. Any changes in impairment attributable to the application of the effective
interest method are reflected as a component of interest income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired
available-for sale debt security increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, then the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal being recognised in profit or loss.
Any subsequent recovery of the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The Group discloses information about the fair value of those assets and liabilities
for which there is market information available and the fair value of which significantly differs from their carrying amount.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities that are quoted in active markets and for which there is market information
available are based on announced market prices or closing prices. The use of real market prices and information reduces the
need for management assessment and assumptions, as well as the uncertainty related to the determination of fair value. The
availability of real market prices and information varies depending on products and markets, and changes according to the
specific events and the general financial market conditions. For some of the other financial instruments the Group determines
the fair values by using of an evaluation method based on the net present value. The net present value calculation is provided
by market yield curves and credit spreads, where necessary, for the respective instrument. The purpose of evaluation
techniques is to determine fair value, which would be précised by direct market participants. For investments in subsidiaries
and associated companies, as well as for equity investments for which there are no observable market prices, the Group
accepts that the fair value is the price of acquisition. The Group has established control environment with respect to the
assessment of fair values.

The fair values of financial instruments not traded in active markets (such as derivatives not traded on the market), which are
an object of a fransaction between the parties, are determined using valuation technigues. These valuation techniques adhere
to the use of market data when available and as less as possible to the use of specific assessments of the company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group applies the following hierarchy for measuring and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments using valuation

techniques:

e Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical instruments;

e Level 2 ~ inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly. This
category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data;

e Level 3 - unobservable inputs for an asset or a liability. This category includes all instruments, for which the valuation
technique does not include observable inputs and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments;

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities is disclosed in Note 5.

Finance lease receivables

Lease activity in the Group is associated with leasing out of industrial equipment, vehicles, agricultural machinery etc. on
financial lease terms. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident to
ownership.

All other leases, which do not transfer risk and rewards incident to ownership of the asset, are classified as operating lease.

Minimum lease payments

Minimum lease payments are the payments over the lease term that the lessee is or can be required to make. From the Group's
perspective, the minimum lease payments also include the residual value of the asset, which is guaranteed by a third party
unrelated to the Group, under the condition that this third party is financially capable of discharging the obligation under the
guarantee or the sale back agreement. The minimum lease payments comprise also the price of exercising an option of the
lessee to purchase the asset, when at the inception of the lease it is virtually certain that this option will be exercised.

Minimum lease payments exclude any contingent rent, cost for services and taxes paid by the Group and subsequently re-
invoiced to the lessee.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Finance lease receivables (continued)

Commencement of the lease contract and commencement of the lease term

There is a distinction between the commencement of the lease contract and the commencement of the lease term:

e The commencement of the lease contract is the earlier of the two dates: the date of the lease contract or the date of
the commitment by the parties to the main terms and conditions of the lease contract.

e The commencement of the lease term is the date from which the lessee may exercise the right to use the leased
asset. This is the date at which the Group initially recognises the lease receivable.

Initial measurement and subsequent recognition

Initially, the Group recognises a finance lease receivable, which is equal to its net investment in the lease comprising the
present value of the minimum lease payments and any unguaranteed residual value for the Group. The present value is
calculated by discounting the minimum lease payments at the interest rate implicit in the lease. Any initial direct costs are added
to the finance lease receivable. During the lease term, the Group accrues financial income (interest income on finance lease)
over the net investment. The lease payments received are treated as a reduction of net investment {repayment of the principal)
and recognition of finance income in such a way that ensures a constant rate of return on the net investment.

Subsequently, the net investment in finance leases is presented net, less any individual and portfolio allowance for
uncollectability.

The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and reported in
an allowance account reducing the amount of finance lease receivables. When an event, which has occurred after an
impairment has been recognised, reduces the impairment loss, this reduction is reversed through profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash in current accounts with other
banks, deposits and placements with other banks — payable at sight and/or with original maturity of up to 3 months, including
repo deals with original maturity of up to 3 months, as well as unrestricted (not blocked) balances with the Central Bank (BNB).
The parent company (the Bank) maintains a minimum statutory reserve according to the requirements of BNB and for the
purposes of cash flow statement it includes these funds included as a component of Cash and cash equivalents.

They are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position at amortised cost.

For the purposes of preparation of the consolidated cash flow statement, bank overdrafts payable on demand and forming an
integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of Cash and cash equivalents.

Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale, if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale and not through a continuing use
in the Group’s operations. Assets held for sale are stated initially at cost, with the transaction costs being taken into account in
the initial measurement. Usually, these assets have been initially accepted by the Bank as collateral and subsequently acquired
as a result of a “debt against property” exchange by borrowers that do not perform their obligations in accordance with the
agreed contractual terms.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Assets held for sale (continued)

Assets classified in this group are available for immediate sale in their present condition.

Management is usually engaged actively and performs actions to realise a sale transaction within at least one year after the
date of classification of the asset in this group.

Assets classified as held for sale are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position separately and measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and their fair value less the estimated direct costs to sell.

The assets within this classification group are not depreciated.

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure include assets held for sale (as a resuit of acquired loan collateral), but not sold
within the envisaged 12-month period and reclassified as Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure. These assets are
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Taxes

Current income taxes are determined by the Group in accordance with the Bulgarian legislation. The income tax due is
calculated on the basis of the taxable profit for the period determined in accordance with the rules established by the tax
authorities on the grounds of which taxes are paid (reversed).

The tax effect relating to transactions and other events reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is
recognised also in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the tax effect relating to transactions and other
events reported directly in equity is also recognised directly in equity.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred income tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or (loss).

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised except where the deferred income tax
asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or fiability in a transaction that at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or (loss).

Deferred taxes are recognised as income or expense, and are included in the net profit for the period, except in cases, when
these taxes arise from transactions or events, reported for the same or another period directly in equity. Deferred taxes are
charged to or deducted directly from equity, when they relate to items, which have been charged to or deducted from equity in
the same or in a different period.

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are presented on the consolidated financial statements at historical cost of acquisition,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Initial recognition

Upon their initial acquisition, items of property, plant and equipment are valued at acquisition cost, which comprises the
purchase price, including customs duties and any directly atfributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition. Directly
attributable costs include: costs for site preparation, initial delivery and handling costs, installation costs, professional fees for
people involved in the project, non-refundable taxes etc.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subseguent measurement

The approach chosen by the Group for subsequent measurement of property, plant and equipment, is the cost model under
IAS 16 - acquisition cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised net in other operating income / expenses in profit or loss.

Depreciation method

The Group applies the straight-line depreciation method for property, plant and equipment. The useful life per group of assets
is as follows:

e buildings - 50 years

e bank equipment and computers - 5 years
» motor vehicles — 5 years

o fixtures and fittings — 6.7 years

The useful life by groups was not changed compared to 2015.

The useful life of the individual groups of assets is determined by the management considering: their physical wear and tear,
features of the equipment, intentions for future use and expected obsolescence. The useful life of equipment is reviewed at
each year-end and adjusted prospectively in case that any material deviations from future expectations concerning the terms
of use are found.

Subsequent costs

Repair and maintenance expenses are recognised as current in the period in which they were incurred. Subsequent expenses
relating to an item of property, plant and equipment that have the nature of replacement of certain components or improvements
and restructuring are capitalised to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and its remaining useful life to the date of
capitalisation is reassessed accordingly. At the same time, the unamortised portion of replaced components is derecognised
from the assets’ carrying amount and recognised as current expenses for the period of restructure.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are presented on the consolidated financial statements at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. They include software and software licences.

The Group applies the straight-line depreciation method for the intangible assets with a determined useful life of 5 years.

The carrying amount of the intangible assets is subject to review for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amount might exceed their recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets are derecognised from the consolidated financial statement when permanently withdrawn from use (upon
retirement), when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or on disposal. Any gains or losses on disposal of
individual assets from the group of intangible assets are determined by comparing the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset at the date of the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment property

The Group’s management uses this category upon lease of assets acquired from collateral foreclosure on loans. Investment
property is measured initially at cost plus any transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is
recognised at fair value. Any gain or loss due to changes in the fair value of investment property is recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which it has occurred. The fair value of investment property is determined on the basis of a valuation made
by an independent appraiser.

Investment property rental income is presented as other operating income, while operating expenses directly or indirectly
relating to the generated rental income are presented as other operating expenses. Investment property is derecognised on
disposal or upon withdrawal from use (retirement), when no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gains
or losses on derecognition of investment property are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they have occurred.

Pensions and other payables to personnel under the social security and labour legislation

According to the Bulgarian legislation, the Group is obliged to pay contributions to social security and health insurance funds.
The employment relations of the employees with the Group, in its capacity of an employer, are based on the provisions of the
Labour Code.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits of the Group in the form of salaries, bonuses and social payments and benefits are recognised
as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the respective service has been
rendered or the requirements for their receipt have been met, and as a current liability at their undiscounted amount. The
Group's obligations to make social security and health insurance contributions are recognised as a current expense and liability
at their undiscounted amount together and in the period of accrual of the respective benefits they relate to.

At the end of each reporting period the Group assesses and reports the expected costs of accumulating compensated absences
as the amount that is expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement. The assessment includes the estimated costs
of employee’s remuneration and the statutory social security and health insurance contributions owed by the employer on these
amounts.

Long-term retirement benefits

In accordance with the requirements of the Labour Code, the employer is obliged to pay to its personnel upon retirement an
indemnity that depending on the length of service with the entity varies between two and six gross monthly salaries as of the
date of employment termination. In their nature these are defined benefit plans.

The calculation of the amount of these liabilities requires the involvement of qualified actuaries in order to determine their
present value at the date of the consolidated financial statements, at which they are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position, adjusted with the amount of the actuarial gains and losses, and respectively, the change in their value,
including the recognised actuarial gains and losses - in other comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Pensions and other payables to personnel under the social security and labour legislation (continued)

Long-term retirement benefits (continued)

Past service costs are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
they were incurred. At the end of each reporting period, the Group assigns certified actuaries who issue a report with
calculations regarding the long-term retirement benefit obligations. For the purpose, they apply the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the future cash flows, which are
expected to be paid within the maturity of this obligation, and by applying the interest rates of long-term government bonds
denominated in Bulgarian leva.

Actuarial gains and losses arise from changes in the actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments. Actuarial gains and
losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions upon retirement for assured length of service and age are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Termination benefits

In accordance with the provisions of the Labour Code, the employer is obliged, upon termination of an employment contract
prior to retirement, to pay indemnities as follows:

« for non-observed preliminary notice: one gross monthly salary;

e due to closing down the enterprise or part of it, outlays, reduction of the volume of work and work stoppage for more than 15
days, etc.: one gross monthly salary;

e upon termination of the employment contract due to iliness: two gross monthly salaries;

o for unused annual paid leave: for the respective years of the time recognised as service period.

The Group recognises employee benefit obligations in the event of employment termination before the normal retirement date
when it is demonstrably committed, based on an announced plan, to either terminating the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits failing due more than 12 months are discounted to and presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position at present value.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than investment property, inventory and deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exist,
then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets with indefinite useful life or not yet brought into use,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually. An impairment loss is recognised always when the carrying amount of an asset
or a cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using the pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised with respect to CGUs are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised.

Share capital

The share capital is stated at the nominal value of shares issued and paid. Any proceeds from shares issued over their nominal
value are reported as share premium.

Expenses directly relating to the issuance of new shares, except of such relating to business combinations are deducted from
the capital net of any associated taxes. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in the period in which they were approved
by the shareholders. Dividends for the period, which have been announced after the date of preparation of the financial
statements, are disclosed as events after the date of the financial statements.

Dividends

An obligation for cash payables to the owners is recognised when the distribution has been approved by them and no longer
depends on the Group. The corresponding amount is written off directly from equity.

Interest income and interest expenses

Interest income and interest expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on an accrual
basis for all interest-bearing instruments using the effective yield method based on the actual price of acquisition or the
applicable floating interest rate. Interest income and interest expenses include the amortisation of any discount or premium, or
any other differences between the original carrying amount of an interest-bearing instrument and its amount at maturity
calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

Interest income includes interest income on available-for-sale and held-for-trading debt securities, interest on deposits with
other banks, interest on loans and advances to customers, and fees and commissions on loans and advances to customers,
which are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial instrument.

Interest expense is recognised on an accrual basis and comprises the interest accrued on deposits of customers and banks,
as well as on loans received and other borrowings, fees and commissions on loans received, which form an integral part of the
effective interest expense.

The Group also holds investments and assets in countries with negative interest rate levels. The Group discloses the interest
paid on such assets as interest expense with additional disclosure.

Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions on bank guarantees are recognised on a systematic basis over the period of existence of the exposure
to match the cost of providing the service. Fee and commission expenses relating to servicing Nostro accounts with other banks
or to the provision of another bank service are recognised at the time of provision of the underlying service and attaining the
result thereof.

Trust management fees are recognised on an accrual basis over the period of providing the service.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into BGN at the exchange rate of BNB prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Receivables and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are revalued on a daily basis. At the end of the year, they are
translated in BGN at the closing exchange rates of BNB, which for the main currencies as of the date of the financial statements
are the following:

Foreign currency 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
usbD 1.85545 1.79007
Euro 1.95583 1.95583

Since 1999 the Bulgarian Lev (BGN) has been fixed to the Euro (EUR), the official currency of the European Union, at ratio of
BGN 1.95583/ EUR 1.0

Net gains or losses on changes in exchange rates, which have incurred from revaluation of receivables, liabilities, as well as
from foreign currency transactions, are presented on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they have occurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive liability as a result of past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the liability. Provisions are measured on
the basis of the best management’s estimate at the end of reporting period of the expenses necessary to settle the particular
obligation. The estimate is discounted if the obligation is long-term.

Contingent liabilities are obligations arising from past events, the existence of which can be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not entirely within the control of the Group, or it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. They are not recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position but are subject to special disclosure.

Segment reporting

The Group does not report operating segments, because its major source of risk and return is the corporate business sector;
there isn't a single external customer the revenue from who to form more than 10 per cent of the total revenue, and the Group
operates in the territory of the country. All Group entities are financial entities possessing similar economic characteristics in
view of the nature of services, the type and category of customers, the methods of service provision, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. If these factors change in the future and the Group starts to report operating segments, they will be
determined and presented in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 8 Operating Segments.

Guarantee policy

In its normal activities, the Group issues financial guarantees. Financial guarantees are recognized initially in the financial
statements and stated at fair value, which is equal to the guarantee fee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
obligations on each guarantee are measured at the higher of the initially recognized amount less any accumulated amortisation
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and the best estimate of costs that would be necessary to settle any
financial liabilities, which have occurred as a result of the guarantee.

Any increase in provisions relating to financial guarantees is reported in the statement of comprehensive income as costs of
provisions in accordance with IAS 37. The fee received is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income - as Fee and
commission income, and deferred over the guarantee term on a straight-line basis.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is exposed to a variety of risks that, if occur, could result in formation of losses
and deterioration of the Group’s financial stability. These risks are identified, measured and monitored through various control
mechanisms in order to be managed and to prevent undue risk concentration. The process of risk management is essential for
the Group's profitability and existence.

The risk management within Bulgarian Development Bank Group is a complex of methods and procedures used by the Group
for identifying, measuring and monitoring its risk exposures. The Group manages the following main categories of risk:

e Credit risk;

e Liquidity risk;

e Market risk;

e Operational risk.

When managing the risks, the Group applies policies and procedures relevant to the nature and complexity of its activity, which
are based on best practices in banking industry.

Risk management structure
The main units that are directly responsible for risk management are as follows:

For the parent company (the Bank):

- Supervisory Board - performs overall supervision of risk management;

- Management Board - responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving risk management
strategies, principles and specific methods, techniques and procedures;

- Risk Committee - responsible for exercising control over the implementation of the risk management policies by
various types of risk, as well as the adequacy of the Bank’s risk profile to the tasks assigned to it.

- Committee on Assets and Liability Management (ALCO) - responsible for the strategic management of assets and
liabilities and for market risk management, including liquidity risk management, related to the assets and liabilities.

- Provisions Committee - analyses credit transactions from the perspective of credit risk management for the loan
portfolio in general, as well as of the level of credit deals and borrowers;

- Executive Directors and members of the Management Board - exercise current operating control of the maintenance
and monitoring of the limits set for a particular types of risk and the application of the established procedures.

- The Central Bank exercises supplementary supervision of risk management by requiring periodically regulatory
reports and exercising subsequent control on the compliance with the statutory maximum levels of exposure to certain
risks.

For the subsidiary National Guarantee Fund (the Fund)
The main units responsible for the management of risks are:

- Supervisory Board - Management Board of BDB AD (the parent company) — performs overall supervision of risk
management;

- Board of Directors - responsible for the overall approach towards risk and approves risk management strategies,
principles and specific methods, risk management techniques and procedures;

- Provisions Committee — analyses the guaranteed portfolio in terms of overall credit risk management of the whole
portfolio, as well as of each guarantee deal and each beneficiary of the guarantee itself.

- Risk and Monitoring Department — performs monitoring of the guaranteed portfolios and the collateral provided. At
least annually an inspection over the fulfilment of the economic and social requirements for the SME using a
guarantee from National Guarantee Fund EAD is carried out.
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

For the subsidiary Microfinance Institution “JOBS” EAD (MFI):
The main units responsible for the risk management are:

Board of Directors — responsible for the adoption of risk management rules and procedures; exercising control over
the risk factors of the Company and making decisions within their powers; as well as for conducting analyses of all
credit transactions exceeding BGN 100 thousand in view of credit risk management upon their approval;

Credit committee — monitors and analyses on an ongoing basis the loan and lease portfolio of the Company in terms
of credit risk, including by individual transactions;

Credit Council — analyses credit and leasing transactions in terms of credit risk management upon their approval and
/ or renegotiation;

Operational Management (Executive director and Member of the BD) - organises the activities for the implementation
of the Rules for Risk Management adopted by the Board of Directors; creates a work organisation that ensures
compliance with the limits and risk levels set; exercises control over the compliance of the risk analysis, measurement
and evaluation procedures with the internal documents adopted by the Board of Directors;

Risk Management Department - develops and implements a risk management system; prepares and submits to the
Board of Directors periodic reports for assessing the operational risks, including the observance of the limits, and
reports on an ongoing basis to the Operational Management of the Company; performs initial and ongoing validation
of the risk assessment methods; examines the inputs needed for the risk assessment in accordance with applicable
principles of reliability and sufficiency.

Measurement and management of major risks

Management of the Group companies has adopted a set of internal rules and procedures for measuring various risks, which
are based on statistical models and best international banking practices, as well as on the historical experience of the Group

itself,

Risk monitoring and management are primarily based on limits. Those limits reflect on the Group’s strategy and its market
position, as well as on the level of risk that can be borne. Reports on the specific types of risks are periodically prepared for the
purpose of subsequent analysis and possible adjustments of already set limits.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1, Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of potential losses due to a failure of the Group's customers to discharge their contractual obligations in
connection with receivables and financial instruments held by the Group.

Credit risk is the main risk for the Group and therefore, its management is fundamental for its activity. Credit risk management
is performed in accordance with the law for BDB AD (the parent company) and the effective laws and regulations of the Republic
of Bulgaria regulating credit activity, as well as the international regulations and best banking practices, and the requirements
of IFRS.

In assessing and managing credit risks (including the counterparty risk) of its exposures, the Group applies internal rating
generation models. These rating models are based on an analysis of historical data and the counterparty's and its relating
parties’ current financial position; their history and behaviour in servicing their liabilities to other contractors; future cash flow
analyses; sources of servicing the existing and any potential future liabilities to the Group, and other parameters specific to a
particular transaction. Credit portfolio quality monitoring, control and assessment units are established and function within the
Group. Credit portfolio current monitoring, reporting and management procedures and mechanisms are implemented, which
require periodical, and if necessary, extraordinary, reports on the financial and credit status of each borrower and other liable
persons. In managing its credit risk, the Group applies an intra-bank system of limits that is subject to periodic review and
updating.

The Provisions Committee of the Group participates in the credit risk management and is responsible for the exposure quality
and classification; it holds monthly meetings and functions under the supervision of the Management Board of the parent
company.

There is a specialized unit functioning within the Group, which is in charge of the risk assessment both at the customer level
and at the exposure level, where the solvency level is assessed and monitored throughout the entire loan term - from application
to full repayment. The credit risk is partially reduced also by accepting different types of collateral, where at any point in time
the valuation of collateral shall not be older than 12 months.

Following a decision of the Provisions Committee, the Group forms impairment on exposures both at an individual and collective
basis depending on the borrower's risk profile.

The exposures in the Group'’s credit portfolio are classified mainly in three categories depending on the existence of indications
of impairment - changes in the objective indicators on the basis of which the initial measurement and subsequent monitoring
of exposure / customer are carried out, which would result in changes in cash flows from financial assets, including default in
payment due by the borrower: ,standard” (with assigned internal credit ratings from 1 to 6, incl.; “watch” or “forborne” (with
assigned internal credit ratings of 7 or 8) and ,problematic/non-preforming* (with assigned internal credit ratings of 8, 9 or 10).
In follow-up of the recommendations of the Basel Committee and their transposition into regulations within the European Union
and in particular, Regulation 575/2013/EC and Directive 2013/36/EC, the commercial banks are required to implement in their
internal regulations an in-house rating system that allows them to achieve comparability with the borrowers' official crediting
rating assigned by recognized external credit rating institutions, which adopts the scale, used worldwide, of ten credit rating
categories, including two categories for non-performing loans. The Group has developed a detailed internal normative base,
comprising Policy and rules for determining the impairment due to uncollectability of risk exposures, Methodology for credit risk
analysis and assessment, and Credit activity manual, ensuring full compliance of the policy and procedures for determining
internal credit ratings with the above EU regulations. The amount of the impairment is calculated as the difference between the
current amount of the amortised cost of the customer's exposure and its recoverable amount.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise its credit risk, the Group accepts collateral in the form of mortgages of land, industrial property, hotels,
commercial and residential buildings. Additional collateral in the form of pledge of plant, machinery, equipment and inventories,
securities, cash deposits, company shares, promissory notes, third party's avals and guarantees is accepted as well. It is a
common practice of the Group to require collateral from the borrowers that is equal to at least 100 per cent of the agreed loan
amount.

Based on a Guarantee letter from year 2003 and the subsequent annexes signed with the European Investment Fund (EIF),
the parent company (the “Bank”) participates in the EU SME Guarantee Facility under conditions determined by the long-term
EU Program on SMEs. EIF is committed to provide a direct guarantee covering 50 per cent of the remaining loss on the principal
and interest of each loan, included in the sub-portfolio of the Bank, formed on the basis of the conditions of the agreement, but
not exceeding EUR 2,520 thousand (BGN 4,929 thousand). The parent company (the “Bank”) has applied reduced
requirements in accepting collaterals for the EIF-guaranteed portfolio of loans. As of 31 December 2016 the total exposure on
EIF-guaranteed loans amounted to BGN 5,974 thousand (31 December 2015 BGN 6,679 thousand). This amount includes the
utilised but not yet repaid portion of the loans, as well as the Group's commitments on unutilised loans.

The payment engagement of EIF to date amounts to BGN 3,563 thousand (31 December 2015: BGN 4,929 thousand), whereas
the losses covered by EIF amount to BGN 2,887 thousand (31 December 2015: BGN 3,044 thousand).

In November 20186, the parent company (the Bank) signed a counter-guarantee agreement with the European Investment Fund
(EIF) under the COSME programme for small and medium-sized enterprises. The COSME programme is implemented with
the support of EFS! (the European Fund for Strategic Investment), known as the “Juncker Plan”. The parent company (the
Bank) is able to cover up to 60 per cent of the risk on loans extended to SMEs by commercial banks it will partner with. Half of
this risk will be counter-guaranteed by EIF and the total amount of the counter-guarantee is EUR 10 million. By using the
resource guaranteed by the COSME programme, the banks-partners to the parent company (the Bank) will be able to extend
investment loans and loans for working capital, bank guarantees and revolving loans. The maximum amount of loans extended
is EUR 150,000. The term of repayment vary from 1 to 10 years.

As at 31 December 2016 there was no commitment on the counter-guarantee agreement.

Letters of guarantee and letters of credit represent another source of credit risk for the Group. They represent irrevocable
commitment of the Group to make payments in case a customer is not able to meet his obligations to a third party. These
instruments bear the same credit risk as the loan exposures.

Another contingent/off-balance sheet commitment of the Group is the unutilised portion of authorized loan agreements in the
form of loans, letters of guarantee or letters of credit.

The parent company (the “Bank”) forms various sub-portfolios based on the type of contractors and credit risk carriers, as
follows:

Direct lending — loan portfolio, credit lines, investment loans and other forms of lending of legal entities, other than
financial institutions and loans to individuals (loans to Group’s employees);

- Indirect lending or ,on-lending" - portfolio of loans to financial (banking and non-banking) institutions, the purpose of
which is to provide financing/to facilitate the access to financing for micro, small and medium-sized enterprises in the
Republic of Bulgaria.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.1. Credit risk (continued)

Beyond the credit portfolio, the Group's activity is exposed to credit risk also with respect to exposures related to other activities
of the Group:

- portiolio of financial instruments, other than loans, formed in connection with the Group's free cash management, which
comprises mainly government securities issued by the Republic of Bulgaria, classified as ,available-for-sale financial assets®
- to banks in connection with money market transactions, placed term deposits and available balances in Nostro accounts;

- in connection with receivables relating to the State budget.

The Group applies a system of limits relating to credit risk and concentration risk with respect to the different sub-portfolios,
and currently monitors the credit risk of concentration of financial assets on the basis of industry and geographical criteria, and
also by individual counterparty. Maximum exposure limits are set and periodically monitored, analysed and updated. The Group
does not form exposures to customers and groups of related parties, other than credit institutions, exceeding by more than 10
per cent its equity.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Exposure to credit risk attributable to financial assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows
(amortised cost):

2016 2015

Financial asset maximum net maximum net
Receivables from banks 274,634 274,634 267,536 267,536
Financial assets held for trading - - 305 305
Loans and advances to customers 874,194 655,587 789,742 618,788
Receivables from the State budget 424,470 424,470 29,885 29,885
Net investment in finance lease 1,178 704 1,290 982
Available-for-sale securities 322,965 322,965 262,968 262,968
Securities held to maturity 1,384 1,384 1,979 1,979
Other financial assets 499 499 278 278

1,899,324 1,680,243 1,353,983 1,182,721

The Bank is of the opinion that cash and cash in current accounts with the Central Bank amounting to BGN 78,521 thousand
(2015: BGN 343,853 thousand) bear a minimal credit risk.

The heading Receivables from the State Budget comprise loans on the National Programme for Energy Efficiency of Multi-
Family Residential Buildings amounting to BGN 397,568 thousand (2015: BGN 9,848 thousand).
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.1,  Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk attributable to off-balance sheet contingent commitments is as follows:

2016 2015
maximum net maximum net
Guarantees and letters of credit 323,869 320,016 172,920 170,636
Unutilised amount of authorized loans 531,646 531,646 77,748 77,748
Participation in the SIA investment program 1,724 1,724 1,804 1,804
857,239 853,386 252,472 250,188
Maximum exposure to credit risk 2,612,791 2,533,629 1,457,524 1,432,909

In assessing the net exposure, highly-liquid collateral (government securities and cash), as also the net present value of liquid

collateral — real estate, have been taken into account.

Credit risk - concentration

The financial assets of the Group, classified by industry sectors, are presented in the table below. Loans and receivables, as

also finance leases are stated at amortised cost before impairment:

Sectors 2016 % 2015 %
Government 731,701 36.99 287,308 16.91
Financial services 415,019 20.98 683,148 40.24
Construction 137,357 6.94 111,263 6.55
Transport 108,266 5.47 88,157 5.19
| Industry, total 328,735 16.62 332,705 19.60
Industry — energy generation and distribution 103,520 5.23 132,365 7.79
Industry — other industries 67,451 3.41 82,111 4.83
Industry — manufacture of foodstuffs 60,962 3.08 56,110 3.30
Industry — manufacture of tobacco products 55,675 2.81 50,510 2.97
Industry — manufacture of plant and equipment 41,127 2.08 11,609 0.68
Trade 55,407 2.80 49,823 2.93
Administrative and office activities 49,400 2.50 134 0.01
Other industries 47,635 2.41 26,616 1.57
Real estate transactions 41,874 2.12 60,969 3.59
Agriculture 31,325 1.58 17,795 1.05
Tourist services 18,524 0.94 22,447 1.32
Collection and disposal of garbage 12,602 0.64 17,471 1.03
1,977,845 100.00 1,697,836 100.00
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.1.  Credit risk (continued)

The largest credit exposure of the Group to a group of related parties /other than bank institutions/ amounts to BGN 62,202
thousand (2015: BGN 50,510 thousand) at amortised cost, which represents 8.64 per cent of Group's capital base (2015: 7.45
per cent).

At 31 December 2016 there was no exposure of a customer or a group of related parties exceeding by more than 10 per cent
the Group’s equity.

(BGN'000) % of Total* (BGN'000) % of Total”

The biggest total exposure to a customer group 62 202 5.05% 52150 5.53%
Total amount of the ten biggest exposures 488 547 39.68% 399 836 42.42%
Total amount of the twenty biggest exposures 708 750 57.57% 568 428 60.31%

* The ratio has been calculated to the total amount of all exposures.

Quality of loans and receivables
The structure of the financial assets of the Bank by risk classification groups is as follows (at amortised cost before impairment):
At 31 December 2016 Standard Watch Non- Total

performing
Cash in hand and balances in current account with the

Central Bank 78,521 i ) 78,521
Receivables from banks 274,634 - - 274,634
Loans for commercial property and construction 297,868 94,091 50,771 442,730
Trade loans 212,357 72,902 18,803 304,062
Agricultural loans - - 2,059 2,059
Consumer loans 1,237 31 - 1,268
Residential and mortgage loans to individuals 2,509 - - 2,509
Loans to other financial institutions 8,440 - 43,815 52,255
Other loans and receivables 49,214 16,808 3,289 69,311
Net investment in finance lease 704 12 462 1,178
Receivables from the State budget 424 470 - - 424,470
Available-for-sale securities 322,965 - - 322,965
Securities held to maturity 1,384 - - 1,384
Other financial assets 499 - - 499
Total financial assets 1,674,802 183,844 119,199 1,977,845
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.1.  Credit risk (continued)

At 31 December 2015 Standard Watch Non-performing Total
Cash in hand and balances in current account with the

Central Bank 343,853 . - 343,853
Receivables from banks 267,536 - - 267,536
Financial assets held for trading 305 - 305
Receivables from the State budget 29,885 - - 29,885
Loans for commercial property and construction 298,397 70,104 63,112 431,613
Trade loans 199,635 15,691 20,461 235,787
Agricultural loans - - 2,010 2,010
Consumer loans 1,164 - 1,164
Residential and mortgage loans to individuals 2,341 - - 2,341
Loans to other financial institutions - - 65,139 65,139
Other loans and receivables 48,339 48 3,301 51,688
Available-for-sale securities 262,968 - - 262,968
Net investment in finance lease 999 9 282 1,290
Securities held to maturity 1,979 - - 1,979
Other financial assets 278 - - 278
Total financial assets 1,457,679 85,852 154,305 1,697,836

The table below presents the types of collaterals, held by the Bank in relation to loans granted, at fair value mot limited to the
maximum credit exposure of the respective borrower and determined with the assistance of an internal certified appraiser:

2016
Type of collateral Fair value
Mortgages 255,007
Mortgages on ships 100,438
Pledge of plant, machinery, 188.990
equipment, and inventories '
Restricted deposits 790
Credit risk insurances 22,475
Bank guarantees 4,076
Securities quoted on a stock market 35,426
Total collateral 607,202

2015
Fair value

%
42.00 372,511
16.54 52,434
31.12 179,934
0.13 800
3.70 31,771
0,67 2,024
5.83 89,327
100.00 728,801
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%

51.11
7.19

24.69

0.1

4.36
0,28

12.26

100.00
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.1.  Credit risk (continued)

The following table shows the distribution by type of collateral for the respective exposure covered by the relevant type of
collateral, where one exposure could have more than one collateral, i.e. it could be included in more than one position. The
amount of the collateral could exceed 100 per cent, as more than one collateral could be provided to secure one loan, as

follows:
Type of credit exposure Principal type of collateral
Loans and receivables 1. Mortgages
2. Mortgages on ships
3. Pledge of plant,
machinery, equipment, and
inventories
4 |nsurances
5.Securities
6. Restricted deposits
Repo deals 1. Securities
Finance lease 1. Own assets

Percentage of exposure that
is subject to an arrangement
requiring collateral

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.

2016 2015
100 100
100 100

77 77
100 100
97 97
5 5
100 100
100 100
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4.
4.1.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

At the request of the contractors, the Group is able to re-negotiate the initial terms and conditions on the contract. Usually,
these are the terms of loan utilization, loan amount, interest rates and/or repayment schedules from the point of view of the
amount of a particular repayment instalment. Most of all, this are cases of changes in the initial parameters, purpose and scope,
and respectively, the time schedule of projects. Regarding the loans extended under the Programme for Energy Efficiency, it
should be noted that according to the programme’s parameters the amount of the loan approved is subject to regular updating
in order to ensure expenditure control. The signature of annexes to the loan contracts, by means of which the financial
parameters are updated, is a result of those controls.

The table below presents data on the portfolio amount of the Group's financial assets by type of instrument at amortised costs
and the accumulated impairment losses:

Loans .
Loans and . Cash in hand . . - Net
. Receivable Loans and and . . Financial Securitie .
r;ﬁ:/?‘zl:.s s from the receivables from  receivabl cal:,r‘:elrr:t Af‘;arl-I:abIE- assets s held |m:1c=isi:'me
financial State . fin_a ngial .es.fr.om account with  securities held.for for. finance
institutions budget institutions lndl:/sldua CB trading  maturity lease
At 31 December 2016
Impaired on an
individual basis
-watch 131,931 - 31 - - - 12
-non-performing 108,566 - - 462
Gross amount 240,497 - - A - - - - 474
Incl. renegotiated 171,904 - - -
Past due but not
impaired
- standard 24,223 - - -
-watch 9,797 - - - - - -
- non-performing 6,905 - - - - -
Gross amount 40,925 - - - - - - - -
Incl. renegotiated 23,822 - - - - - - -
Not past due and
not impaired
-standard 544,155 424,470 274,634 3,746 78,521 322,965 1,384 704
-watch 42,073 - - - - - - -
- non-performing 3,266 - - - - - - - -
Gross amount 589,494 424,470 274,634 3,746 78,521 322,965 - 1,384 704
Incl. renegotiated 340,581 - - 680- - - - - -
Gross amount 870,916 424,470 274,634 3,777 78,521 322,965 - 1,384 1,178
Incl. renegotiated 536,307 - - 680 - - - -
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4,
4.1.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group assesses the credit quality of provided contingent commitments by applying a methodology, which estimates
whether events indicating with a high probability that outflow of Group's resources might take place have occurred. If any such
events occur, the Group provides its liability up to the amount of its future costs (losses) related to outflows of economic benefits
(payments). These costs (losses) are determined on the basis of the present value of the future net cash flows, calculated as
the difference between the payment obligation and the possible inflows of subsequent resources to third parties. At the date of
the statement of financial position the Group identified commitments amounting to BGN 251,517 thousand (2015 : BGN 98,413
thousand),which were provided by BGN 7,509 thousand (2015: BGN 6,153 thousand) (Note 32).

Loans .
rI;?::?vigrec’s Receivable Lpans and ar_ld Casahnl‘;n i?‘a"d Available- Financial Securitie inv'::ttme
sfromthe  receivables from  receivabl assets s held g
f;.o m n?r:- State financial es from cum:nt_ h for-s.e:.le held for for fnt in
?nls't‘iat‘:t(;?ns budget institutions indi;/idua accm(J:nB wit securilies trading  maturity 'I'; :’:;e
s
At 31 December 2015
Impaired on an
individual basis
-watch 85,843 - - - - 9
-non-performing 154,014 - - 282
Gross amount 239,857 - - - M
Incl. renegotiated 152,723 - - - -
Past due but not
impaired
- standard - - -
-watch -
- non-performing - - - - -
Gross amount - - - - - - - -
Incl. renegotiated - - .
Not past due and
not impaired
-standard 546,649 29,885 267,536 3,505 343,853 262,968 305 1,979 999
-watch - - - - - - - - -
- non-performing - - - - - - - - -
Gross amount 546,649 29,885 267,536 3,505 343,853 262,968 305 1,979 999
Incl. renegotiated 261,058 - - 719 - - - - -
Gross amount 786,515 29,885 267,536 3,505 343,853 262,968 305 1,979 1,290
Incl. renegotiated 413,781 - - 719 - - - - -
47

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.1.  Credit risk (continued)

The Group may re-negotiate the initial conditions under the contacts upon request by counterparties. Usually, these conditions
regulate the loan disbursement, loan amounts, interest rates and/or repayment schedules with regard to the amounts of the
repayment instalments. This is often observed in the case of changes in projects’ original parameters, objectives and scope,

including the time schedule for their completion.
The watched loans and receivables, presented at amortised cost before impairment, are as follows:

2016 2015
Loans for commercial property and construction 94,091 70,104
Trade loans 72,902 15,690
Consumer loans 31 -
Other loans and receivables 16,808 49
183,832 85,843

A loan is classified as “restructured” when the initial terms of the agreement have been modified by the parent company (the
“Bank”) by granting relief of certain credit terms to the debtor due to deterioration of its financial position having resulted in its

inability to repay the loan within the original contractual maturity.
The restructured loans and receivables, presented at amortised cost, are as follows:

In BGN'000 2016 2015
Loans for commercial property and construction 66,963 45,943
incl, Standard 17 965 19 590
Watch 25443 9638
Non-performing 23555 16715

Other loans and receivables 13,839 3,350
incl. Standard 90 97
Watch 10 670 2 383
Non-performing 3079 870
80,802 49,293
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.1.  Credit risk (continued)

4.1.1. Country (sovereign) risk

The Group has formed a portfolio of securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, comprising mostly government
securities issued by the Republic of Bulgaria. The following table presents the Group’s exposure to sovereign debt as of 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015:

At 31 December 2016 Within 1-3 3-12 1-5years Over 5 years Total
1 months months
month
Government securities
Republic of Bulgaria 39,760 10,821 32,145 140,947 83,558 307,231
Total 39,760 10,821 32,145 140,947 83,558 307,231
At 31 December 2015 Within 1-3 3-12 1-5years Over5 years Total
1 months months
month
Government securities
Republic of Bulgaria 12,686 32,830 239 134,221 77,294 257,270
Total 12,686 32,830 239 134,221 77,294 257,270

Standard & Poor's credit rating for Republic of Bulgaria stands at BB+ with stable outiook (12 December 2014). Fitch's credit
rating for Republic of Bulgaria is BBB- with stable outlook (10 January 2014). Moody's credit rating for Republic of Bulgaria was
last set at Baa2 with stable outlook (05 August 2011).

Market risk is the risk of adverse movements in interest rates, exchange rates, liquidity position, and other factors affecting the
price of securities and other financial assets. These movements affect the Group's profitability and financial position.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the probability for potential change of the net interest income or the net interest margin and the market value
of the equity due to changes in market interest rates.

The interest rate risk is considered in view of the overall activity of the Group. Analyses of financial assets and liabilities grouped
in time intervals depending on their sensitivity to changes in the interest rates are conducted on regular basis.

The approach for measuring interest rate risk with respect to the overall activity comprises primarily:

Analysis of the interest rate sensitivity of income — measuring the interest rate sensitivity of the Group’s net income;

Analysis of the interest rate sensitivity of economic capital (Duration GAP Analysis) — measuring the interest rate
sensitivity of the Group's economic value;

Determination, application and reporting of limits for interest rate risk reflecting the volatility of the respective interest
rate curve and the Group's risk appetite;

Stress tests for interest rate risk ~ presenting the potential movements in the annual interest income after applying a
stress scenario involving changes in the interest rate curves by types of currencies.

49

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4,2,  Market risk

Cash flow interest rate analysis is conducted by allocating the cash flows from assets and liabilities included in the interest rate
imbalance analysis and forming the respective maturity gaps. In case of Group’s balance sheet items classified as such and
measured at fair value, the fair value risk analysis is limited to placing the relevant item with the applicable maturity structure
within the interest rate imbalance analysis.

Besides the interest rate sensitivity analyses, for the interest risk management main sources related to the change in the net
interest spread of the Group are also identified. This helps decision making on the interest rates policies of the Group, in
particular, the development of specific products and providing sources of financing having relevant characteristics.

Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) currently monitors the interest rate risk to which the Group is exposed and develops
measures for its coverage and maintenance within the Group's permitted levels and limits.

The table on the next page summarises the interest exposure and risk of the Group. It includes information on Group's assets
and liabilities at their carrying amount in accordance with interest-related clauses, set in the contracts, their maturity structure
and sensitivity to movements in interest rates.

31 December 2016 With floating With fixed Interest-free Total
interest rate % interest rate %
Financial assets
Receivables from banks 119,849 145,014 9,771 274,634
Loans and advances to customers 671,492 58,402 1,002 730,896
Receivables from the State budget 397,568 26,902 - 424 470
Available-for-sale securities - 320,077 2,888 322,965
Net investment in finance lease 704 - - 704
Securities held to maturity 1,384 - 1,384
Other financial assets - 499 499
1,190,997 550,395 14,160 1,755,552
Financial liabilities
Deposits from credit institutions 4,161 39,576 - 43,737
Deposits from customers other than credit institutions 79,429 469,083 28,621 577,133
Borrowings from international institutions 376,720 3,278 - 379,998
Other borrowings 11,236 6,443 95,185 112,864
471,546 518,380 123,806 1,113,732
Total interest exposure 719,451 32,015 (109,646) 641,820
50

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Buigarian,



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.2.  Market risk (continued)

31 December 2015

Financial assets

Receivables from banks

Financial assets held for trading
Loans and advances to customers
Receivables from the State budget
Available-for-sale securities

Net investment in finance lease
Securities held to maturity

Other financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits from credit institutions

Financial liabilities held for trading

Deposits from customers other than credit institutions
Borrowings from international institutions

Other borrowings

Total interest exposure

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.

With floating With fixed Interest-free Total
interest rate % interest rate %

114,909 145,159 7,468 267,536

- - 305 305

548,737 91,966 416 641,119
9,848 20,037 - 29,885

- 260,324 2,644 262,968

982 982

1,979 - 1,979

- - 278 278

676,455 517,486 11,111 1,205,052

842 - - 842

362 - - 362

169,040 387,344 9,760 566,144
178,723 - - 178,723
11,226 16,437 95,796 123,459
360,193 403,781 105,556 869,530
316,262 113,705 (94,445) 335,522
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.2.  Market risk (continued)
Analysis of interest rate sensitivity and risk

The table below includes the financial instruments of the Group, presented at carrying value, classified by the earlier of the date
of interest rate change under the contract and the maturity date.

31 December 2016

Financial assets

Receivables from banks

Loans and advances to
customers

Receivables from the State
budget

Available-for-sale securities
Net investment in finance lease
Securities held to maturity
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits from credit institutions
Deposits from customers other
than credit institutions
Borrowings from international
institutions

Other borrowings

Total financial liabilities

Total exposure to interest rate
sensitivity

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.

Within 1 1-3 36 6-12 Over5  With fixed
month months months  months 1-5 years years interestrate Interest-free Total
91,102 28,747 . - 145,014 9,771 274,634
115,276 554,898 128 268 922 - 58,402 1,002 730,896
397,568 - . - 26,902 - . 424,470
38,363 10,223 3,019 32,145 142,561 93,766 - 2,888 322,965
704 - - - . . - - 704
1,384 - - - 1,384
- - - - - - - 499 499
644,397 593,868 3,147 32,413 170,385 93,766 203,416 14,160 1,755,552
43,737 . - 43,737
14,936 21,358 4678 479527 28,013 - 28,621 577,133
8,259 179,259 184,887 4,315 . - 3,278 . 379,998
- 11,236 . - 95185 6,443 - - 112,864
66,932 211,853 189,565 483,842 123,198 6,443 3,278 28,621 1,113,732
577,465 382,015 (186,418) (451,429) 47,187 87,323 200,138 (14,461) 641,820
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.2.  Market risk (continued)
Analysis of interest rate sensitivity and risk (continued)

31 December 2015 Within 1 1-3 3-6 6-12 Over5  With fixed

month months months  months 1-5 years years interestrate Interest-free Tota
Financial assets
Receivables from banks 51,852 53,253 22,470 5,010 - - 127,483 7,468 267,53¢
Financial assets held for trading - - - - - - - 305 30¢
Loans and advances to customers 490,005 59,000 202 363 1,794 - 89,339 416 641,11¢
Receivables from the State budget 9,848 - - - 20,037 - - - 29,88¢
Available-for-sale securities 10,660 32,285 - - 138915 78,464 - 2,644 262,96¢
Net investment in finance lease 982 - - - - - - - 982
Securities held to maturity - 1,979 - - - - - 1,97¢
Other financial assets - - - - - - - 278 27¢
Total financial assets 563,347 144,538 24,651 5373 160,746 78,464 216,822 11,11 1,205,052
Financial liabilities
Deposits from credit institutions 842 - - - - - - - 842
Financial liabilities held for trading - 362 - - - - - 362
Deposits from customers other
than credit institutions 170,701 225 2,581 18 382,859 - - 9,760 566,144
Borrowings from international
institutions 12,174 106,152 33,609 26,788 - - - - 178,723
Other borrowings - 11,226 - 9,807 95,796 6,630 - - 123,459
Total financial liabilities 183,717 117,965 36,190 36,613 478,655 6,630 - 9,760 869,530
Total exposure to interest rate
sensitivity 379,630 26,573 (11,539)  {31,240) (317,909) 71,834 216,822 1,351 335,522
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.2.  Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity of the floating rate interest assets and liabilities

The table below represents the sensitivity of the Group to possible changes in interest rates based on the structure of floating
rate assets and liabilities as of 31 December, under the assumption that the influence of the other variables is ignored. The
actual effect of changes in market interest rates could be different, as a significant portion of the loans and receivables from
customers bear floating interest rates that are based on a variable portion determined by the Group, which in turn is influenced
by numerous factors.

2016 2015

Currency Increase  Sensitivity of the  Sensitivity of ~ Increasein  Sensitivity of  Sensitivity of the
in financial result the equity ~ percentage the financial equity

percentag points result

e points

BGN 0.50% 2,467 (725) 0.50% (1,734) (1,091)
EUR 0.50% 288 (1,742) 0.50% 890 {1,565)

usD 0.50% (82) - 0.50% 63
BGN -0.50% (2,467) 725 -0.50% 1,734 1,091
EUR -0.50% (288) 1,742 -0.50% (890) 1,565

usD -0.50% 82 - -0.50% (63)

The average interest rates by financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table:

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Financial assets 3.64% 3.63%
Financial liabilities 0.36% 0.44%
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.2.  Market risk (continued)

Currency risk

The currency risk is the risk that the financial position and cash flows of the Group might be affected adversely by changes in
exchange rates due to open currency positions. In managing the foreign currency risk, the Group follows the principle
of maintaining minimum open currency positions within the specified limits. Foreign currency positions are not formed with
speculative purposes, but arise out of foreign currency transactions in the ordinary course of business of the Group. The policy
of the parent company (the “Bank”) is that the main portion of the assets and liabilities, and respectively the bank transactions,
shall be denominated in EUR or BGN. The Group does not carry out significant transactions and does not hold significant open
positions in currencies other than EUR and BGN. As the exchange rate of the Bulgarian lev is pegged to that of the Euro, there
is no significant open currency risk for the Group's cash flows and financial performance.

The following table summarises the Group 's exposure to currency risk. The table includes the Group's financial instruments
and the contingent liabilities and commitments, presented at carrying amount, classified by type of currency.

At 31 December 2016 In USD in EUR In other foreign In BGN Total
currency

Financial assets
Cash in hand and balances in current account

with the Central Bank 24 1,873 - 76,624 78,521
Receivables from banks 93,446 55,231 114 125,843 274,634
Loans and advances to customers - 492,226 3,313 235,357 730,896
Receivables from the State budget - - - 424,470 424,470
Available-for-sale securities - 129,709 - 193,256 322,965
Net investment in finance lease - - - 704 704
Securities held to maturity - 1,384 - - 1,384
Other financial assets - - - 499 499
Total financial assets 93,470 680,423 3,427 1,056,753 1,834,073
Financial liabilities
Deposits from credit institutions 9,280 2,090 - 32,367 43,737
Deposits from customers other than credit
institutions 84,156 41,335 4 451,638 577,133
Borrowings from international institutions

- 376,720 3,278 - 379,998
Other borrowings - 112,864 - - 112,864
Total financial liabilities 93,436 533,009 3,282 484,005 1,113,732
Net balance sheet currency position 34 147,414 145 572,748 720,341
Commitments and contingencies 464 82,444 - 556,334 639,242
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4,2.  Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2015 In USD In EUR In other foreign in BGN Total
currency

Financial assets
Cash in hand and balances in current account

with the Central Bank 5 3,292 - 340,556 343,853
Receivables from banks 23,359 55,873 109 188,195 267,536
Financial assets held for trading - 305 - - 305
Loans and advances to customers 13,306 453,071 5213 169,529 641,119
Receivables from the State budget - - - 29,885 29,885
Available-for-sale securities - 120,390 - 142,578 262,968
Net investment in finance lease - - - 982 982
Securities held to maturity - 1,979 - - 1,979
Other financial assets - - - 278 278
Total financial assets 36,670 634,910 5,322 872,003 1,548,905
Financial liabilities
Deposits from credit institutions - 561 - 281 842
Financial liabilities held for trading - 362 - - 362
Deposits from customers other than credit
institutions 25,325 68,868 8 471,943 566,144
Borrowings from international institutions

173,583 5,140 - 178,723
Other borrowings - 27,663 - 95,796 123,459
Total financial liabilities 25,325 271,037 5,148 568,020 869,530
Net balance sheet currency position 11,345 363,873 174 303,983 679,375
Commitments and contingencies 9,398 27,961 - 215,113 252,472
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.2.  Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s sensitivity to possible changes in exchange rates based on the structure of the assets

and liabilities at 31 December:

2016

Effect on the pre-tax profit in case of change

Change in exchange rates in exchange rates”

Currency
Excigftenge Decrease (BPS) Increase (BPS) Decrease Increase
EUR 1.9558 - - - -
usD 1.8555 -1.071 +2.665 25 (62)
JPY 0.0158 -13 +20 (1) 16
GBP 29844 -2.631 +2.096 2) 2
Total effect 12 (44)
2015
Effect on the pre-tax profit in case of change
Currency Change in exchange rates in exchange rates*
Exrir;ta:ge Decrease (BPS) Increase (BPS) Decrease Increase
EUR 1.9558 - - - -
UsD 1.7901 -1,051 +2,585 535 (1,316)
JPY 0.0149 -30 +19 @) 1
GBP 2.6502 -1,957 +2,510 (2) 2
Total effect 531 (1,313)

Effect on equity

Effect on equity

There is no effect on the Group’s equity as the Group does not hold available-for-sale financial instruments denominated in

usD.

Price risk of shares quoted on the Stock Exchange

The Group is exposed to price risk with respect to the shares it holds, classified as available-for-sale investments. Management
of the parent company (the “Bank”) monitors and analyses all changes in the security market, and engages the advisory
services of renowned local investment intermediaries. In addition, at this stage, due to the economic and financial crisis,
management of the parent company (the “Bank”) has decided to greatly reduce the operations on the stock markets and the
trade in the acquired shares, and currently monitors the financial and business indicators, reported by the respective issuer, as

well as the development of its activities.

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
43. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its current and potential payment abligations as they fall due
without suffering losses.

The Group's business requires a stable cash flow both to replace existing deposits and loans received prior to their maturity,
and to satisfy demands of customers for additional loans. Undrawn borrowing facility commitments and the level of all
outstanding contingent obligations are taken into consideration in managing the parent company’s (the Bank’s) liquidity risk.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature,
as well as the impact of the changes in interest rates and exchange rates on the pre-tax profit and equity, are important factors
in assessing the Group’s liquidity. In order to manage this risk, the Group maintains at all times highly liquid assets depending
on the currency of its liabilities.

The overall liquidity control and monitoring are performed by ALCO and are based on maturity tables with scenarios for
measuring the net cash flows by periods, including nominal, realistic and pessimistic scenario, reflecting to a different degree
the negative assumptions relating to loss of confidence by the customers, deterioration of the credit portfolio quality, negative
assumptions about the banking market and other assumptions having an impact on the Group’s liquid position and certain
ratios enacted by Bulgarian National Bank. Additionally, varieties of correlations are monitored to indicate the liquid position by
periods. Liquidity risk is also measured through application of three additional scenarios for the cash flows from operating
activities and monitoring the liquidity buffers of the parent company (the “Bank”) and the additional sources of financing in case
of market and idiosyncratic shocks, representing loss of confidence by the market in a particular bank or banking group, which
is tantamount to downgrading of the institution with two degrees at least and combined shocks in compliance with the Guidelines
on liquidity buffers and survival periods of Bulgarian National Bank.

The table below presents the amounts in percentage of the ratio of liquid assets to liabilities of parent company (the “Bank”):

2016 2015
At 31 December 31.45% 65.25%
Average for the period 38.36% 64.56%
Highest for the period 48.53% 70.03%
Lowest for the period 29.50% 59.10%

2016 2015
Cash and cash balances with BNB 78,521 343,805
Balances in current accounts with other banks and international deposits of up to 7
days 90,477 39,760
Government securities 193,916 206,649
Liquid assets 362,914 590,214
Financial liabilities held for trading - 362
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1,150,963 902,308
Provisions 3,319 1,642
Employee retirement benefits 228 198
Liabilities 1,154,510 904,510
Liquidity assets ratio (LAR) 31.45% 65.25%
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.3. Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Group grouped by remaining maturity:

At 31 December 2016

Assets

Cash in hand and balances in current account

with the Central Bank

Receivables from banks

Loans and advances to customers
Receivables from the State budget
Available-for-sale securities

Net investment in finance lease

Assets held for sale

Securities held to maturity

Other assets

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure
Investment property

Property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from credit institutions

Current tax liabilities

Deposits from customers other than credit
institutions

Provisions

Other liabilities

Borrowings from international institutions

Other borrowings
Total liabilities

Gap in maturity thresholds of assets and
liabilities

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.

Within

1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Indefinite
month  months months years years maturity Total
78,521 - - - - - 78,521
91,280 28,400 1,904 38,050 115,000 - 274,634
8,334 19,959 148,531 309,616 244,456 730,896
- - - 424,470 - - 424,470
39,760 13,761 32,274 199,544 34,738 2,888 322,965
25 59 197 372 51 - 704
. - - - 4,670 4,670
211 587 586 - 1,384
- - - - - 615 615
- - - 11,372 11,372
- - - 7,702 7,702
- 33,779 33,779
- - - - - 2,011 2,011
218,131 62,179 183,493 972,638 394,245 63,037 1,893,723
43,737 - - - - 43,737
. 1,836 - - 1,836
140,009 23,853 403,755 9,516 - - 577,133
- - - - - 7,683 7,683
651 - - 31 738 1,420
2,298 3,155 44,976 148,042 181,527 - 379,998
- - 11,450 96,038 5,376 - 112,864
186,695 28,844 460,181 253,627 186,903 8,421 1,124,671
31,436 33,335  (276,688) 719,011 207,342 54,616 769,052
30,905 7,612 79,679 510,482 3,566 218,327 850,571
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4,3.  Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 December 2015 Within 1 13 3-12 15 Over5 Indefinite
month  months  months years years maturity Total
Assets

Cash in hand and balances in current account

with the Central Bank 343,853 - - - - - 343,853
Receivables from banks 51,852 53,631 14,006 80,047 68,000 - 267,536
Financial assets held for trading - - 305 - - - 305
Loans and advances to customers 40,081 22,578 98,644 311,586 167,910 320 641,119
Receivables from the State budget - - 693 19,344 9,848 - 29,885
Available-for-sale securities 10,660 32,285 - 138,915 78,464 2,644 262,968
Net investment in finance lease 52 43 247 550 a0 - 982
Assets held for sale - - - - - 8,720 8,720
Securities held to maturity 24 - 588 1,367 - - 1,979
Other assets - - - - - 916 916
Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure - - - - - 4,714 4,714
Investment property - - - - - 7,744 7,744
Property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets - - - - - 24,659 24,659
Deferred tax assets - - - - - 1,304 1,304
Total assets 446,522 108,537 114,483 551,809 324,312 51,021 1,596,684
Liabilities
Deposits from credit institutions 842 - - - - - 842
Financial liabilities held for trading - - 362 - - - 362
Current tax liabilities - 305 - - - - 305
Deposits from customers other than credit
institutions 170,701 225 3,335 391,883 - - 566,144
Provisions - - - - - 6,327 6,327
Other liabilities - - - - - 1,371 1,371
Borrowings from international institutions

2,884 8,609 41,581 103,293 22,356 - 178,723
Other borrowings - 28 9,992 107,875 5,564 - 123,459
Total liabilities 174,427 9,167 55,270 603,051 27,920 7,698 877,533
Gap in maturity thresholds of assets and
liabilities 272,095 99,370 59213  (51,242) 269,392 43,323 719,151
Contingent liabilities and commitments 24,379 10,488 89,677 109,260 10,231 4,694 248,729
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.3.  Liquidity risk (continued)
The table below presents the gross undiscounted cash flows related to the Group’s liabilities as of 31 December:

At 31 December 2016 Carrying Gross flow Less From 1 From3  Fromito5 Over5
amount than 1 to3 to12 years years
month months months
Financial liabilities
Deposits from credit institutions 43,737 43,741 43,741
Deposits from customers other
than credit institutions 577133 578,583 139,431 23,857 405,779 9,516
Borrowings from international
institutions 379,998 394,724 2,302 3,005 45,765 150,847 192,805
Other borrowings 112,864 114,688 - 32 11,543 96,507 6,606
1,113,732 1,131,736 185,474 26,894 463,087 256,870 199,411
At 31 December 2015 Carrying Gross flow Less From 1 From3 From{to$5 Over 5
amount than 1 to3 to 12 years years
month months months
Financial liabilities
Deposits from credit institutions 842 843 843
Financial liabilities held for trading 362 362 - 362
Deposits from customers other
than credit institutions 566,144 566,887 170,678 226 3,333 392,650
Borrowings from international
institutions 178,723 185,089 2,893 8,870 42,267 107,093 23,966
Other borrowings 123,459 125,573 60 10,231 108,389 6,893
869,530 878,754 174414 9,156 56,193 608,132 30,859
At 31 December 2015 Gross Lessthan1 From1to3 From 3 From1to Over 5
flow month months to 12 5 years years
months
Gross amount of financial assets held-for-
trading (currency swap)
Amount of agreed receivables 11,046 - 11,046 -
Amount of agreed payables (10,741) (10,741)
305 - 305 - -
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.3.  Liquidity risk (continued)

Considering the specific activity of the Group, the funds attracted from the biggest 20 non-bank depositors at 31 December
2016 represent 97.10 per cent of the total amount of payables to other customers (31 December 2015; 96.17 per cent). The
share of the biggest non-bank depositor of the total amount of payables to other customers is 56.91 per cent (31 December
2015: 58.02 per cent).

The financial assets available for future financing and the financial assets pledged as collateral for financial liabilities are

presented in the table below:

At 31 December 2016
Financial assets Pcl:zﬂgte;:ls Available for collateral Other* Total
Cash in hand and balances in current account with
the Central Bank - 1,970 76,551 78,521
Receivables from banks 9,771 240,762 24,101 274,634
Loans and advances to customers 599,710 131,186 730,896
Receivables from the State budget 424,470 424,470
Available-for-sale securities 54,718 265,604 2,643 322,965
Net investment in finance lease - 704 8 704
Securities held to maturity - 1,384 1,384
Other financial assets - - 499 499
Total financial assets 64,489 1,534,604 234,980 1,834,073
At 31 December 2015
Financial assets Pledged as Available for collateral  Other* Total
collateral
Cash in hand and balances in current account with
the Central Bank - 265,400 78,453 343,853
Receivables from banks 7,468 205,217 54,851 267,536
Loans and advances to customers 533,922 107,197 641,119
Receivables from the State budget 29,885 29,885
Available-for-sale securities 7,833 252,651 2,484 262,968
Net investment in finance lease - 974 8 982
Securities held to maturity - 1,979 - 1,979
Financial assets held-for-trading - 305 - 305
Other financial assets - - 278 278
Total financial assets 15,301 1,290,333 243,271 1,548,905

*“Other” are financial assets that are not encumbered and there are no restrictions to be used as collateral, but the Group wouldn't consider

them as available for future financing in the normal course of business.

**Other” are financial assets that are not encumbered and there are no restrictions to be used as collateral, but the Group wouldn't consider

them as available for future financing in the normal course of business.

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.3. Liquidity risk (continued)

* At 31 December 2016, funds amounting to BGN 9,771 thousand were blocked in letters of credit of two corporate customers,
maturing as follows:

Maturity interval Receivables from banks pledged as
coliateral
On demand 130
Within 30 days 47
From 31 to 90 days 2,457
From 91 to 180 days 225
From 181 to one year 1,364
Over one year 5,548

At 31 December 2016 securities on a legal requirement to provide for funds of the State budget amount to BGN 34,085 thousand
and those on one repo deal with a commercial bank maturing within seven days amount to BGN 30,632 thousand.

Review of the size, development and the credit quality of the unencumbered assets is done once a year.

Risk Management, together with other Group divisions, monthly monitors and reports to ALCO on the ratios between the
encumbered assets and the total carrying amount of the Group's assets. In a case of excess above the limits approved by the
Management Board, ALCO reports back to the MB for undertaking corrective actions.

4.4. Operational risk

The main sources of operational risk within the Group are its personnel, processes, systems and external events. The Group
designated the following as the major types of operational risk:

e Risk of loss due to inadequate or poorly working internal processes;

o Risk of loss due to inadequate, illegal and/or incorrect acts and omissions of personnel;

o Risk of loss due to inadequate or poorly working systems;

e Risk of loss due to external events, including legal risk.
Operational risk management is based on the principles of not taking unreasonable risks, strict compliance with the levels of
competence and the applicable legislation. The Group applies reliable methods for limiting the impact of operational risks,
including by dividing the functions and responsibilities, introducing double-checking control, levels of competence, internal
control, etc. Moreover, control procedures for reducing the operational risk are added to all internal rules and procedures of the
Group.
In operational risk management all operational events, which occur in the activity of various units and processes of the Group,
are strictly monitored and registered, while the events of higher frequency, as well as those of significant importance, serve as
bases for the operational risk analyses in different scenarios. The operational risk is measurable and monitorable, and in the
process of work an operational event register is kept, which is used as a basis for analysing and improving the work processes,
and minimising the conditions that would potentially result in operational events and loss for the Group. For the purposes of
measuring its operational risk, the Group has decided to apply the “Basic indicator method”.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.5 Capital management

The main objectives of the Group’s capital management is to maintain its level at amounts sufficient for activity developing and
achieving the general objectives set at its foundation — to support the economic policy of the country and the development of
small and medium-sized businesses.

In its activities the Group should observe the regulatory requirements for capital adequacy (Note Ne. 33,34), as well as to
continue operating as a going concern.

The table below presents the main equity components following the regulatory requirements and ratios achieved on a
consolidated group (as a Bank group) level.

2016 2015

OWN FUNDS 720,342 678,279
TIER | CAPITAL 720,342 678,279
COMMON EQUITY TIER | CAPITAL 720,342 678,279

Share capital 601,774 601,774
Statutory reserves 66,159 61,281
Additional reserves 48,722 14,698
Accumulated other comprehensive income 6,555 1,566
Intangible assets (248) (100)
Other transitional adjustments to CET1 Capital (2,620) (940)
ADDITIONAL TIER | CAPITAL - -
TIER I CAPITAL - -
TOTAL RISK EXPOSURES 1,486,798 1,206,406
Credit risk - Standardised approach 1,374,510 1,090,931

Central governments or central banks - 5,464

Regional governments or local authorities 265 1,246

Public sector entities 26,902 20,037

Multilateral development banks 939 939
Institutions 187,362 221,652
Corporates 842,009 711,732

Retail 15,090 15,586

Secured by mortgages on immovable property 87,819 41,540
Exposures in default 148,122 19,742

Items associated with particular high risk 2,934 2,934

Equity exposures 150 146

Other items 62,918 49,913

Foreign exchange and commodity risk - -

Operational risk - Basic indicator approach 112,288 115,475
CET 1 Capital Ratio 48.45% 56.22%
Total Capital Ratio 48.45% 56.22%
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.5  Capital management (continued)

Capital conservation buffer
Systemic risk buffer
Discretionary counter-cyclical buffer

Regulatory required levels
CET 1 Capital Ratio

Tier 1 Capital ratio

Total Capital ratio

Capital conservation buffer
Systemic risk buffer
Discretionary counter-cyclical buffer
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37,170
44,604

4.50%
6.00%
8.00%

2.50%
3.00%
0.00%

30,160
36,192

4.50%
6.00%
8.00%

2.50%

3.00%
0.00%
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

5. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value is presented in the following table by types of assets at the reporting

date:

Significant Relationship of
Financial Fair value Fair value  Fair value unobservable  unobservable inputs
instrument as of as of hierarchy Valuation techniques inputs to fair value
31 31
December December
2016 2015 S
The higher (lower) fair
value if:
Market analogues method 1. Market o Higher (lower)
Under the market analogues method an realisation market
assessment is made by directly comparing coefficient realisation
the property under review with sold similar (0.8-0.95) coefficient
properties; the price is determinedonthe | 2.  Location o Higher (lower)
basis of such previous transactions. When coefficient location
applying this approach, it is necessary to (0.81-1.0) coefficient
use actually similar data of the comparable | 3. Coefficient e Higher (lower)
properties, the properties should be in the of specific coefficient of
same location and the timing of the features specific
transaction and the date of preparation of (status) features |
| the evaluation should be close enough. (0.8-1.1) (status) |
nvestment TR : : |
property 7,702 7,744 Income capitalisation method (revenue
Level 3 method)
The revenue method, used for assessing
the real estate value, consists of an analysis |
of the value of the real estate based on its
ability to generate income through
capitalisation of the net income derived from
the property over a given period. For the
determination of the evaluated property's
amount, the permanently generated net
annual income is used and its amount is The higher (lower) fair
calculated on the basis of the actual or value if:
possible permanently achieved rental e Higher (lower)
income, which it turn is calculated on the Offer market offer market
basis of the average offered rent in the area | adequacy adequacy
(observable inputs), by taking into account | adjustment adjustment
the condition of the building fund and the coefficient (from coefficient
|residualtermofuse. | -10% to +5%) p—
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

5. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value, but for which fair value disclosures are

required.
Significant Relationship of
Financial Fair value  Fairvalue Fair value unobservable  unobservable inputs
instrument as of as of hierarchy Valuation techniques inputs to fair value
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
Discounted cash flows
Future cash flows are discounted using the 12
month Sofibor, adjusted for yield curve of
Bulgarian government securities on primary
| Loans to banks 150,886 150,176 |  Level2 | market according to Bloomberg publication NA N/A
| |
Loans and Discounted cash flows
advances to Future cash flows are measured using the
customers officially published by BNB interest rates
749,794 | 647,518 | Level2 | (unadjusted) of new loans for December 2015. | N/A N/A -
| Discounted cash flows
Future cash flows are measured using the
Receivables officially published by BNB yield of Bulgarian
| from the State | government securities (unadjusted) for
| budget 469,168 | 35,818 Level 2 December 2015 N/A NA
| |
! Discounted cash flows
Future cash flows are measured using the
officially published by BNB interest rates
Securities held (unadjusted) of new loans to non-financial
tomaturity | 1,403 1,925 Level2 | entities for December 2015 N/A N/A
 Other Discounted cash flows
poorewings Ll 676, 123834 | Level2 | Fyture cash flows are measured using the . NA NA
: : z officially published by BNB yield of Bulgarian -
Borrowings from government securities (unadjusted) for
international December 2015
institutions 380,991 181,103 |  Level 2 N/A NA

For the balance sheet assets and liabilities not disclosed in the table the Group's management is of the opinion that their fair

value approximates their carrying amount.
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69




BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2016 2015

Interest income
Loans and advances to customers 50,494 51,693
Loans to banks 3,409 6,220
Deposits placed with other banks 472 1,234
Available-for-sale securities 3,127 2,678
Interest income and penalty income from finance lease 150 200
Receivables from the State budget 4,743 462
Securities held to maturity 97 118
Other assets {income from negative interest) 84

62,576 62,605
Incl. Interest income on impaired loans and receivables 8,067 7,898
Interest expense
Borrowings from international institutions (2,410) (3,283)
Debenture loans - (2,655)
Deposits from customers (725) (1,250)
Deposits from other banks 3) (44)
Other borrowings (268) (492)
Other liabilities (expenses on negative interest) (60) 2)

(3,466) (7,726)
Net interest income 59,110 54,879

The yield on the assets, as a ratio of net profit to the balance sheet figure, is 2.39 per cent (2015: 2.42 per cent).

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2016 2015
Fee and commission income
Guarantees and letters of credit 2,615 1,795
Customers’ accounts, bank transfers, cash operations of customers, etc. 619 508
Servicing of debenture issues 270 270
Special-purpose funds of the Ministry of Agriculture and Food and the
Executive Agency on Fisheries and Aquaculture (Note 31) 571 678
Special-purpose funds of the Ministry of Finance (Note 31) 91 67
Other - 22
4,166 3,340
Fee and commission expense
Agency commissions (41) (57)
Bank transfers and cash operations with other banks (9) )
Servicing of accounts in other banks (31) (28)
(81) (92)
Net fee and commission income 4,085 3,248
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

8. NET GAIN ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE DEALS

Net gain on dealing in foreign currencies
Net loss on foreign currency swap revaluation
Net gain on foreign currency translation of assets and liabilities

9, NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

Net gain on dealing in available-for-sale securities, incl. revaluation reserve realised
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

10.  NET GAIN ON HELD-FOR-TRADING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Interest income from financial instruments held for trading
Interest expense on financial instruments held for trading
Net gain on revaluation of held-for-trading financial instruments

11A. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Dividends received

Refunded litigation expenses

Income from rent of investment property
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale
Proceeds from disposal of FTA

Other income

2016 2015
483 277
219 (43)

58 195
760 429
2016 2015
20 3

- (43)

20 (40)
2016 2015
- 737

(267) (560)

312 132

45 309
2016 2015
52 46
322 1,359
776 270
150 62
38 67
258 155
1,506 1,959
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.
11B. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Losses on revaluation of investment property (Note 25)
Expenses on assets held for sale

Litigation expenses

Withholding tax

Direct operating expenses relating to investment property
Expenses on disposal of FTA

Other expenses

12. INCOME FROM REVERSED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS

(Expenses) / Income on / from reversed impairment losses on individually impaired assets,

net

Income / (Expenses) from / on reversed impairment of loans relating to common credit
risk on portfolio basis, net

Income from reversed impairment losses on finance lease

(Expenses) / Income on / from reversed guarantee provisions, net

Expenses on impairment of assets acquired from collateral foreclosure

The movement in the balance sheet accumulated expenses on impairment and provisions is disclosed in Notes 18, 23, 27

and 32.

13A. COSTS OF PERSONNEL

Staff remuneration and social security
Remuneration to members of the Management and Supervisory Boards

Personnel costs consist of:
Salaries
Social security
Social benefits
Amounts accrued on retirement benefits

2016 2015
(240) (335)
(301) (315)
(579) (267)

(28) (12)
(168) (27)
(33) (58)
(496) -
(1,845) (1,014)
2016 2015
(10,144) 1,967
15,800 (338)
(184) 34
(1,221) 825
(419) (47)
3,832 2,441
2016 2015
(8,205) (7,788)
(1,557) (1,994)
(9,762) (9,782)
2016 2015
(7,072) (6,692)
(976) (948)
(103) (99)
(54) (49)
(8,205) (7,788)
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

13B. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2016 2015
Contribution to the Fund for Orderly Bank Restructuring (3,814) (3,073)
Contribution to the Deposit Insurance Fund (36) (2,004)
Rents (797) (1,005)
Communications and IT services (575) (696)
Office and office equipment maintenance (585) (522)
Legal and consulting services (498) (427)
Advertising and entertainment expenses {406) (452)
Taxes and government charges (160) (165)
Hired services (290) (283)
Advisory services by the registered audit firm (12) (99)
Business trips (87) (100)
Audit services by the registered audit firm {97) (75)
(7,357) (8,901)
14.  TAXATION
2016 2015
Current tax expense 5,697 4,420
Deferred tax benefit due to temporary differences (707) (121)
Total tax expense 4,990 4,299
In BGN'000 2016 2015
Accounting profit 49,901 42,975
Income tax calculated at the effective tax rate (10 per cent for 2016, 10 per cent for
2015) 5,084 4,298
Non-deductible expenses 4 7
Non-deductible income (98) (6)
Total tax expense 4,990 4,299
Effective tax rate 10.48% 10.00%
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

14.  TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Outstanding balances of deferred taxes relate to the following items of the consolidated statement of financial position and

changes in the statement of comprehensive income:

Assets

2015

(1)
(446)
(617)

(51)
(146)

(33)

Changes in the
income statement

2015

(5)
7
82
(17)

(155)

(33)

2016

Property and equipment (14)
Other assets (479)
Guarantee portfolio (411)
Other liabilities (52)
Securities (998)
Investment property (57)
(2,011)

(1,304)

(121)

The changes in the temporary differences during the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income and in the statement of equity.

The probability that the individual differences might reverse in the future and the Group’s ability to generate sufficient taxable
profit have also been taken into account on recognising deferred tax assets.

15.  NET CHANGE IN THE FAIR VALUE OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET OF TAXES

Change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

Gains on revaluation of available-for-sale assets, which have occurred during the year

Income recycling

Other comprehensive income for the year

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.
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1,580

(20)

1,560
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

16.  CASHIN HAND AND BALANCES IN CURRENT ACCOUNT WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

2016 2015

Cashin hand 120 87
Current accounts 78,401 343,719
Incl. Minimum statutory reserves 76,551 78,406
Reserve Security Fund - 47
Total cash with the Central Bank 78,401 343,766
Total cash in hand and in accounts with the Central Bank 78,521 343,853

Deposits with the Central Bank are interest-free (2015: similarly).
17.  RECEIVABLES FROM BANKS

In BGN'000 2016 2015
Current accounts with local banks 688 668
Current accounts with foreign banks 13,570 10,682
Term deposits with local banks 86,614 79,812
Term deposits with foreign banks 24,102 34,656
Loans to local banks 135,574 135,607
Loans to foreign banks 14,086 6,111
274,634 267,536

At 31 December 2016 special-purpose loans, denominated and BGN and EUR, with original maturity of up to 10 years and
interest rate levels ranging from 1.49 per cent to 4.40 per cent, were extended to local banks with the aim to develop small and
medium-sized enterprises.

Funds amounting to BGN 9,771 thousand were blocked to cover letters of credit (2015: BGN 7,468 thousand).
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

18. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans (gross amount)
Allowance for impairment and uncollectability of loans

A. Analysis by customer type
Corporate and sole traders
Municipalities

Individuals

B. Analysis by industry sector depending on the purpose of the loan

Construction

Transport

Industry, total

Industry - energy generation and distribution
Industry — manufacture of foodstuffs
Industry — other industries

Industry — manufacture of tobacco products
Industry - manufacture of plant and
equipment

Financial services

Trade

Administrative and office activities

Real estate transactions

Agriculture

Government sector

Tourist services

Other industries

Collection and disposal of garbage

2016 2015
874,194 789,742
(143,298) (148,623)
730,896 641,119
2016 2015
869,090 780,007
1,327 6,230
3,777 3,505
874,194 789,742
2016 2015
137,289 111,102
108,148 56,221
318,732 364,299
103,520 132,365
60,962 56,110
57,448 113,705
55,675 50,510
41,127 11,609
55,943 65,183
55,254 49,608
49,393 -
41,874 60,969
31,193 17,046
31,144 6,230
17,899 22,384
14,723 19,229
12,602 17,471
874,194 789,742

“Other industries” sectors include assigned receivables amounting to BGN 1,002 thousand (2015: BGN 320 thousand), which
originated from payments for guarantees due to persistent financial insolvency or bankruptcy of the borrower, for which the
beneficiary bank has met the requirements for payment under the guarantee, claimed the guarantee and NGF EAD (the

subsidiary) has paid it.

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

18.  LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

C. Movement in the allowance for loan impairment and uncollectability

In BGN'000 2016 2015

Individually  Collectively Total Individually  Collectively Total

impaired impaired impaired impaired

At 1 January 132,660 15,963 148,623 102,413 15,625 118,038
Sectorial
reclassification of
a customer - - - 42,533 - 42,533
Net change for
the year 10,144 (15,800)  (5,656) (1,967) 338 (1,629)
Wiritten-off against
impairment 331 : 331 (10,319) . (10,319)
At 31 December 143,135 163 143,298 132,660 15,963 148,623

19.  RECEIVABLES FROM THE STATE BUDGET

2016 2015

Acquired receivables 26,902 20,037
Energy Efficiency Program 397,568 9,848
424,470 29,885

At 31 December 2016 the receivables classified as Receivables from the State budget — Acquired receivables represent
receivables originating from assignment contracts with debtors - secondary budget spending units.

By Decree No. 18 of 2 February 2015, the Council of Ministers of the Republic of Bulgaria approved National Programme for
Energy Efficiency of Multi-Family Residential Buildings (the Programme) on the terms and conditions for grants award under
the Programme and for designating the bodies that will be in charge of its implementation.

The financing under the Programme goes through BDB. For the purpose, the Bank concludes trilateral agreements with regional
governors (representatives of the State) and municipal mayors (authorized representatives of the owners’ associations).

The Bank is of the opinion that the existing receivables bear a minimat credit risk in so far as the source of the payments is the
budget of the Republic of Bulgaria. The resources attracted by international partners for the purpose of financing the Programme
is covered by a State guarantee (see Note 30).

Funds utilised under the Program as of 31 December 2016 amounted to BGN 397,568 thousand (at 31 December 2015: BGN
9,848 thousand).
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

2016 2015

Government securities 307,231 257,270
Corporate bonds 12,846 3,054
Non-public companies’ shares 2,643 2,484
Participation in the SIA investment program (note 36) 232 152
Public companies’ shares 13 8
322,965 262,968

Movement in available-for-sale securities

2016 2015

At 1 January 262,968 296,995
Additions (purchases) 170,623 377,759
Disposals (sale and/or maturity) (115,593) (413,346)
Net increase due to revaluation of available-for-sale securities to fair value 4,967 1,560
At 31 December 322,965 262,968

The non-public companies’ shares held by the Group include shares of the European [nvestment Fund (EIF) amounting to BGN
2,505 thousand. The portion of the nominal value of the acquired shares of EIF, which has not been paid, is due after a decision
is taken by the General Meeting of Shareholders of EIF (Note 36).

The remaining portion of the non-public companies’ shares amounting to BGN 138 thousand represent shares of the company
licensed as a payment system operator under the Bulgarian law - BORICA - Bankservice AD. Only banks can be shareholders
of this company and they acquire shares following a specific procedure; the share price is determined using a formula specified
in the company's Statute. These shares are presented at cost (acquisition price) due to fact that at the reporting date there is
no sufficiently reliable public information to determine an actual fair value of these shares.

The reserve formed on available-for-sale financial assets as of 31 December 2016 amounts to BGN 4,967 thousand - positive
value (31 December 2015: BGN 1,567 thousand - positive value) (Note 35).

In 2016 there was no allowance for impairment of available-for-sale securities transferred to and reported on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (Note 9) (2015: BGN 43 thousand.)
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

21. HELD-FOR-TRADING FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Agreed/Contingent Fair value at 31 Agreed/Contingen Fair value at 31 December
amount December 2016 t amount 2015

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

interest  rate
swaps - - - 9,779 - 362

Currency

swaps - - - 21,786 305 -
- - - 31,565 305 362

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading include out-of-counter derivative financial instruments - interest rate swaps and
currency swaps. In 2016 and 2015 the Group did not designate derivatives as hedging instruments in accordance with the
requirements of 1AS 39.

22,  SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY

2016 2015
Corporate bonds of financial entities 1,384 1,979
1,384 1,979

Corporate bonds of financial entities represent bonds issued by a Bulgarian company denominated in EUR with nominal value
EUR 1,000 thousand.
23.  NETINVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASE

The net investment in finance lease is the difference between the gross investment in the finance lease, less any unearned
finance income, and the accumulated impairment losses.

2016 2015
Gross investment in finance lease 1,325 1,451
Unearned finance income (147) (161)
Net minimum lease payments 1,178 1,290
Impairment loss (474) (308)
Net investment in finance lease 704 982

Allocation of net finance lease investment:

2016 2015
Repayment not later than one year 185 450
Repayment later than one year and no later than five years 993 840
Net minimum lease payments 1,178 1,290
impairment loss (474) (308)
Net investment in finance lease 704 982
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

23.  NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASE (CONTINUED)

Movement in the allowance for impairment;

2016 2015
Balance as of 01 January (308) (345)
Charge for the year (208) (10)
Reversed for the year 24 44
Written off 18 3
Balance as of 31 December (474) (308)
24. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Land and Bank Fixtures and Motor Licences Total
buildings equipment fittings vehicles and
and software
computers

Book value
As of 1 January 2015 20,043 1,247 306 384 956 22,936
Additions 4,112 327 1 88 - 4,528
Disposals - (9) - (66) - (75)
As of 31 December 2015 24,155 1,565 307 406 956 27,389
Additions 8,398 789 318 - 231 9,736
Disposals - (77) 7 (43) - (127)
As of 31 December 2016 32,553 2,217 618 363 1,187 36,998
Accumulated depreciation
As of 1 January 2015 512 768 212 62 639 2,193
Charge for the year 37 206 29 64 217 553
Disposals - (11) - (5) - (16)
As of 31 December 2015 549 963 241 121 856 2,730
Charge for the year 172 237 26 65 83 583
Disposals - (76) (6) (12) - (94)
As of 31 December 2016 721 1,124 261 174 939 3,219
Net book value
As of 31 December 2016 31,832 1,153 357 189 248 33,779
As of 31 December 2015 23,606 602 66 285 100 24,659

The land and buildings amounting to BGN 8.398 thousand acquired in 2016 (2015: BGN 4,112 thousand) comprise FTAs in
progress relating to the construction and development of a building owned by the parent company (the “Bank”) located at 1
Dyakon Ignatii Street, Sofia.

The fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use at 31 December 2016 amounts to BGN 550 thousand at cost
(2015: BGN 588 thousand) and intangible assets amount to BGN 640 thousand (2015: BGN 628 thousand) respectively.
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25.  INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2016 2015
Carrying amount at the beginning of period 7,744 -
Reclassified from held for sale 251 3,095
Reclassified from other assets - 4,984
Sold (53) -
(Loss) on change in the fair value included in profit and loss for the period (240) (335)

7,702 7,744

The Group holds investment properties as a result of collateral acquired on problem loans. They are leased to third parties.
Rental income generated for 2016 amounts to BGN 836 thousand (2015: BGN 333 thousand)(Note 11A). The fair value at 31
December 2016 has been determined by an independent certified appraiser.

The Group classifies its investment property in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value has been determined on the
basis of the valuation calculated by independent certified appraisers by employing valuation techniques and key inputs for the
valuation of the investment property disclosed in Note 5.

26.  ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Properties (land, buildings and fixtures and fittings) at 31 December 2016 amounting to BGN 4,670 thousand (2015: BGN 8,720
thousand — land and buildings) were acquired by the Group in 2016 against payment of liabilities under problem loans of
borrowers.

The assets have not been used and it is not planned to be used in the Group's activity. Management actively seeks buyers with
the purpose to sell them by the end of 2017.

Movement in assets held for sale in 2016 and 2015: 2016 2015
Carrying amount at the beginning of period 8,720 1,134
Acquired from collateral foreclosure 4,706 11,776
Sold (1,392) )]
Reclassified to assets acquired from collateral foreclosure (7,113) (1,088)
Reclassified to investment property {251) (3,095)

4,670 8,720

27.  OTHER ASSETS AND ASSETS ACQUIRED FROM COLLATERAL FORECLOSURE

2016 2015

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure 11,372 4,714
Other receivables 499 278
VAT refundable - 373
Prepayments and advances 116 265
11,987 5,630

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure include assets classified as held for sale (acquired from collateral foreclosure), but
not realised within the stipulated 12-month period and reclassified to other assets. These assets are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.
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27.  OTHER ASSETS AND ASSETS ACQUIRED FROM COLLATERAL FORECLOSURE (CONTINUED)

Movement in assets acquired from collateral foreclosure in 2016 and 2015: 2016 2015
Carrying amount at the beginning of period 4,714 8,708
Reclassified from assets held for sale 7,113 1,088
Reclassified to investment property - (4,984)
Sold (36) (51)
Impairment (419) (47)
Carrying amount at the end of period 11,372 4,714

28.  DEPOSITS FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

2016 2015

Deposits from local banks 42,157 413
Deposits from foreign banks 1,580 429
43,737 842

Interest payable on deposits from credit institutions at 31 December 2016 amounts to BGN 1 thousand (2015: BGN 1 thousand).

2016 2015
Term deposits 39,576 -
Demand deposits 4,161 842
43,737 842

29. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS OTHER THAN CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
2016 2015
Individuals 4,654 5,174
Companies and sole traders 572,479 560,970

577,133 566,144

The amounts due to individuals represent deposits of employees of the Group.

Interest payable on deposits from other customers, other than credit institutions, at 31 December 2016 amounts to BGN 659
thousand (2015: BGN 261 thousand).

2016 2015
Term deposits 467,807 387,344
Demand deposits 109,326 178,800
577,133 566,144

82

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

30. BORROWINGS FROM INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS

2016 2015

Long-term frame loan agreement with the Council of Europe Development Bank 128,152 47,730
Long-term loans from European Investment Bank 146,723 38,544
Long-term foans from the Nordic investment bank 22,014 28,664
Long-term loans from the Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau 23,038 28,817
Long-term loan from Black Sea Trade and Development Bank - 12,035
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe 4,315 7,795
Long-term loan from Dexia Credit Local 1,951 5,851
Long-term loan from DEPFA Investment Bank - Fms Wertmanagement Aor 1,384 4,147
Long-term loans from JBIC Japan Bank for International Cooperation 3,278 5,140
European Investment Fund 9,823 -
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China 39,320 -
379,998 178,723

Interest payable on borrowings from international institutions at 31 December 2016 amount to BGN 489 thousand (2015: BGN
338 thousand).

Effective interest rates on borrowings from international institutions at 31 December 2016 vary from 0.099 per cent to 3.39 per
cent (31 December 2015: from 0.27 per cent to 3.39 per cent).

Council of Europe Development Bank

On 2 January 2003 between the Council of Europe Development Bank (CEB), the Republic of Bulgaria represented by the
Minister of Finance and Encouragement Bank AD (being at present Bulgarian Development Bank AD) were signed two
Framework Loan Agreements for EUR 10,000 thousand and EUR 5,000 thousand for financing of micro, small and medium-
sized enterprises in Bulgaria. The loan agreement amounting to EUR 10,000 thousand is secured by a State guarantee provided
by the Republic of Bulgaria. As of 31 December 2015 the loans from the year 2003 were fully repaid.

On 18 November 2009 a third Loan agreement was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank AD and the Council of
Europe Development Bank (CEB) for EUR 15,000 thousand. The purpose of the loan is to finance investment projects of micro-
» small and medium-sized enterprises from the real sector with the aim to open new and to preserve already existing jobs. The
loan is unsecured. As of 31 December 2016 the loan was fully utilised and the outstanding principal under the facility amounted
to EUR 7,500 thousand equivalent to BGN 14,669 thousand (31 December 2015: EUR 9,375 thousand equivalent to BGN
18,336 thousand). The interest rate is floating, based on the 3-month EURIBOR plus margin.

On 30 March 2011 a fourth Loan Agreement was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank AD and the Council of Europe
Development Bank for EUR 20,000 thousand. The purpose of the loan is to improve the access to financing of the Bulgarian
small and medium-sized enterprises, to open new jobs, and to preserve already existing jobs. The loan is unsecured. As of 31
December 2016 the loan was fully utilised and the outstanding principal under the facility amounted to EUR 13,000 thousand
equivalent to BGN 25,426 thousand (31 December 2015: EUR 15,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 29,337 thousand). The
interest rate on the first tranche is floating, based on the 3-month EURIBOR plus margin, and on the second tranche it is fixed.

On 23 February 2016 Bulgarian Development Bank signed a Contract with the Council of Europe Development Bank (CEB)
amounting to EUR 150,000 thousand. The funds will be used to finance energy efficiency measures and requires structural
measures within the National Energy Efficiency Programme. The loan is a specific purpose loan and will be used for renovation
of multi-family buildings. The term of repayment of the loan is up to 10 years. The loan is secured by a State guarantee, which
is provided on the grounds of the Public Debt Act for 2016. A Guarantee Agreement was signed between CEB and the Ministry
of Finance, which was ratified by the National Assembly. The Guarantee Agreement Ratification Act was promulgated in State
Gazette on 3 May 2016.
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30. BORROWINGS FROM INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

Council of Europe Development Bank (continued)

The National Programme for Energy Efficiency of Multi-Family Residential Buildings was approved by decision of the Council
of Ministers dated 27 January 2015. At 31 December 2016 the debt on the loan amounts to EUR 45,000 thousand with BGN
equivalent of BGN 88,012 thousand (at 31 December 2015 the loan facility was not utilised). The interest rate is floating, based
on the 3M Euribor plus margin.

Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau

On 27 July 2010 Bulgarian Development Bank AD signed a direct loan agreement for EUR 25,000 thousand with the German
Development Bank Kreditanstalt fir Wiederaufbau. The financial resource is intended for direct lending to small and medium
sized enterprises and/or for providing credit lines to commercial banks for special-purpose financing for the business. The loan
is unsecured. At 31 December 2016 the loan was fully utilised, and the outstanding principal under the facility amounted to
EUR 11,765 thousand equivalent to BGN 23,010 thousand (at 31 December 2015 the outstanding principal amounted to EUR
14,706 thousand equivalent to BGN 28,762 thousand). The interest rate is floating, based on the 6-month EURIBOR plus
margin.

On 16 August 2016 Bulgarian Development Bank signed a Contract with KiW for EUR 100,000 thousand. The funds will be
used to finance energy efficiency measures and requires structural measures within the National Energy Efficiency Programme.
The loan is secured by a State guarantee, in accordance with the Public Debt Act and a Guarantee Agreement signed between
KW and the Ministry of Finance. The Guarantee Agreement between KfW and the Ministry of Finance was ratified by the
National Assembly. The Guarantee Agreement Ratification Act was promulgated in State Gazette on 30 December 2016. The
interest rate is floating, based on the 6M Euribor plus margin. The term of repayment of the loan is up to 7 years, with a grace
period of 2 years. At 31 December 2016 the loan facility was not utilised.

European Investment Bank

On 4/6 October 2000 the Bank signed a financial contract (Global Loan Bulgaria — Encouragement Bank) with the European
Investment Bank for EUR 10,000 thousand for financing of small and medium sized enterprises. The loan is based on an
Agreement between European Investment Bank and Republic of Bulgaria signed on 14 July 1997. The loan is secured by a
State guarantee issued by the Republic of Bulgaria. At 31 December 2016 the loan was fully repaid.

On 30 December 2009 a second finance contract was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank and EIB for EUR 25,000
thousand for financing of SMEs and priority projects in the fields of infrastructure, energy, environmental protection, industry,
health and education. The loan is unsecured and has been fully utilised. The loan was fully repaid at 31 December 2016 (at
31 December 2015: EUR 19,706 thousand equivalent to BGN 38,541 thousand).

On 18 November 2016 BDB signed a third contract with European Investment Bank for the amount of EUR 150,000 thousand
for financing projects of small and medium-sized enterprises. The funds are provided with the support of EU through a
guarantee issued by EFSI (European Fund for Strategic Investment), part of the Investment Plan for Europe — the Juncker
Plan. This is the first contract signed under the Plan, which is provided by the EIB in Bulgaria. The loan term, including a grace
period, is set for each individual tranche. The funds will be used to finance SMEs, including innovative projects, to support
regions with high unemployment rates, as well as a part of the youth employment initiative or for start-up company projects.
The loan will be allocated through partner banks, other financial intermediaries or directly. The foan is unsecured. At 31
December 2016, the principal due on the loan amounted to EUR 75,000 thousand, or BGN equivalent to BGN 146,687 thousand
{funds were not utilized from the loan as at 31 December 2015). The interest rate is floating, based on the 6-month EURIBOR
plus margin.

84

Unofficial translation in English, for information purposes only, of the original financial statements issued in Bulgarian.



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
All amounts are stated in thousands of Bulgarian leva, unless otherwise stated.

30. BORROWINGS FROM INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

Nordic Investment Bank

On 16 November 2004 a Loan Agreement was signed with the Nordic Investment Bank for a credit facility amounting to EUR
10,000 thousand for financing of projects of small and medium-sized enterprises, which are of mutual interest for Bulgaria and
the Nordic Investment Bank member states. The Loan is secured by a Letter of Intent. At 31 December 2016 the loan was fully
utilised, and the outstanding principal under the facility amounted to EUR 0,471 thousand equivalent to BGN 0,920 thousand
(31 December 2015: EUR 1,529 thousand equivalent to BGN 2,991 thousand). The interest rate is floating, based on 6-month
EURIBOR plus margin.

On 15 December 2010 a second credit line was signed between the Nordic Investment Bank and Bulgarian Development Bank
AD for EUR 20,000 thousand. The funds are intended for financing of renewable energy projects or ecological projects; projects
involving the Nordic Investment Bank member states, as well as indirect financing through commercial bank-partners. The loan
is unsecured. At 31 December 2016 the loan was fully utilised, and the outstanding principal under the facility amounted to
EUR 10,842 thousand equivalent to BGN 21,205 thousand (31 December 2015: EUR 13,195 thousand equivalent to BGN
25,807 thousand). The interest rate is floating, based on 6-month EURIBOR plus margin.

Black Sea Trade and Development Bank (BSTDB)

On 9 October 2009 Bulgarian Development Bank AD and Black Sea Trade and Development Bank signed a Loan Agreement
for EUR 8,000 thousand. The resources are intended for financing of Bulgarian small and medium-sized enterprises. The loan
is unsecured. As of 31 December 2016 the loan was fully repaid.

On 9 September 2011 a second Loan Agreement was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank AD and Black Sea Trade
And Development Bank for EUR 31,000 thousand. The loan is intended for financing of investment projects, working capital,
export and pre-export financing of SMEs. The loan is unsecured. At 31 December 2016 the loan was fully repaid (31 December
2015 the outstanding principal under the facility amounted to EUR 6,200 thousand equivalent to BGN 12,126 thousand).

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe

On 11 November 2014 BDB signed a new agreement with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe for trade financing,
which enables the financing of commercial transactions and letters of credit, including export deals, with a term of up to 12
months. The agreement is for EUR 10,000 thousand. At 31 December 2016 the loan liability amounted to EUR 2,200 thousand
equivalent to BGN 4,303 thousand (at 31 December 2015: the loan liability amounted to EUR 3,969 equivalent to BGN 7,762
thousand). The interest rate is floating, based on EURIBOR plus margin.

Dexia Credit Local

On 23 May 2007 the Bank signed a Loan agreement with DEXIA Kommunalkredit Bank (as of 12 July 2013 - Dexia Credit
Local) for EUR 10,000 thousand. The loan is intended for financing of investment projects of small and medium-sized
enterprises in Bulgaria. As of 31 December 2016 the loan was fully utilised. The foan is secured by a Letter of Intent, signed
by the Minister of Finance. As of 31 December 2016 the outstanding principal under the loan amounted to EUR 1,000 thousand
equivalent to BGN 1,956 thousand (31 December 2015: EUR 3,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 5,867 thousand). The interest
rate is floating, on the basis of 3-month EURIBOR plus margin.
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30. BORROWINGS FROM INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

DEPFA Investment Bank - Fms Wertmanagement Aor

On 18 May 2007 an Agreement was signed with DEPFA Investment Bank (as of 23 September 2011 - Fms Wertmanagement
Aor) for EUR 15,000 thousand for general corporate purposes. The loan is unsecured. As of 31 December 2016 the loan was
fully utilised and the outstanding principal under the loan amounted to EUR 0,714 thousand equivalent to BGN 1,397 thousand
(31 December 2015: EUR 2,143 thousand equivalent to BGN 4,191 thousand). The interest rate is floating, on the basis of 6-
month EURIBOR plus margin.

Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC)

On 17 December 2009 a Loan agreement was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank AD and Japan Bank for
International Cooperation for EUR 20,000 thousand. The loan is intended for financing of Japanese projects and can be utilised
both in EUR and in JPY. For a loan in EUR the applicable interest rate will be formed as fixed (CIRR plus risk margin) for 60
per cent of the amount and floating (6-month EURIBOR + margin) for the rest 40 per cent of the amount. For a loan in JPY the
applicable interest rate is fixed (CIRR plus risk margin). The loan is unsecured. The utilised amount under the loan is JPY
1,122,594 thousand equivalent to BGN 19,812 thousand. As of 31 December 2016 the outstanding principal under the loan
amounted to JPY 210,475 thousand equivalent to BGN 3,336 thousand (31 December 2015; JPY 350,801 thousand equivalent
to BGN 5,211 thousand).

Hungarian EXIM Bank

On 29 May 2013 a credit line agreement was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank AD and Hungarian EXIM Bank for
EUR 10,000 thousand (BGN 19,558 thousand). Every commercial transaction under the agreement will be provided for a period
of 2 to 5 years. The funds will be used for financing of imports of Hungarian goods in Bulgaria. The interest rate is fixed (CIRR
+ margin). As of 31 December 2016 the credit line facility was not utilised.

Progress Program of the European Investment Fund

On 24 July 2015 a loan agreement was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank AD and the Progress Program of EIF for
EUR 5,000 thousand (BGN 9,779 thousand). The loan is intended to finance micro-leases and micro-loans for micro and small
enterprises, as well as for financing of micro-loans through financial institutions. This Program is directed to companies with up
to 10 employees and assets amounting up to EUR 2 million (BGN 3,912 thousand). Eligible beneficiaries are also self-employed
persons, start-ups, or persons experiencing difficulties in obtaining financing. At 31 December 2016 the loan principal due
amounted to EUR 5,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 9,779 thousand (At 31 December 2015, the loan facility was not utilised).
The loan bears a fixed interest rate.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC)

On 22 February 2016 BDB signed an inter-bank loan agreement with ICBC for the amount of EUR 20,000 thousand. The funds
are intended to support the general lending activity of BDB, direct financing of business or for creating on-lending programmes
through commercial banks to support investment projects and provide working capital. The term of the loan is two years. At 31
December 2016 the loan was fully utilized.

At 31 December 2016, the loan liability amounted to EUR 20,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 39,117 thousand (at 31
December 2015 the loan facility was not utilised). The interest rate is floating based on the 6-month EURIBOR plus margin.
The loan is unsecured.
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31.  OTHER BORROWINGS

2016 2015

Loan financing from the Ministry of Finance with funds from KfW 11,236 11,226
KW funds provided by the Ministry of Finance for trust management 6 443 6,630
Loans from local banks - 9,807
Special-purpose deposits 95,185 95,796
112,864 123,459

Interest liabilities accrued on other borrowings at 31 December 2016 amount to BGN 0 (2015: BGN 28 thousand)

Loan financing from the Ministry of Finance with funds from KfW

On 18 April 2007 the Bank concluded a loan agreement with the Government of the Republic of Bulgaria, represented by the
Minister of Finance. This agreement is based on the Treaty between Bulgaria and Germany for financial collaboration from year
2001 and an agreement between the Republic of Bulgaria and Kreditanstalt fir Wiederaufbau (KfW). By virtue of this
agreement, the amount of EUR 4,929 thousand (BGN 9,640 thousand) is granted to the Bank designated as Project Provider
for the purpose of financing micro, small and medium-sized enterprises. The term of the agreement is 10 years as from the
date of fund receipt, while the latter along with the due interest is repaid bullet at the end of the period. As of 31 December
2016 the outstanding principal and the capitalised interest amounted to EUR 5,745 thousand equivalent to BGN 11,236
thousand (as of 31 December 2015: EUR 5,739 thousand equivalent to BGN 11,225 thousand). The loan interest is capitalised
quarterly and is based on 3-month EURIBOR plus margin.

KfW funds provided by the Ministry of Finance for trust management

The Bank concluded an agreement with the Ministry of Finance (MF) for management of funds granted by Kreditanstalt fur
Wiederaufbau (KfW) pursuant to an agreement between the Governments of Bulgaria and Germany. These funds are provided
for the purpose of financing small and medium-sized enterprises. The Ministry of Finance bears the risk for the advanced
provided to the banks - intermediaries. The Bank selects the banks and transfers the funds to those approved; gathers
information and performs periodic reviews regarding the funds utilisation, and monitors the timely payments of the interest and
principal due and their repayment to the special account of the Ministry of Finance. As of 31 December 2016 the balance of the
loan with the parent company (the “Bank”) amounts to EUR 3,294 thousand equivalent to BGN 6,443 thousand (31 December
2015: EUR 3,390 thousand equivalent to BGN 6,629 thousand).

The Bank receives a management fee and accrued interest on the special account of the Fund on quarterly basis.
Loans from local banks

On 16 September 2011 Bulgarian Development Bank AD signed a mid-term loan agreement with Citibank N.A. — Sofia Branch
(from 1 January 2014 Citibank Europe AD, Bulgaria Branch) amounting to EUR 20,000 thousand. The purpose of these funds
is to finance directly or indirectly new and existing loan portfolios of small and mid-sized enterprises. The loan is unsecured. At
31 December 2016 the loan was fully utilised. At 31 December 2016 the loan was fully repaid (31 December 2015: EUR 5,000
thousand equivalent to BGN 9,779 thousand).
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31,  OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Long-term agreement with the Executive Agency on Fisheries and Aquaculture

On 07 December 2010 a financing agreement for provision of funds for the issuance of guarantees under the Operational
programme for development of fisheries sector 2007-2013 was signed between the National Guarantee Fund (NGF) and the
Executive Agency on Fisheries and Aquaculture (NAFA) of the Ministry of Agriculture and Food of the Republic of Bulgaria.
The aim of the program is to provide easier access to financing by the sector, with lower interest rates, lower collateral
requirements and lower own financing.

The guarantee program is fulfilled within the Measure 2.7 of the Rural Development (RDP) Programme. Following consultations,
the Executive Agency on Fisheries and Aquaculture (NAFA) and NGF EAD have chosen the financial engineering instrument,
provided for under Commission Regulation (EC) N0.498/2007 (OB, 10.05.2007, L 120) laying down detailed rules for the
implementation of Council Regulation (EC) No.1198/2006, to be realised through a fund {accounts) in an account and under
the governance of NGF.

in accordance with Commission Regulation (EC) No.498/2007 (Article 35), the financial engineering instrument is established
in the form of a separate financial pool within NGF EAD.

In 2010, NAFA provided to NGF the amount of BGN 6,000 thousand under Article 1 of the Financing Agreement. On 28
December 2011 pursuant to Annex 2 an additional contribution of BGN 9,168 thousand was made. On 19 December 2012
Annex 4 of the Financing Agreement for provision of funds for the issuance of guarantees under the Operational programme
for development of fisheries sector 2007-2013 was signed between NGF and NAFA. Pursuant to Annex 4, NAFA shall transfer
to NGF additional contribution amounting to BGN 15,050 thousand for the realisation of the guarantee scheme. In accordance
with Annex 5 signed between NGF EAD and NAFA on 16 January 2014, the Agency has withdrawn the last contribution of
BGN 15,050 thousand. By Annex No. 7 dated 06 October 2015 between the parties, the Fund refunded to the Agency the
amount of BGN 3,000 thousand from the additionally transferred financial resources.

The guarantee program is free of charge for businesses that benefit from it, while the cost for NGF EAD for its realisation are
determined and paid under Article 35 of Commission Regulation (EC) No.498/2007.

As of 31 December 2015 within the OPRDP, NGF EAD has signed agreements with the following banks: Raiffeisenbank
(Bulgaria) EAD, First Investment Bank AD, Cibank EAD, UniCredit Bulbank AD, Central Cooperative Bank AD, DSK Bank EAD,
TBI Bank EAD, International Asset Bank AD, Bulgarian American Credit Bank AD, and Bulgarian Development Bank AD.

The term for inclusion of new loans and bank guarantees ( which are scheduled within the Program) was 31 December 2015.

Long-term agreement with the Ministry of Agriculture and Food

On 20 December 2011, the National Guarantee Fund EAD and the Ministry of Agriculture and Food (MAF) signed a financial
agreement to provide funds for the implementation of guarantees on guarantee schemes under the Rural Development
Programme 2007 - 2013. The Guarantee Scheme was established on the grounds of Articles 51 — 52 of Commission
Regulation (EC) No. 1974/2006 dated 15 December 2006 laying down detailed rules for the implementation of Council
Regulation (EC) No. 1698/2005 dated 20 September 2005 regarding the support for rural development under EAFRD to
facilitate access to financing of beneficiaries and the realisation of the projects under OPRDP.

MAF provides funding to NGF in BGN amount equivalent to EUR 121,100 thousand (BGN 242,000 thousand), in order to
enhance the access to financing, support competitiveness, accelerate the completion of investments, which will be co-finance
with funds under the Rural Development Programme (2007-2013) and which are used by the Fund for the issuance of
guarantees and counter-guarantees. By Annex No.2 dated 14 October 2015 signed between the parties, the Fund refunded to
the Ministry the amount of BGN 154,586 thousand from the financial resources provided. By Annex No. 3 dated 01 December
2015, signed between the parties, the term of the Agreement was extended until 01 April 2016.

Pursuant to Annex No. 4 dated 29 March 2016 the parties declared that the funds provided under the Agreement should be re-
used by the Guaranteed Activity Fund with the aim to facilitate access to financing for entities approved for aid under the Rural
development programme of the Republic of Bulgaria (2014-2020 r.), as also for entities from Livestock breeding sector and
Plant production sector. The funds are provided for carrying out guaranteed activities for a term of ten years.
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31.  OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Long-term agreement with the Ministry of Agriculture and Food (continued)

In 2016 the funds were placed in a two-year deposit with the parent company.

As of 31 December 2016, within the Guarantee Scheme under OPRDP 2007 - 2013, NGF EAD has signed agreements with
the following banks: Bulgarian American Credit Bank AD, DSK Bank EAD, United Bulgarian Bank AD, Piraeus Bank Bulgaria
AD, First Investment Bank AD, Raiffeisenbank (Bulgaria) EAD, Cibank EAD, Central Cooperative Bank AD and Eurobank

Bulgaria AD, UniCredit Bulbank AD, TBI Bank EAD, and Allianz Bank Bulgaria AD.

In 20186, the Guarantee Scheme 2014 -2020, a joint activity with MAF, was implemented by using funds amounting to BGN
50,000 thousand, released from the Guarantee Scheme under OPRDP 2007 — 2013. New agreements under the Guarantee
Scheme was signed with 17 commercial banks: United Bulgarian Bank AD, Texim Bank AD, DSK Bank EAD, Piraeus Bank
Bulgaria AD, Cibank EAD, Bulgarian American Credit Bank AD, Municipal Bank AD, Investment Bank AD, Allianz Bank Bulgaria
AD, International Asset Bank AD, Eurobank Bulgaria AD, D Commercial Bank AD, TBI Bank EAD, First investment Bank AD,
UniCredit Bulbank AD, Bulgarian Development Bank AD, Raiffeisenbank (Bulgaria) EAD, and MFI Jobs EAD (a Group

company).

32. PROVISIONS

Guarantee provisions
Litigation provisions

2016 2015
7,509 6,153

174 174
7,683 6,327

Guarantee provisions consist of the amount the Group estimates as highly probable to be required to be actually paid to third

parties under guarantees issued by the Group.
Litigation provisions relate to future payments under lawsuits relating to labour disputes.

The table below presents the movements in the guarantee provisions:

Balance at 1 January
Charged over the year
Utilised over the year
Reversed over the year
Balance at 31 December

2016 2015
6,153 6,993
4,273 2,453
135 (15)
(3,052) (3,278)
7,509 6,153
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33.  OTHER LIABILITIES

2016 2015
Charges on debenture loans and portfolio guarantees 509 569
Payables to personnel and for social security 304 278
Retirement benefit liabilities 229 198
Accruals for expenses 177 144
Tax payables 131 148
Other creditors 70 34

1,420 1,371

Payables to personnel for salaries and social security contributions comprise accruals on compensated absences and social

security contributions due thereon.

Employee retirement benefits are due by the Group to employees reaching retirement age and are stated at their present value.

In accordance with the Labour Code each employee is entitled to indemnity on retirement amounting to two gross monthly
salaries, and if he / she has worked for more than 10 years for the parent company (the “Bank”) - to six gross monthly salaries
at the time of retirement. The parent company (the “Bank”) estimated the amount of these liabilities by using mathematical
models and the services of a certified actuary. On the basis of the calculations made, the amount of BGN 229 thousand was
included in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: BGN 198 thousand).

2016 2015
Present value of the liability at 1 January 198 178
Current service cost 44 34
Interest expense 7 7
Amounts paid in the period (36)
Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and actual
experience (20) 15
Present value of the liability at 31 December 299 198
Amounts on Amounts on Total
retirement for  retirements due
old age and toillness
length of
service
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Actuarial gain/(loss) at 1 January (1) 6 - - (1) 6
Actuarial (loss)/ gain recognized in other comprehensive income for the
period 23 (7) - - 23 {7)
Actuarial (loss)/gain at 31 December 22 (1) - - 22 (1)
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33.  OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The following actuarial assumptions are used in calculating the present value of the liabilities as of 31 December 2016:

e mortality rate — in accordance with the table prepared on the basis of statistics issued by the National Statistical Institute

for the total mortality rate of the population in Bulgaria for the period 2013 - 2015;
o staff turnover rate — from 0 per cent to 10 per cent depending of five age groups formed;

» rate of early retirement due to illness — from 0.027 per centto 0.3212 per cent depending of five age groups formed;

» effective annual interest rate for discounting — 2.5 per cent (2015 - 2.8 per cent);

o assumptions for the future level of working salaries in the parent company (the “Bank’) are based on the Group's
development plan for 2016 - 5 per cent compared to the 2016 level and for 2017 and subsequent years — 5 per cent
compared to the previous year level,

The effect for 2016 of the increase and the effect of the decrease by 1 per cent of the salary growth and the interest rate on the
total amount of current service costs and interest, and on the present value of the liability for payment of defined benefits upon

retirement, are as follows:

Increase by 1% of

Decrease by 1% of

salary growth salary growth
Change in the interest and current service costs (“+™ increase, “~"- decrease) 8 7
Change in the present value of the liability as of 31 December 2016 (“+- increase, “-'-
decrease) 34 (28)
Increase by 1% of ~ Decrease by 1% of
interest rate interest rate
Change in the interest and current service costs (“+" increase, *~"- decrease) (5) 6
Change in the present value of the liability as of 31 December 2016 (“+"- increase, “-"-
decrease) (29) 35

Increase by 1% of

Decrease by 1% of

staff turnover rate staff turnover rate
Change in the interest and current service costs (“+™- increase, “-- decrease) (8) 10
Change in the present value of the liability as of 31 December 2016 (“+"- increase, *—"-
decrease) (30) 37

The effect for 2015 of the increase and the effect of the decrease by 1 per cent of the salary growth and the interest rate on the
total amount of current service costs and interest, and on the present value of the liability for payment of defined benefits upon

retirement, are as follows:
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33.  OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Increase by 1% of ~ Decrease by 1% of

salary growth salary growth
Change in the interest and current service costs (“+"- increase, "-"- decrease) 8 (6)
Change in the present value of the liability as of 31 December 2015 (“+- increase, -
decrease) 29 (24)
Increase by 1% of ~ Decrease by 1% of
interest rate interest rate
Change in the interest and current service costs (“+™- increase, “~"- decrease) (4 5
Change in the present value of the liability as of 31 December 2015 (“+"- increase, “-"-
decrease) (24) 29
Increase by 1% of ~ Decrease by 1% of
staff turnover rate staff turnover rate
Change in the interest and current service costs (“+™- increase, “-"- decrease) (7 9
Change in the present value of the liability as of 31 December 2015 (“+- increase, “-"-
decrease) (25) 31
34. SHARE CAPITAL
2016 2015
Share capital
Ordinary shares issued paid in cash 587,964 587,964
Ordinary shares issued - in-kind contribution (land for the building of the bank) 12,200 12,200
Ordinary shares issued - in-kind contribution (the building of the bank) 1,610 1,610
601,774 601,774

The capital of the Bank is composed by 6,017,735 ordinary registered voting shares with par value of BGN 100 each.

The Bulgarian Development Bank Act provides that not less than 51 per cent of shares forming the Bank’s capitai should be
owned by the State; the shares of the State amounting to not less than 51 per cent of the registered share capital are non-
transferable. Also, a specific limit is established with regard to the remaining shareholders, other than the Bulgarian State
through the Ministry of Finance. Shareholders may be: the Council of Europe Development Bank, the European Investment
Bank, the European Investment Fund as well as other banks for development in EU member states. The Bank’s shares may
not be pledged and the rights thereon may not be subject to transfer deals.

At 31 December 2016, 99.99 per cent of the Banlk's shares are held by the State through the Ministry of Finance (31 December
2015 —99.99 per cent).
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35. RESERVES

In accordance with the general provisions of the Commercial Act, the parent company (the “Bank”) shall allocate to Reserve
Fund at least 1/10 of its profit for the year until the reserves reach 10 percent of the share capital as stipulated in the Articles
of Association. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, the Bank shall set aside to the Reserve Fund at least % of
its after-tax annual profit until the reserves reach 50 percent of its share capital.

The Reserve Fund may be used by the Group only to cover its current or prior period losses, and not for distribution of dividends,
without the authorisation of Bulgarian National Bank.

Moreover, the Credit Institutions Act stipulates that the banks in Bulgaria cannot distribute dividends before accumulating the
minimum reserves (mainly the Reserve Fund) required by law or by their Articles of Assaciation, or if the distribution of dividends
will result in violation of the regulatory capital adequacy ratios. The requirement under the Bulgarian Development Bank Act is
similar.

As of 31 December 2016 the Reserve Fund of the Group amounted to BGN 66,151 thousand. (31 December 2015: BGN 61,281
thousand).

As of 31 December 2016 the Additional Reserves of the Group amounted to BGN 48,751 thousand (31 December 2015: BGN
14,697 thousand) and were formed as result of distribution of profits of the Group from previous periods, according to decisions
of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

In 2016, after a regular General Meeting of Shareholders of the parent company (the “Bank”) and in accordance with the
provision of article 92, paragraph 2 of the State Budget Law of the Republic of Bulgaria for 2016, a decision was passed not to
distribute dividends from profits after deduction of the contribution to the Reserve Fund. The dividend paid in 2015 amounted
to BGN 3,248 thousand.

In accordance with the Bulgarian Development Bank Act, each shareholder of the Bank is allowed to waive the right to a
dividend and then the dividend amount is transferred to Additional Reserves.

All unrealised gains and losses on fair value revaluation of the available-for-sale securities at the end of each reporting period
are recognised in equity, in a special components thereof formed by the Group and titled Available-for-sale financial assets
reserve. These gains and losses are transferred to current profits and losses upon sale/maturity of the respective securities
and/or on permanent impairment. The available-for-sale financial assets reserve is presented net of taxes. As of 31 December
2016 the reserve is a positive value amounting to BGN 6,534 thousand (31 December 2015: BGN 1,567 thousand - positive
value).

36. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

2016 2015

Contingent liabilities
Guarantees and letters of credit 323,869 172,920
incl. with cash collateral (3,853) (2,284)
Letters of credit with borrowed funds, accounted as loan commitment - -
Guarantee provisions (7,509) (6,153)
312,507 164,483
Risk free counter guarantees issued 50,851 77,119
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36. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Irrevocable commitments

Unutilised amount of approved loans 531,646 77,748
incl. letters of credit with borrowed funds - -
Unclaimed portion of par value of EIF shares 4,694 4,694
Participation in the SIA investment program 1,724 1,804
538,064 84,246

850,571 248,729

Pursuant to the Bulgarian Development Bank Act, the transfers of activities under the Micro-credits Guarantee Fund Project
from the Ministry of Labour and Social Policy (MLSP) to the National Guarantee Fund EAD - subsidiary of the Bank began in
the last quarter of 2008. Based on the law and on Council of Ministers Decision No. 309/3 May 2007, re-negotiations were
carried out within one year (until May 2009) with each of the partner banks to the Micro-credits Guarantee Fund Project of
MLSP for replacing the security of MLSP deposits with bank guarantees of Bulgarian Development Bank AD. The capital of
Bulgarian Development Bank AD and respectively, of National Guarantee Fund, was increased with the amount of the
government funds released under the project.

As of 31 December 2016 agreements with seven partner banks were concluded by the parent company (the “Bank”) and bank
guarantees amounting to BGN 2,321 thousand (31 December 2015: seven partner banks and bank guarantees issued
amounting to BGN 3,262 thousand) were issued.

On 17 July 2015 Bulgarian Development Bank AD (the parent company) signed a funds management contract with EIF for
accession to the SIA investment program (SIA - Social Impact Accelerator) of EIF for investing in social venture funds, with the
participation amounting to EUR 1 million over an engagement period of up to 5 years. The goal of the SIA program is to invest
in small and medium-sized enterprises having considerable social impact. EIF is the manager of the program. As of 31
December 2016 four equity contributions were made under the initiative amounting to EUR 119 thousand equivalent to BGN
232 thousand (Note 20).

In 2015 the parent company (the “Bank”) launched a new program for indirect financing of micro, small and medium-sized
businesses subject to a maximum of BGN 150,000 thousand. Under the program BDB will be able to assume part of the risk -
up to 30 per cent of the amount of the individual sub-loans - on loans granted by partner banks to businesses. At 31 December
2016 the Bank signed agreements with five partner banks and the so-formed portfolio of guarantees amounted to BGN 3,566
thousand (31 December 2015: five partner banks and portfolio of guarantees amounting to BGN 1,211 thousand).

In 2016 there were active agreements for portfolio guarantees with 11 banks, under the 2009-2013 guarantee scheme, to which
the National Guarantee Fund (a subsidiary of BDB AD) is a party. The maximum term of these guarantees is up to 10 years.
The total limit of funds provided to the banks for including loans in the portfolio amounts to BGN 146,500 thousand {2015: BGN
146,500 thousand). As of 31 December 2016 the approved amount of guarantees included in the portfolio of the partner banks
amounted to BGN 17,778 thousand (2015: BGN 26,613 thousand), and the guaranteed debt amounted to BGN 7,724 thousand
(2015: BGN 12,750 thousand).

In 2014 the National Guarantee Fund launched a new guarantee scheme. There are 13 active signed agreements with banks
for portfolio guarantees under this scheme. Unlike the previous one, banks under the new scheme have the opportunity to
include loans in the guaranteed by the NGF portfolio themselves, complying with the requirements of the scheme. The term for
inclusion of loans into the guaranteed portfolio ends in September 2015 and the NGF guarantee is valid by September 2018.
Only new loans to small and medium-sized enterprises with a maximum guarantee by the National Guarantee Fund of up to
50 per cent from the amount of the loan and no more than BGN 500 thousand are included in the guaranteed portfolio. There
is a payment cap for each guarantee scheme under the 2014 guarantee scheme. The banks pay a guarantee fee based on the
volume achieved, as the borrowers are exempt from fees on the guarantees provided by the NGF. The total limit granted to
banks for the inclusion of loans in the portfolios amounts to BGN 192,000 thousand (2015: BGN 192,000 thousand).

As of 31 December 2016 the approved limit of the guarantees included in the partner banks’ portfolios amounted to BGN
64,323 thousand (2015: BGN 77,855 thousand) and the guaranteed debt amounted to BGN 55,662 thousand (2015: BGN
71,598 thousand).
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36. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

In 2015 a procedure for selecting partner banks of NGF under a new guarantee scheme was initiated. After performing the
selecting procedures and conducting an analysis of the commercial banks, guarantee agreements were signed with 10
commercial banks for the total amount of BGN 326,000 thousand from the beginning of October 2015 to the beginning of
January 2016. Similar to the previous scheme, eligible for inclusion are only new loans for investment needs and working
capital. According to the scheme, NGF guarantees up to 50 per cent of the loan amount, but not more than BGN 1 million at a
related party level. The term for inclusion of loans into the guaranteed portfolio ends on 31 March 2017. A maximum limit of
payments per guaranteed portfolio of up to 25 per cent is approved under the guarantee scheme, where in case of non-
compliance with the terms and conditions of the scheme NGF has the right to exclude loans from the guaranteed portfolio. The
banks pay a guarantee fee based on the volume achieved, while the borrowers are exempt from fees on the guarantees
provided by the NGF. Since the start of the scheme, 1,500 SMEs have been supported by 31 December 2016. The total limit
granted to banks for the inclusion of loans in the portfolios amounts to BGN 379,000 thousand (2015: BGN 326,000 thousand).
At 31 December 2016 the approved limit of the guarantees included in the partner banks’ portfolios amounted to BGN 201,205
thousand (2015: BGN 11,195 thousand) and the guaranteed debt amounted to BGN 180,118 thousand (2015: BGN 10,803
thousand).

Based on a Financing Agreement signed with EAFA in 2011, NGF implements a guarantee scheme in the Fisheries sector.
The guarantees issued by NGF pursuant to the Programme are risk-free as the claims are paid on account of the funds provided
by OPDFS. Agreements with 15 commercial banks were signed under the NGF Programme. Thanks to the support of the
scheme, projects amounting to BGN 46,000 thousand were implemented, of which BGN 33,000 thousand were for projects
under Measure 2.1 (79 per cent of the measure’s budget); the projects supported under Measure 2.6 amounted to BGN 12,000
thousand (77 per cent of the measure’s budget). Projects under Measure 4.1 amounting to BGN 500 thousand were supported
as well.

As of 31 December 2016, when applying the maximum amount of guarantee coverage of 80 per cent, NGF EAD had issued
risk-free guarantees/counter guarantees for loans issued by partner banks for financing of approved projects under the
Operational Programme “Fisheries Sector Development” 2007-2013 amounting to BGN 15,110 thousand with total amount of
loans/bank guarantees — BGN 20,780 thousand (2015: guarantees BGN 20,780 thousand with total amount of loans/bank
guarantees — BGN 30,551 thousand).

The carrying amount of the guaranteed debt as of 31 December 2016 was BGN 7,775 thousand (2015: BGN 9,444 thousand).

Based on a Financing Agreement signed with MAF in 2012, NGF performs guarantee activities in support of beneficiaries of
OPRD 2007-2013. The guarantees issued by NGF under the Programme are risk-free for the Company as the claims are paid
on account of the funds provided by OPRD. 544 beneficiaries of the Programme were supported for projects implementation
under the scheme, whereas 84 per cent of the entities are classified as micro-, 14 per cent as small- and 3 per cent as medium-
sized enterprises.

As of 31 December 2016, when applying the maximum amount of guarantee coverage of 80 per cent, NGF EAD had issued
risk-free for the issuer guarantees/counter guarantees for loans issued by partner banks for financing of approved projects
under the Operational Programme for Rural Development of Republic Bulgaria 2007-2013 amounting to BGN 185,606 thousand
(2015: BGN 185,606 thousand) with total amount of loans of BGN 238,112 thousand (2015: BGN 238,112 thousand). The total
guarantee limit under this program at 31 December 2016 amounts to BGN 36,891 thousand (2015: BGN 67,675 thousand).

The guarantee scheme is a scheme implemented jointly with MAF, which is realized by funds amounting to BGN 50 million
released under the guarantee scheme of OPRD 2007-2013 for financing projects approved under the Operational Programme
for Rural Development of Republic Bulgaria 2014 - 2020. The guarantees issued by NGF EAD under the Programme are risk-
free for the Company as the claims are paid on account of the funds provided by OPRD.
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36. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016, by applying the maximum guarantee cover amount of 50 per cent, NGF EAD issued risk-free guarantees
and counter-guarantees for the Company on loans extended to partner banks for the purpose of financing projects approved
under the Operational Programme for Rural Development of Republic Bulgaria 2014 - 2020 amounting to BGN 12,227 thousand
with the total amount of loans being BGN 24,486 thousand. The total guarantee limit of the Programme is BGN 50,000 thousand.
In 2016, 37 small and medium-sized enterprises were supported.

The book value of debt guarantees was BGN 6,185 thousand at 31 December 2016.

In December 2016, an Agreement was signed between the European Investment Fund (EIF) and National Guarantee Fund
EAD (NGF EAD), by virtue of which new EUR 40 million was ensured for financing of small and medium-sized enterprises in
Bulgaria under the EC COSME Programme. The funds are ensured with the support of the European Fund for Strategic
Investment (EFSI) underpinning the Investment Plan of Europe (the Juncker Plan). EIF provides a guarantee line of EUR 20
million, through which NGF will support a financing of EUR 40 million to SMEs in Bulgaria experiencing difficulties in ensuring
the required collateral. In the beginning of 2017 a procedure for selection of financial intermediaries is to be carried out.

Nature of instruments and credit risk

These commitments of contingent nature bear an off-balance sheet credit risk because only fees are recognised in the financial
statements until the commitments are fulfilled or expire. The amounts reflected in the above table as guarantees represent the
maximum accounting loss that would have been recognised at the end of the reporting period if counterparties failed to perform
in full their contractual obligations. Many of the contingent liabilities and commitments will expire without being advanced fully
or partially. Therefore, the amounts do not represent expected future cash flows. Collateral for issuance of common bank
guarantees exceeds 100 per cent and represents primarily restricted deposits at the Bank, mortgages of real estate and
insurance policies issued in favour of the Bank. When conditions for enforcement of an issued guarantee occur, the Bank
judges the possibilities for recourse to the counterparty and eventual realisation of the provided securities.

The guarantees of the parent company (the “Bank”), issued under the Micro-credits Guarantee Fund Project of MLSP, and the
guarantees issued at own risk of NGF (subsidiary of BDB) are not secured. In case of activation of a component of a guarantee
issued by the Group, the payment thereon is not assessed as ultimate loss because the partner-bank is obliged to undertake
all necessary measures for realising the received collateral of the non-performing loan and to reimburse the respective amount
to the Group.

The non-paid portion of the nominal value of EIF shares held by the Bank shall become due for payment after a special decision
for this purpose taken by European Investment Fund's General Meeting of Shareholders. By the issue date of this financial
statement no such a decision has been taken.

37.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

In BGN'000 2016 2015
Cash in hand (Note 16) 120 87
Current account with the Central Bank (Note 16) 78,401 343,719
Receivables from banks with original maturity up to 3 months 115,203 77,859

193,724 421,665
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38.  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND COMPANIES UNDER JOINT CONTROL WITH THE STATE

Related parties:
Entity/person

Ministry of Finance

Ministry of Agriculture and Food

Executive Agency on Fisheries and Aquaculture
Military Medical Academy

Road Infrastructure Agency

Bulgarian Export Insurance Agency EAD
Holding Bulgarian State Railways EAD

National Electricity Company EAD
BULGARGAZ EAD

Bulgarian Institute for Standardization

South Stream Bulgaria AD

State-owned Enterprise “Transport Construction and
Rehabilitation”

ICJB" AD

State Fund Agriculture

Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD

Bulgarian Independent Energy Exchange EAD
Kinteks EAD

Energy Investment Company EAD

Urban Mobility Center

Manager Fund of Financial Instruments in Bulgaria
Water Supply and Sewerage EOOD Plovdiv
Mini Maritsa East EAD

TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD

State Consolidation Company EAD

The table above shows the companies with which the Group had transactions during the reporting period.

Type of control

Majority shareholder of the capital of the Bank representing

the State

Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common contro! with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State

Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common contro! with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State

Related party balances in the statement of financial position :

Assets
Entity/person

Ministry of Finance

Company under common control with the State
Company under common control with the State
Liabilities

Entity/person

Ministry of Finance
Company under common control with the State

Type of balance 2016
Available-for-sale securities 248,634
Loans and advances to customers 165,537
Other assets 3
Type of balance 2016
Available-for-sale securities 17,679
Loans and advances to customers 535,577
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2015

257,269
95,451

2014

17,856
547,455
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38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND COMPANIES UNDER JOINT CONTROL WITH THE STATE

(CONTINUED)

Related party transactions:
Entity/person Type of transaction

Ministry of Finance
Fee and commission income

Interest income
Interest expense

Company under common control with the State Interest income
Fee and commission income
Interest expense

Commitments and contingencies with related parties:
Entity/person Type
Company under common control with the State

Unutilised amount of loans approved

Company under common control with the State Bank quarantses issued

Company under common control with the State Letters of credit

Relations with key management personnel:

Balances with key management personnel

Payables to customers on deposits

Remuneration payable
Loans and advances to customers

Transactions with key management personnel
Remuneration and social security contributions

Interest expense
Interest income
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2016

66
1,642
(141)

6,705

355
(642)

2016

6,262
3,621
14,746

2016

429
38
561

2016

1,557

(1)
11

2015

68
2,389
(172)

1,521
1,022
(121)

2015

18,730

2015

372

16
483

2015
1,994

(2)
18
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39.  EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financier Assoc. Prof. Krasimir Angarski was elected as a member of the Supervisory Board of the Bulgarian Development
Bank (BDB) at an extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders. He replaced Kiril Ananiev, who was appointed Finance
Minister in the caretaker government. The replacement was done in compliance with the legal provisions, as in his capacity as
Minister of the Ministry of Finance, which is the principal of BDB, Kiril Ananiev is not allowed to be a member of the Supervisory
Board of BDB.

Assoc. Prof. Krasimir Angarski was born in 1953 in Sofia. He graduated from the University of Economics *Karl Marx". Since
1980 he had worked in the Ministry of Finance, reaching the position of tax administration director for the Sofia district and of
Sofia. In 1994-1995 Assoc. Prof. Angarski was the CEO of the Bank Consolidation Company and participated in the
management of various state enterprises.

From 24 March to 21 May 1997 he was a minister without portfolio in the cabinet of Stefan Sofiyanski and was actively involved
in the preparation for the introduction of the currency board. Then he became secretary for economic affairs of President Petar
Stoyanov.

In 2001-2004, Assoc. Prof. Krasimir Angarski was the CEOQ of DSK Bank and in early 2005 he took the lead of DZI Bank. In
early 2007 he became an adviser at Postbank. He teaches at the University of National and World Economy and is the leader
of the group developing the currency board laws.
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